S

SOUTHERN

WV COMMUNITY & TECHNICAL COLLEGE

Agenda Book
December 12, 2023

Bud Baldwin, Chair
Sydney Brown
David Gresham
George Nisbet, Jr.
Shawn Cline-Riggins
Alexis Parker

Dr. Pamela L. Alderman,
President

Sam Stewart

Josh Stowers
Jeremy Thompson
Virgil Underwood
Chris Gray

Chris Ward




Southern West Virginia Community and Technical College
Meeating of December 12, 2023
6:00 p.m.

100 College Drive, Building C, Room 428
Logan, West Virginia, and Zoom

To Join Zoom Meeting:
https:/izgom, Ys/i/812225137837pwd=MEcxM2FjaDROSHZVMWpWWWE xxeXhgZz08

Meeting ID: 912 2251 3783
Passcode: 964963
Dial In: 1 646 BTG 9923

Mission: Southern West Virginia Community and Technical College provides
accessible, affordable, quality education and training that promote success for those we

serve.

AGENDA
1. Rell Call, Verification of Quorum, and Call lo Order.............ccccviiiiiiannnnn .Robert Baldwin
Beard Chair
2. Call for Public Comments to the Board of GOVEMOrs ...............c...oeeeeeieiune Chair Baldwin
3. O IO o s R G R R R G i s . Mr. Joe Linville

Chief Facilities Management Officer

4, *Prasentation and Acceptanca of FY 2023
ST T T 1= O L et a1 e 3

4.1 Independent AUdIOr'S PEPOMS ....cocorirrmminresmts e ssanesssrmssarrssmsass vermasas sisssassiassans 42
Suttle & Stalnaker, PLLC

Kelly Shaffer

5. HLC Institutional Responss UDHate............cooiirre e rssmnmssnsmeassssssanmns sainesssios sasmnsses boe 115
Mr. Bill Alderman, Chief Academic Officer
Accreditation Liaison Officer

6. A B O L i e G i R N A s -Mr. Chris Ward
Chair, Faculty Senate

! NI o TE PR s s rn s b s v by s v m e e W S m B b ummmn Ty i ks 197
Ms. Kimberly Maynard
Chair, Classified Staff



10.

1.

12.

13.

T a b= o Lot 2= o Ta T OO RO OPU RO 198
Ms. Velva Pennington
Chief Financial Officer

President’s REPOM. ... 200

President Alderman
DS CUSSION IBIMIS ... oottt e r e s s e s et et ae et araesresenenaranesenans Chair Baldwin
10.1 Mine Management, AAS PrOgram ........cocviiriiieioiiiiiicer e crercrininree s e meme s 202

Mr. Bill Alderman, Chief Academic Officer
Accreditation Liaison Officer

ACHON BmMS. .. e e e Chair Baldwin
11.1  *Approval of October 17, 2023, Board Meeting Minutes ..........c..coecevieiiiiienn 204
11.2  *Request for Approval to Release Institutional Policy
for 30-Day Comment ...........ccccoivvriiriiieri e Ms. Debbie Dingess,
Chief Huran Resources Officer
11.2.1 SCP-4710, AcademiC INtegrity ..........cccccvviiiiviiiiivrerrei e v 209

11.3 *Request for Final Approval following additional 30-day comment
11.3.1 SCP-2825, Salary Administration ..., 214

11.4  *New MisSion StalemEnt. ...t ttrreeveetreverees e e emm e e sesaessaeans 219
Mr. Darrell Taylor
Chief Student Services Officer

INfOrMALIONAl M. .. et e et e e e et e e arans Chair Baldwin

12.1 Organizational Chart and Vacancy Report .........cccocvvevivnvre v siinsesiacnenn 220
Ms. Debbie Dingess, Chief Human Resources Officer

12.2 The next regular Board of Governors meeting is scheduled for 6:00 p.m. on
Tuesday, February 20, 2024

AJOUMMIMIENT. ..ttt e e e ee e Chair Baldwin

*Denotes an item requiring action/Approval.
**Upon return to Open Meeting from any Executive Session, the Board of Governors may take
action on items discussed.



SOUTHERN WEST VIRGINIA
COMMUNITY AND TECHNICAL COLLEGE

REPORT TO THE GOVERNING BOARD

OCTOBER 4, 2023

Suttle&  Setiiec
Stalnaker Accountants

A Professional Limited Liability Company




/4
O

=l

> Suttle&
@;‘ Stalnaker:..

Certified Public Accountants

October 4, 2023

Board of Governors

Southern West Virginia Community and Technical College
Mount Gay, West Virginia

We are pleased to present this report related to our audit of the financial statements of Southern West
Virginia Community and Technical College (SWVCTC) for the yvear ended June 30, 2023, This report
summarizes certain matters required by professional standards to be communicated to you in your
oversight responsibility for SWVCTC's financial reporting processes.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of management of SWVCTC, the Board of
Governors, the Higher Education Policy Commission, the West Virginia Council for Community and
Technical College Education, federal and state awarding agencies, and pass-through entities, and is not
intended to be, and should not be, wsed by anyone other than these specified parties. It will be our
pleasure to respond to any questions you have regarding this report, We appreciate the opportunity to
continue 1o be of service to SWWVCTC.

St Sttt me

Suttle & Stalnaker, PLLC
Charleston, West Virginia

The Wirginia Center

1401 Vingireis Sirest, East
Suite 100
Chardestcn, WY 2530

unn (304) 343-410
fax  [(304) 343-2008

The Rivers Odfice Park
200 Star Avenoe

Siglte 220

Puherstlur-g. W 2GHN

v [304) 205-6584
fax (304 4B5-0971

Sumscreat Towene Cenbre

453 Suncréest Towne Centre Diive
Suite 200

Morgantown, WY 26505

wam (304 485-6584
r (B04) 485-0871

The Sormerville Building
501 Sth Avenue

Siste 1

Huntifugtan, Wy 25701

aand [304) 525-0300
e  [304) 5.22-1563



Contents

Required Communications
Summary of Accounting Estimates
Summary of Recorded Audit Adjustments
Summary of Uncorrected Misstatements
Communication Regarding Material Weakness
Certain Written Communications Between Management and Our Firm
Engagement Letter

Management Representation Letter

8-14

15

16-159

20



Required Communications

Professional standards require the auditor to communicate certain matters to keep those charged with
governance adequately informed about matters related to the financial statement audit that are, in our
professional judgment, significant and relevant to the responsibilities of those charged with governance
in overseeing the financial reporting process. The following summarizes these communications.

Area Comments

Auditor’s Responsibility We have audited the financial statements of Southern West

Under Professional Standards Virginia Community and Technical College (SWVCTC) for the year
ended June 30, 2023 and have issued our report thereon dated
October 4, 2023. Professional standards require that we provide
you with information about our responsibilities under generally
accepted auditing standards and Government Auditing Standards,
as well as certain information related to the planned scope and
timing of our audit, We have communicated such information in
our letter to you dated June 20, 2023. We did not audit the
financial statements of the Southern West Virginia Community
College Foundation, Inc., the discretely presented component unit
of SWVCTC. Those statements were audited by another auditor
whose report has been furnished to us, and our opinion, insofar as
it relates to the amounts included for the Foundation, is based
solely on the report of the other auditor.

Qualitative Aspects of Adoption of, or Change in, Accounting Policies

Accounting Practices Management is responsible for the selection and use of

appropriate accounting policies. The significant accounting policies
used by SWVCTC are described in Note 2 to the financial
statements. During 2023, SWVCTC implemented GASB Statement
No. 91, Conduit Debt Obligations, GASB Statement No. 94, Public-
Private and Public-Public Partnerships (PPPs) and Availability
Payment Arrangements (APAs), GASB Statement No. 96,
Subscription-Based Information Technolfogy Arrangements (SBITA),
and parts of GASB Statement No. 99, Omnibus 2022,none of which
had a material impact on the financial statements. The application
of existing policies was not changed during the year ended June
30, 2023.

We noted no transactions entered into by SWVCTC during the year
for which there is a lack of authoritative guidance or consensus. All
significant transactions have been recognized in the financial
statements in the proper period.



Area

Comments

Difficulties Encountered in
Performing the Audit

Corrected and Uncorrected
Misstatements

Disagreements with
Management

Management
Representations

Management Consuitations
with Other Independent
Accountants

Management’s Judgments and Accounting Estimates

Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial
statements prepared by management and are based on
management’s knowledge and experience about past and current
events and assumptions about future events. Certain accounting
estimates are particularly sensitive because of their significance to
the financial statements and because of the possibility that future
events affecting them may differ significantly from those expected.
The most sensitive estimates affecting SWVCTC's financial
statements can be found in the following Summary of Accounting
Estimates.

Financial Staternent Disclosures

The financial statement disclosures are neutral, consistent and
clear.

We encountered no significant difficuities in dealing with
management in performing and completing our audit.

Professional standards require us to accumulate all known and
likely misstatements identified during the audit, other than those
that are clearly trivial, and communicate them to the appropriate
level of management. See the attached Summary of Recorded
Audit Adjustments and Summary of Uncorrected Misstatements.

A disagreement with management is a financial accounting,
reporiing, or auditing matter, whether or not resolved to our
satisfaction, that could be significant to the financial statements or
the auditor’s report. We are pleased to report that no such
disagreements arose during the course of our audit.

We have requested certain representations from management
that are included in the management representation letter dated
October 4, 2023.

In some cases, management may decide to consult with other
accountants about auditing and accounting matters, similar to
obtaining a “second opinion” on certain situations. If a
consultation involves application of an accounting principle to
SWVCTC's financial statemants or a determination of the type of
auditor’s opinion that may be expressed on those statements, our
professional standards require the consulting accountant to check
with us to determine that the consultant has all the relevant facts.
To our knowledge, there were no such consultations with other
accountants.



Area

Comments

Other Audit Findings or Issues

Letter Regarding
Communication of Material
Weakness

Certain Written
Communications Between
Management and Our Firm

Other Matters

We generally discuss a variety of matters, including the application
of accounting principles and auditing standards, with management
each year prior to retention as SWVCTC's auditors. However, these
discussions occurred in the normal course of our professional
relationship and our responses were not a condition to our
retention.

See attached Communication Regarding Material Weakness.

Copies of certain written communications between our firm and
the management of SWVCTC are attached as Exhibits.

We applied certain limited procedures to Management's
Discussion and Analysis, the Schedule of Proportionate Share of
the Net Pension Liability, the Schedule of Pension Contributions,
the Schedule of Proportionate Share of the Net OPEB Liability
{Asset], and the Schedule of OPEB Contributions, which are
required supplementary information {RSI) that supplement the
basic financial statements. Our procedures consisted of inquiries of
management regarding the methods of preparing the information
and comparing the information for consistency with
management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial
statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of
the basic financial statements. We did not audit the RSI and do not
express an opinion or provide any assurance on the RSI.



Southern West Virginia Community and Technical College 7
Summary of Accounting Estimates
Year Ended June 30, 2023

Accounting estimates are an integral part of the preparation of financial statements and are based upon
management’s current judgment. The process used by management encompasses their knowledge and
experience about past and current events and certain assumptions about future events. You may wish
to monitor throughout the year the process used to compute and record these accounting estimates.
The following describes the significant accounting estimates reflected in SWVCTC's June 30, 2023

financial statements:

Area

Accounting Policy

Estimation Process

Comments

Depreciation of capital
assets

Valuation of
receivables

Compensated
absences

Net pension liability

Net other
postemployment
benefits (OPEB)
assat/liability

Straight — line method

Net realizable value

Estimated

Estimated

Estimated

Based on cost, or if
contributed, at fair value
of the asset.
Depreciation is
calculated using the
straight-line method
over the estimated
useful life, Annually,
management reviews
capital assets for
impairment.

Review of net amounts
of anticipated
collections, established
grants, contracts, and
loans and historical
collection information.

Based upon
management’s
calculation of the
ultimate liability to be
paid.

Based upon third party
report of the ultimate
liability to be paid.

Based upon third-party
report of the collective
net OPEB asset/liability
of the RHBT plan.

We concur with this
process.

We concur with this
process.

We concur with this
process.

Woe concur with this

process.

Woe concur with this
process.



Southern West Virginia Community and Technical College
Summary of Recorded Audit Adjustments
Year Ended June 30, 2023

During the course of our audit, we accumulate adjustments that are determined by management to be
material to the financial statements and to the related financial statement disclosures, or management
otherwise determines are appropriate to make. Following is a summary of the adjustments made to the

original trial balance we received.

Account Description Debit Credit

Adjusting Journal Entries JE# 1
To record library disposals and to adjust A/D to actual.

190505-0000-9158 Accum Depreciation-Library Books 23,216.00 -

180107-0000-9158 Library Books - 23,216.00
Total 23,216.00 23,216.00
Adjusting Journal Entries JE # 2
To reverse prior-year accruals that were not removed from the trial balance when
received.

250100-0000-1750 Compensated Absences-Cusrent 575,296.00 -
500100-60-1750 Tuition In-State 400,376.00 -
512200-60-1750 State Grants Contracts Restricted 288,912.00 -
550100-60-1750 Investment Incomea 8,483.00 -
79H159-60-1750 Postage 2,332.00 -

120100-0000-1750 Student Accounts Receivable - 323,153.00

120101-0000-1750 Third Party Receivable - 77,223.00

130100-0000-1750 Due from the Commission - 8,483.00

130100-0000-1750 Due from the Commission - 288,912.00

160100-0000-1750 Prepaid Expenses and Other Assets - 2,332.00
61H1X1-60-1750 Annual Leave -Accrued - 575,296.00

Total 1,275,399.00 1,275,399.0C
Adjusting Journal Entries JE# 3

To reverse prior-year accruals that were not removed from the trial balance when

received.

230100-0000-1750 Due to Other State Agencies 7,482.00 -

240100-0000-1750 Accrued Liabilities 82,882.00 -
§2H109-10-1750 Public Employees Insurance - 566.00
62H109-40-1750 Public Employees Insurance - 1,116.00
62H109-60-1750 Public Employees Insurance - 5,602.00
793426-60-175C Water And Sewage - 841.00
793663-10-175C Electricity - 582.00
793663-60-1750 Electricity - 35,676.00
793666-60-1750 Gas-Naturai - 2,413.00
78H120-60-1750 Telecommunications - 10.00
79H122-50-1750 Contractual Services - 142.00
79H127-10-1750 Travel Employee - 106.00
79H127-50-1750 Travel Employee - 293.00
79H127-60-1750 Travel Employae - 2,135.00
79H129-60-1750 Computer Services Internal - 1.00
79H133-60-1750 Rental-Machine and Miscellanegus - 5,180.00
79H139-60-1750 Advertising and Promotional - 500.00
79H140-60-1750 Vehicle Operating Expense - 109.00
79H142-10-1750 Supplies-Educational - 42.00



Southern West Virginia Community and Technical College 9
Summary of Recorded Audit Adjustments
Year Ended June 30, 2023
Account Description Debit Credit
79H150-60-1750 Energy Expense Motor Vehicle-Air - 3,071.00
79H150-70-1750 Energy Expense Motor Vehicle-Air - 138.00
79H156-50-1750 Miscellaneous - 226.00
79H156-60-1750 Miscellaneous - 10,088.00
79H161-COVD-1750  Supplies-Computer - 1,722.00
79H162-60-1750 Software Licenses - 196.00
79H165-60-1750 Attorney Lepal Service Payments - 14,754.00
79H178-60-1750 Bank Costs - 409.00
79H255-60-1750 Routine Maintenance of Buildings - 4,442.00
Total 50,364.00 90,364.00
Adjusting Journal Entries JE # 4
To reverse prior-year accruals that were not rernoved from the trial balance when
recelved.
240100-0000-1750 Accrued Liabilities 152,121.00 -
200100-0000-8722 Accounts Payable - 143,876.00
793425-60-1750 Sanitation - 400.00
793426-60-1750 Water And Sewage - 569.00
793663-60-1750 Electricity - 4,313.00
793663-70-1750 Electricity - 174.00
793666-60-1730 Gas-Natural - 8.00
79H122-10-1750 Contractual Services - 650.00
79H133-60-1750 Rental-Machine and Miscellaneous - 5,011.00
79H167-10-1750 Miscellaneous Equipment Purchases - 35,470.00
79H255-70-1750 Routine Maintenance of Buildings - 1,650.00
Total 192,121.00 192,121.00
Adjusting Journal Entries JE# 5
To rempove PY accrued liabilities not reversed.
240100-0000-4680 Accrued Liabilities 75,086.00 -
240100-0000-8025 Accrued Liabilities 704.00 -
240100-0000-8031 Accrued Liabilities 2,198.00 -
240100-0000-8722 Accrued Liabilities 3,4244.00 -
793425-70-4680 Sanitation - 1,442.00
793425-70-4680 Water And Sewage - 387.00
793663-50-4680 Electricity - 3,447.00
79M116-60-4680 Office Expense - 474.00
79H117-60-4680 Printing And Binding - 740.00
79H122-60-4680 Contractual Services - 2,390.00
79H127-60-4680 Travel Employee - 3,016.00
79H134-60-4680 Assoc Dues and Prof Membership . 4,982.00
79H138-10-8025 Supplies-Household - 704.00
79H138-60-4680 Supplies-Household - 125.00
79H139-60-4680 Advenrtising and Pramotional - 5,848.00
79H142-10-4680 Supplies-Educational - 1,839.00
79H148-60-4680 Hospitality - 325.00
79H150-60-4680 Energy Expense Motor Vehicle-Air - 307.00
79H160-60-4680 Freight - 126.00
79H161-60-4680 Supplies-Computer - 18.00



Southern West Virginia Community and Technical College

Summary of Recorded Audit Adjustments

Year Ended June 30, 2023

Account Description
79H161-COVD-8722
79H162-10-8031
F9H162-60-4680
79H163-COVD-8722
79H254-70-4680
79H255-70-4680
F9H257-70-4680
Total

Supplies-Computer

Software Licenses

Software Licenses

Cormputer Equipment-Current Expense
Building-Household Equip Repair
Routine Maintenance of Buildings
Routine Maintenance of Grounds

Adjusting Journal Entries JE# 6

PBC - To record grant revenues and expenses, and remove PY unearned revenue.

270100-0000-2750
510100-COVD-8722
510102-80-8713
510103-80-8714
793988-80-2750
512200-60-2750
560100-80-2750
560301-COVD-8722
793988-80-8713
793988-80-8714

Total

Unearned Revenue

Federal Grants Contracts Restricted
Direct Loans -Sub

Direct Loans -Unsub
Scholarships-Federal

State Grants Contracts Restricted
Pell-Federal Grant

COVID Relief - Institution
Scholarships-Federal
Scholarships-Federal

Adjusting Journal Entries JE# 7
To record fixed asset building additions found on the building spreadsheet that
were not antered into the trial batance.

150103-0000-9158 Buildings & Building Improvements
T9H122-10-9158 Contractual Services
79H122-60-9158 Contractual Services
79H254-10-9158 Building-Household Equip Repair
79H255-70-9158 Routine Maintenance of Buildings
79H255-70-9158 Routine Maintenance of Buildings
79H255-70-9158 Routine Maintenance of Buildings
79H261-70-4682 Land improvements

Total

Adjusting Journal Entries JE# B
To remove paving ¢osts that were double recorded in fixed assets.
79H261-70-4682 Land Improvements
180101-0000-3158 Land Improvements
Total

Adjusting Journal Entries JE# 9
To adjust depreciation expense and accumulated depreciation for buildings to
actual.
793943-70-9158
190503-0000-3158
Total

Depreciation Expense-Buildings
Accum Depreciation-Buildings

12

10

Debit Credit
. 3,125.00
- 2,198.60
. 5,176.00
- 318.00
- 10,088.00
. 34,217.00
- 139.00
$1,432.00 §1,432.00
2,071,917.00 -
597,691.00 -
791,995.00 -
880,923.00 -
3,753,781.00 -
- 2,071,917.00
- 3,753,781.00
- 597,691.00
- 791,9395.00
- 880,923.00
8,096,307.00 8,096,307.00
507,239.00 -
- 73,490.00
- 98,500.00
- 22,990.00
- 18,500.00
- 24,000.00
. 25,994.00
- 243,765.00
507,239.00 507,239.00
147,537.00 -
- 147,537.00
147,537.00 147,537.00
46,547.00 .
. 46,547.00
46,547.00 46,547.00




Account

Southern West Virginia Community and Technical College

Summary of Recorded Audit Adjustmants
Year Ended June 30, 2023

Description

Adjusting fournal Entrles JE # 10

To remove duplicated equipment, reclassify eguipment, correct net position and

adjust for funds that were initially unmapped in banner.

110100-0000-B58772
410200-0000-9158
79H142-10-7680
79H243-10-9158
190104-0000-8710
190104-0000-9710
410100-C000-4680
503100-60-7680
506102-60-7680
510100-80-8703
520105-60-7680
520105-60-7681
520109-60-7681
Total

Cash an Deposit with State
Investment in Plant
Supplies-Educational

Research and Educational Equip
Equipment

Equipment

College Funds

Course Fees

Recording Fees

Federal Grants Contracts Restricted
Continuing Education-Workforce
Continuing Education-Workforce
Personal Enrichment Classes

Adjusting Journal Entries JE # 11
PBC to correct unearned state grant revenue,

270100-0000-2750
512200-10-2750
Total

Unearned Revenue
State Grants Contracts Restricted

Adjusting Journal Entries JE # 12

To adjust equipment to agree to schedules and record disposal losses.

190104-G000-9158
5701101-60-9158
190504-0000-9158
793344-60-9158
Total

Equipment

Gain on Disp-Sale of Fixed Assat
Accum Depreciation-Equipment
Depreciation Expense-Equipment

Adjusting Journal Entries JE # 13

PBC To account for client prepared corrections per revised trizl balance.

120116-00G0-1750
190504-0000-9158
200109-0000-BLOCD3
200200-0000-BLOCO3
200201-0000-BLOCO3
200202-06000-BLOCO3
200203-00C0-BLOCD3
200204-00G0-BLOCDS
500100-60-4680
512200-10-2750
520113-10-8104
520113-90-4681
61H5100-6G-1750
793587-10-8012
793587-10-8031

Allowance for Student Receivables
Accum Depreciation-Equipment
Depuosits

Pelf Clearing Liability

SEOG Clearing Liability

Direct Loan Clearing Liability

Work Study Clearing Liability
Other Clearing Liability

Tuition In-State

State Grants Contracts Restricted
Other Scurces Linrestricted

Other Sources Unrestricted

Pers Serv Perm Pos With Pr Deduct
Scholarship-State
Scholarship-State

13

11

Debit Credit
2,110.00 -
3,608,157.00 -
32,161.00 -
102.00 -
- 10,104.00
- 55,503.00
- 3,416,616.0¢
- 15,950.00
- 50.0C
- 2,110.00
- 141,127.00
- 690.00
- 340.00
3,642,530.00 3,642,530.00
18,662.00 -
- 18,662.00
18,662.00 18,662.00
2,548,602.00 -
77,656.00 -
- 2,616,572.00
- 9,776.00
2,626,348.00 2,626,348.00
107,412.00 -
4,875,708.00 -
5,857.00 -
1,145,688.00 -
52,238.00 -
24,055.00 -
475.00 -
2,989.00 -
175,087.00 -
18,652.00 -
15,892.00 -
15,623.00 -
6,302.00 -
256,000.00 -
524,014.00 -



14

Southern West Virginia Community and Technical College 12
Summary of Recorded Audit Adjustments
Year Ended June 30, 2023
Account Description Debit Credit
793987-10-8037 Scholarship-State 150,000.00 -
793987-10-8068 Scholarship-State 30,914.00 -
793987-10-8099 Scholarship-State 3,000.00 -
793987-10-8104 Scholarship-State 15,892.00 -
793987-10-8107 Scholarship-State 16,647.00 -
793987-30-8103 Scholarship-State 161,583.00 -
793987-80-8001 Scholarships-State 1,255,311.00 -
793987-80-8002 Scholarships-State 168,493.00 -
793987-80-8003 Scholarships-State 184,168.00 -
793987-80-8070 Scholarships-State 35,000.00 -
793987-80-8087 Scholarships-State 389,041.00 -
793988-80-8713 Scholarships-Federal 1,578,243.00 -
793988-80-8714 Scholarships-Federal 1,744 387.00 -
793588-80-8716 Scholarships-Federal 90,233.00 -
79H156-COVD-8722  Miscellaneous 208,539.00 -
79H222-60-4680 Fees Assessed By Commission-Other 62,662.00 -
TOH222-60-4682 Fees Assessed By Commission-Other 4,871.0C -
1101080-0000-854680  Cash on Deposit with State - 191.00
110100-0000-854683  Cash on Deposit with State - 3,190,062.00
110600-0000-1750 AR Non-Current No Hardship - £,303.00
150104-0000-9158 Equipment - 4,875,707.00
200100-0000-8722 Accounts Payable - 64,663.00
200204-0000-BLOO03  Other Clearing Liability - 1,468,861.00
500100-60-1750 Tuition in-State - 107,412.00
500100-60-4682 Tuition In-State - 2,436.00
500102-60-4682 Capital Fee In-State - 2,435.00
510101-80-8716 SEQG Revenue - 90,233.00
510102-80-8713 Direct Loans -Sub - 1,578,243.00
510103-B0-8714 Direct Loans -Unsub - 1,744,387.00
512200-10-8104 State Grants Contracts Restricted - 15,892.00
512200-60-2750 State Grants Contracts Restricted - 18,662.00
516603-90-4681 MBS Book Sales - 19,623.00
79H167-COVD-1750 Miscellaneous Equipment Purchases - 143,876.00
Total 13,328,986.00 13,328,986.00
Adjusting Journal Entries JE # 14
To correct cash to HEPC Confirm,
110100-0000-B54683  Cash on Deposit with State 3,190,062.00 -
512200-60-1750 State Grants Contracts Restricted 1.00 -
793987-10-8012 Scholarship-State - 255,000.00
793987-10-8031 Scholarship-State - 524,014.00
793987-10-8037 Scholarship-State - 150,000.00
793987-10-8068 Scholarship-5tate - 30,914.00
793987-10-8099 Scholarship-State - 3,000.00
793987-10-8104 Scholarship-State - 15,892.00
793987-10-8107 Scholarship-State - 16,647.00
793987-30-8103 Scholarship-State - 161,583.00
793887-80-8001 Scholarships-State - 1,255,311.00
793987-80-8002 Scholarships-State - 168,493.00
793987-80-8003 Scholarships-State - 184,168.00



15

Southern West Virginia Community and Technical College 13
Summary of Recorded Audit Adjustments
Year Ended June 30, 2023
Account Description Debit Credit

793987-80-8070 Scholarships-State - 35,000.00

793987-80-8087 Scholarships-State - 389,041.00
Total 3,190,063.00 3,190,063.00
Adjusting lournal Entries JE # 15
To adjust scholarship allowance to actual.

500104-60-1750 Scholarship Allowance-Tuition & Fees 195,538.00 -

793990-60-1750 Scholarships-GASB Allow - 195,538.00
Total 195,538.00 195,538.00
Adjusting Journal Entries JE # 16
To reverse PY unearned student T&F revenue and reclassify PY HEERF unearned
revenue.

270100-0000-1750 Unearned Revenue 70,276.00 -

270100-C000-1750 Unezrned Revenue 285,533.00 -
270100-0000-8720 Unearned Revenue - 285,533.00
500100-60-1750 Tuition in-State - 70,276.00
Totzl 355,809.00 355,809.00
Adjusting lournal Entries JE # 17
To adjust allowance to calculated amount.

500100-60-1750 Tuition In-State 107,412.00 -

120116-0000-1750 Allowance for Student Recelvables - 107,412.00

Total 107,412.00 107,412.00
Adjusting Journal Entries JE # 18
To reclassify direct loans originally included as a component of federal revenue.
510102-80-8713 Direct Loans -Sub 786,248.00 -
510103-80-8714 Direct Loans -Unsub 863,464.00 -
793988-80-8713 Scholarships-Federal - 786,248.00
793988-80-8714 Scholarships-Federal - 863,464.00
Total 1,649,712.00 1,649,712.00
Adjusting lournal Entries JE # 19
To adjust due to state ta actual.

230100-0000-1750 Due 1o Other State Agencies 13,370.00 -
79H120-60-4680 Telecommunications - 128.00
79H129-60-1750 Computer Services tnternal - 13,242.00

Total 13,370.00 13,370.00
Adjusting Journal Entries JE # 20
PBC - To correct auxiliary revenue,
79H122-60-4680 Contractual Services 6,048.00 -
516601-10-4681 Bookstare Sales - 6,048.00
Total 6,048.00 6,048.00




Account

Southern West Virginia Community and Technical College

Summary of Recorded Audit Adjustments
Year Ended June 30, 2023

Description

Adjusting Journal Entries JE # 21
To correct Due From Commission to actual at 6/30/23.

13010G-0080-1750
512200-60-1750
Total

Due from the Commission
State Grants Contracts Restricted

Adjusting lournal Entries JE # 23

To adjust for miscellaneous carrections and reclassifications for errors identified.

200100-0000-8720
220100-0000-8719
270100-0000-8720
410100-0000-4680
510100-10-8722
520113-60-4680
520113-60-4681
793987-60-4680
79H163-10-4630
79H167-COVD-1750
270100-0000-2750
$00100-60-4680
510100-COVD-8722
512200-60-1750
516602-40-4681
550100-60-4680
560301-COVD-8722
79H156-10-4580
Total

Accounts Payable

Due to Other Governments
Unearned Revenue

College Funds

Federal Grants Contracts Restricted
Other Sources Unrestricted

Other Sources Unrestricted
Scholarships-State

Computer Equipment-Current Expense
Miscellaneous Equipment Purchases
Unearned Revenue

Tuition In-5tate

Faderal Grants Contracts Restricted
State Grants Contracts Restricted
Textbook Sales-MBS Commission
Investment [ncome

COVID Relief - Institution
Miscellanecus

16

14

Debit Credit
74,705.00 -
- 74,705.00
74,705.00 74,705.00
10,406.00 .
1,200.00 -
285,533.00 .
112.00 -
266,964.00 -
374,074.00 -
11,504.00 -
2,311,752.00 -
44,743.00 -
133,143.00 .
. 30,786.00
. 550,323.00
- 327,728.00
- 1,775,386.00
. 11,504.00
- 374,074.00
- 369,518.00
- 112.00
3,439,431.00 3,439,431.00




17

Southern West Virginia Community and Technical College 15
Summary of Uncorrected Misstatements
Year Ended June 30, 2023

During the course of an audit, we accumulate uncorrected misstatements that are determined by
management to be immaterial, both individually and in the aggregate to the financial statements and 1o
the related financial statement disclosures. Following is a summary of those differences.

Account Description Debit Credit

There were no uncorrected misstatements identified during the course of our audit.



COMMUNICATION REGARDING MATERIAL WEAKNESS

16



19

== Suttle& !
<) Stalnaker ...

Certified Public Accountants

Board of Governors
Southern West Virginia Community and Technical College
Mount Gay, West Virginia

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements of Southern West Virginia Community
and Technical College (SWVCTC] as of and for the year ended June 30, 2023 in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America, and Government Auditing Stondards
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, we considered SWVCTC's internal control over
financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing auditing procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the financial statements, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of SWVCTC's internal control. Accardingly, we do
not express an opinion on the effectiveness of SWVCTC's internal control,

Qur consideration of internal contral was for the limited purpose described in the preceding paragraph
and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or
significant deficiencies and therefore material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were
not identified. In addition, because of inherent limitations in internal control, including the possibility of
management override of controls, misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected
by such controls. However, as discussed below, we identified certain deficiencies in internal control that
we consider to be a material weakness.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material
misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a
timely basis. We cansider the following deficiencies in internal control to be a material weakness:

Financiol Reporting

Management of the College is responsible for establishing an internal contral structure that
reduces to an accepiable level the risk of errors and fraoud occurring and not being detected. The
College is also responsible for having a financial management system in place to account for the
receipt and expenditure of grant and other funds, prepare accurate financial reports and be able
to trace funds to a level of expenditures adequate to establish that such funds have not been
used in violation of applicable laws and regulations, in a timely manner,

Several accounts in the general ledger required material adjustments to reconcile to supporting
documentation. Additionally, the trial balance initially provided did not balance and beginning
net position did not progress from prior year audited net position.

The Virginia Center The Rivers Office Park suncrest Towne Cenlre The Somervilie Bullding
1411 Virginia Street, East 200 SEar Avenue 45_3 Sunérest Towne Centre Drive 5-|;|'| Sil Averue

Suite 100 Suite 220 i RO Suite 1

Charlestan, WV 25301 Parkersburg, WV 26101 orgniawn, WY 2630 Huntington, WV 25701
mam (304] 343-4126 ma (B04] 485-6584 s [304) 485-6584 wa (304 5250301

rax {304} 343-B003 fu (304] 485-0931 far {30} 4B5-0071 fex (304) 522-1569



20
18

Inaccuracies in posting prior year audit adjustments, recording yearend accruals, and reconciling
supporting schedules to the fiscal year 2023 trial balance resulted in material adjustments to the
financial statements.

We recommend that management review the daily accounting functions, staffing, and financial
reporting processes to ensure adequate policies and procedures are in place to ensure accurate
and timely financial reporting. Management should ensure that account reconciliations are
prepared and reviewed in a timely manner and ensure supporting schedules agree to the
College’s financial records for all account balances.

During our audit, we also became aware of the following deficiencies in internal control other than
significant deficiencies or material weaknesses, and other matters that are opportunities for
strengthening internal controls and operating efficiency:

Capital Assets Reconciliations and Recordkeeping

Certain improvements were made to the accounting and record maintenance for capital assets
during the fiscal year; a full inventory was taken and capital assets were entered into the
wvQasis fixed asset module. However, because of limitations surrounding classifications and
useful lives, depreciation remains a manual calculation. Changes or improvements surrounding
the process for recording additions and disposals were not made. This, coupled with the lack of
periodic reconciliation between the capital asset listing and the general ledger resulted in errors
similar to those historically noted. Specifically, in the current year, depreciation expense was
calculated incorrectly on some assets and there were multiple instances of duplicated or
otherwise incorrect journal entries posted to the general ledger related to capital assets, which
led to several journal entries to these and related accounts during the audit of the financial
statements.

We recommend SWVCTC continue to focus on improving recordkeeping surrounding capital
assets, including the conversion to maintaining electronic recerds in wvQasis, and develop
procedures whereby the electronic capital asset records are periodically reconciled to the
general ledger to ensure the records/listing is maintained on a regular basis and agrees to the
general ledger.

t/nearned Revenue
SWVCTC has leftover grant funds that have been carried over for several years. The funds have
been held because SWVCTC has been waiting untif the grants allow the funds to be returned or

instruct SWVCTC on how the funds should be spent.

We recommend that management either return the funds to the grant or use the funds in a
manner consistent with the original purpose of the grant,



21
19

Information System Governance

SWVCTC obtained a Service Organization Control {SOC) report for the wvQASIS application from
the West Virginia Enterprise Resource Planning Board and reviewed the SQC report; however,
the College does not have adequate policies in place to document their review of the SOC report
and understanding of the wvQASIS SOC report. Management is responsible for establishing and
maintaining an effective system of internal control over financial reporting, including controls
over information systems that are critical to the College’s financial reporting function.

We recommend that the College establish policies and procedures to create a documented
review of the SOC report. The annual review of the SOC report should include a determination
that the appropriate complementary user entity controls are in place and that the service
organization’s internal controls are functioning properly.

We will review the status of these comments during our next audit engagement. We have already
discussed many of these comments and suggestions with various SWVCTC personnel, and we will be
pleased to discuss them in further detail at your convenience, to perform any additional study of these
matters, or to assist you in implementing the recommendations.

This communication is intended solely for the information and use of management of SWVCTC, the
Board of Governors, the Higher Education Policy Commission, the West Virginia Council for Community
and Technical College Education, federal and state awarding agencies, and pass-through entities, and is
not intended to be, and should not be, used by anyone other than these specified parties.

St St

Charleston, West Virginia
October 4, 2023



Certain Written Communications Between Management and Our Firm
Engagement Letter

Management Representation Letter

22
20



ENGAGEMENT LETTER

23



24

) :Stalnﬂker ACCOUNants

ay A Peobessionad Limites Lishility Company

5 a Suttled& [

June 20, 2023

5. Derek Adkins, CFO

southern West Virginia Community and Technical College
P.O. Box 2900

Mount Gay, West Virginia 25637

Ta Mr. Adkins:

We are pleased to confirm our understanding of the services we are to provide Southern West Virginka Community
and Technical College (the College) for the year ended June 30, 2023, The services perfarmed by us pursuant to
this engagement are subject to the terms and conditions set forth herein, In any accompanying documents, and
in the open end contract/purchase order 424001 and subsequent modifications (the contract) issued by HEPC,

Audit 5cope and Objectives

We will audit the College’s financial statements which include the Statement of Met Position, Statement of
Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Met Position and the Statement of Cash Flows, and the disclosures, which
callectively comprise the basic financial statements of the College as of and for the year ending June 30, 2023,
Accounting standards generally accepted in the United States of America {GAAP] provide for certain required
supplementary information (RS1), such as management’s discussion and analysis (MD&A), to supplement the
College's basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is
required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial
reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context.
As part of our engagement, we will apply certain limited procedures to the College's RSl in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAS). These limited procedures will
consist of inquiries of management regarding the methods of preparing the information and comparing the
information for consistency with management’s responses 1o our inguiries, the basic financial statements, and
other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We will not express an opinion
or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient
appropriate evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. The following RSl is required by GAAP and
will be subjected to certain limited procedures, but will not be audited:

1) Management's Discussion and Analysis

2) Schedule of Proportionate Share of Net Pension Liability

3) Schedule of Pension Contributions

4] Schedule of Proportionate Share of Net Other Postemployment Benefits (OPEB) Liability |Asset)
5) Schedule of Other Postemployment Benefits [OPEB) Contributions

6] HNotes to the Required Supplementary Information

Thi Yirginia Center The Rivers Office Park Suncrest Towne Contre

1411 Virginda Street, East 200 Star Averiwe | Suite 230 453 Sundrest Towne Centre Drive

Suite 100 PO B 149 Suite 201

Chasfeston, WY 2530 Parkershung, Wy 26102 Miorganionam, WY 26505

sy (304 343-4108 aain {304) 485-6504 wuy [304) 554-3371 utflecpascom

fax [ 304] 343-8008 fax  {304) 485-0971 tax [304) 554-3410 cpadsuttiecpas.com



25

The objectives of our audit are to obtain reasonable assurance as to whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion about whether your financial statements are fairly presented, in all material respects, in conformity with
GAAP; and report on the fairness of the supplementary information referred to in the second paragraph when
considered in relation to the financial statements as a whole. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance
but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with GAAS
and Government Auditing Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements,
including omissions, can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood
that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment of a reasonable user made based on the
financial statements.

The objectives also include reporting on internal control over financial reporting and compliance with provisions
of laws, regulations, contracts, and award agreements, noncompliance with which could have a material effecton
the financial statements in accordance with Government Auditing Standards.

The Southern West Virginia Community College Foundation, Inc. is a component unit of the College as defined by
GASB Statement Number 39 and you have informed us that it will be required to be inciuded in your financial
statements for the year ended June 30, 2023. We understand that the audit of the Southern West Virginia
Community College Foundation, Inc. will be conducted by other auditors whose report will be made available to
us by September 20, 2023, You have alsc informed us that any other related entities are immaterial under the
provisions of GASB 3% and will not be required to be included in your basic financial statements for the year ending
June 30, 2023. We will make reference to the other auditor’s audit of Southern West Virginia Community College
Foundation, Inc. in our report on your financial statements.

We understand that you intend to furnish a copy of the College’s financial statements, including our report
thereon, to the combined West Virginia Council for Community & Technical College Education, a component unit
of the West Virginia Higher Education Fund, and such party shall, upon confirmation, utilize this report for
preparation of the combined West Virginia Council for Community & Technical College Education financial
statements to be reported on by Suttle & Stalnaker, PLLC. In addition, we understand that you will provide a copy
of our report to the State of West Virginia for preparation of the combined State of West Virginia financial
statements to be reported upon by another auditor.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

we will conduct our audit in accordance with GAAS and the standards for financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, and will include tests of your
accounting records of the College and other procedures we consider necessary to enable us to express such
opinions. As part of an audit in accordance with GAAS and Government Auditing Standards, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

We will evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting
estimates made by management. We will also evaluate the overall presentation of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and determine whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. We will plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement, whether from {1} errors, (2)
fraudulent financial reporting, {3} misappropriation of assets, or (4) violations of laws or governmental regulations
that are attributable to the government or to acts by management or employees acting on behalf of the
government. Because the determination of waste and abuse is subjective, Government Auditing Standards do not
expect auditors to perform specific procedures to detect waste or abuse in financial audits nor do they expect
auditors to provide reasonable assurance of detecting waste or abuse.



26

Because of the inherent limitations of an audit, combined with the inherent limitations of intarnal control, and
because we will not perform a detailed examination of all transactions, there is an unavoidable risk that some
material misstatements may not be detected by us, even though the audit is properly planned and performed in
accordance with GAAS and Government Auditing Standards. In addition, an audit is not designed to detect
immaterial misstatements or violations of laws or governmental regulations that do not have a direct and material
effect on the financial statements. However, we will inform the appropriate level of management of any material
errors, fraudulent financial reporting, or misappropriation of assets that comes to our attention. We will also
inform the appropriate level of management of any violations of laws or governmental regulations that come to
our attention, unless clearly inconsequential. Qur responsibility as auditors is limited to the period covered by our
audit and does not extend to any later periods for which we are not engaged as auditors.

We have advised you of the limitations of our audit regarding the detection of fraud and the possible effect on
the financial statements {including misappropriation of cash or other assets). We are available to perform, as a
separate engagement, extended procedures specifically designed to detect fraud; however, you have declined to
engage us to do so at this time. As this engagement is not designed to be a fraud audit, management understands
and accepts the inherent [limitations of the audit services described in this agreement,

In connection with this engagement, we may communicate with you or others via email transmission. As emails
can be intercepted and read, disclosed, or otherwise used or communicated by an unintended third party, or may
not be delivered to each of the parties to whom they are directed and only such parties, we cannot guarantee or
warrant that emails from us will be properly delivered and read only by the addressee. Therefore, we specifically
disclaim and waive any liability or responsibility whatsoever for interception or unintentional disclosure of emails
transmitted by us in connection with the performance of this engagement. In that regard, you agree that we shall
have no liability for any loss or damage to any person or entity resulting from the use of email transmissions,
including any consequential, incidental, direct, indirect, ar special damages, such as loss of revenues or anticipated
profits, or disclosure or communication of confidential or proprietary information.

We will also conclude, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether there are conditions or events, considered
in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the government’'s ability to continue as a going concern for a
reasanable period of time.

Our procedures will include tests of documentary evidence supporting the transactions recorded in the accounts,
direct confirmation of receivables and certain assets and liabilities by correspondence with selected customers,
creditors, and financial institutions. We will also request written representations from your attorneys as part of
the engagement.

We may, from time to time and depending on the circumstances, use third-party service providers in serving your
account. We may share confidential information about you with these service providers but remain committed to
maintaining the confidentiality and security of your information. Accordingly, we maintain internal policies,
procedures, and safeguards to protect the confidentiality of your personal information. In addition, we will secure
confidentiality agreements with all service providers to maintain the confidentiality of your information and we
will take reasonable precautions to determine that they have appropriate procedures in place to prevent the
unauthorized release of your confidential information to others. In the event that we are unable to secure an
appropriate confidentiality agreement, you will be asked to provide your consent prior to the sharing of your
confidential information with the third-party service provider. Furthermore, we will remain responsible for the
work provided by any such third-party service providers.



27

Audit Procedures—Internal Control

We will obtain an understanding of the government and its environment, including the system of internal control,
sufficient to identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
error or fraud, and to design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks and obtain evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinions. Tests of controls may be performed to test the
effectiveness of certain controls that we consider relevant to preventing and detecting errors and fraud that are
material to the financial statements and to preventing and detecting misstatements resulting from illegal acts and
other noncompliance matters that have a direct and material effect on the financial statements. Our tests, if
performed, will be less in scope than would be necessary to render an opinion on internal control and, accordingly,
no opinion will be expressed in our report on internal control issued pursuant to Government Auditing Standards.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentation, or the override of internal
control. An audit is not designed to provide assurance on internal control or to identify significant deficiencies or
material weaknesses. Accordingly, we will express no such opinion. However, during the audit, we will
communicate to management and those charged with governance internal control related matters that are
required to be communicated under AICPA professional standards and Government Auditing Standards.

Audit Procedures—Compliance

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement, we will perform tests of the College’s compliance with the provisions of applicable laws, regulations,
contracts, agreements, and grants. However, the objective of our audit will not be to provide an apinion on overall
compliance and we will not express such an opinion in our report on compliance issued pursuant to Government
Auditing Standards.

Other Services

We will also assist in preparing the financial statements and related notes of the College in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America based on information provided by you.
These nonaudit services do not constitute an audit under Government Auditing Standards and such services will
not be conducted in accordance with Government Auditing Stondards. We will perform the services in accordance
with applicable professional standards. The other services are limited to the financial statement services
previously defined. We, in our sole professional judgment, reserve the right to refuse to perform any procedure
or take any action that could be construed as assuming management responsibilities,

You agree to assume all management responsibilities relating to the financial statements and related notes and
any other nonaudit services we provide. You will be required to acknowledge in the management representation
letter our assistance with preparation of the financial statements and related notes and that you have reviewed
and approved the financial statements and related notes prior to their issuance and have accepted responsibility
for them. Further, you agree to oversee the nonaudit services by designating an individual, preferably from senior
management, with suitable skill, knowledge, or experience; evaluate the adequacy and results of those services;
and accept responsibility for them.



28

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Our audit will be conducted on the basis that you acknowledge and understand your responsibility for designing,
implementing, establishing, and maintaining effective internal controls relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and
for evaluating and monitoring ongoing activities to help ensure that appropriate goals and ohjectives are met;
following laws and regulations; and ensuring that management and financial information is reliable and properly
reported. Management is aiso responsible for implementing systems designed to achieve compliance with
applicable laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements. You are also responsible for the selection and
application of accounting principles, for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements and all
accompanying information in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America, and for compliance with applicable laws and regulations and the provisions of contracts and grant
agreements.

Management is responsible for making drafts of financial statements, all financial records, and related information
available to us and for the accuracy and completeness of that information {including information from outside of
the general and subsidiary ledgers). You are also responsible for providing us with {1) access to all information of
which you are aware that is relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements, such as
records, documentation, identification of all related parties and all related-party relationships and transactions,
and other matters; (2} additional information that we may request for the purpose of the audit; and (3)
unrestricted access to persons within the government from whom we determine it necessary to obtain audit
evidence. At the conclusion of our audit, we will require certain written representations from you about your
responsibilities for the financial statements; compliance with laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements;
and other responsibilities required by GAAS and Government Auditing Standards.

Your responsibilities include adjusting the financial statements to correct material misstatements and for
confirming to us in the written representation letter that the effects of any uncorrected misstatements aggregated
by us during the current engagement and pertaining to the latest period presented are immaterial, both
individually and in the aggregate, to the financial statements of each opinion unit taken as a whole,

You are responsible for the design and implementation of programs and controis to prevent and detect fraud, and
for informing us about all known or suspected fraud affecting the College involving (1) management, (2)
employees who have significant roles in internal control, and (3) others where the fraud could have a material
effect on the financial statements. Your responsibilities include informing us of your knowledge of any allegations
of fraud or suspected fraud affecting the College received in communications from employees, former employees,
grantors, regulators, or athers. In addition, you are responsible for identifying and ensuring that the College
complies with applicable laws, regulations, contracts, agreements, and grants and for taking timely and
appropriate steps to remedy fraud and noncomplianca with provisions of laws, regulations, or contracts or grant
agreements that we report.

Management is responsible for providing us with, or making arrangements to facilitate (1) unrestricted
communication between us and the component auditor to the extent permitted by law or regulation; (2)
communications between the component auditor, those charged with governance of the component, and
component management, including communications of significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in
internal control; (3) communications between regulatory authorities and the component related to financial
reporting matters; (4) access to component information, those charged with governance of the component,
component management, and the component auditor {including relevant audit documentation requested by us);
and (5) permission to perform work, or request a component auditor to perform work, on the financial information
of the component.



29

You are responsible for the preparation of the suppiementary information, which we have been engaged to report
on, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP). You agree
1o include our report on the supplementary information in any document that contains, and indicates that we
have reported on, the supplementary information. You also agree to include the audited financial statements with
any presentation of the supplementary information that includes our report thereon. Your responsibilities include
acknowledging to us in the written representation ietter that (1) you are responsible for presentation of the
supplementary information in accordance with GAAP; (2) you believe the supplementary information, including
its form and content, is fairly presented in accordance with GAAP; {3} the methods of measurement or
presentation have not changed from those used in the prior period {or, if they have changed, the reasons for such
changes); and {4) you have disclosed to us any significant assumptions or interpretations underlying the
measurement or presentation of the supplementary information.

Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining a process for tracking the status of audit findings and
recommendations, Management is also responsible for identifying and providing report copies of previous
financial audits, attestation engagements, performance audits or other studies related to the objectives discussed
in the Audit Scope and Cbjectives section of this letter. This responsibility includes relaying to us corrective actions
taken to address significant findings and recommendations resulting from those audits, attestation engagements,
performance audits, or other studies. You are also responsible for providing management’s views on our current
findings, conclusions, and recommendations, as well as your planned corrective actions, for the report, and for
the timing and format for providing that information.

With regard to using the auditor’s report, you understand that you must obtain our prior written consent to
repraduce or use our report in bond offering official statements or other documents. With regard to the electronic
dissemination of audited financial statements, including financial statements published electronically on your
website, you understand that electronic sites are a means to distribute information and, therefore, we are not
required to read the information contained in these sites or to consider the consistency of other information in
the electronic site with the original document. Suttle & Stalnaker, PLLC consents to the use of audited financial
statements and reports as described in the foregoing.

Engagement Administration, Fees, and Other

You may request that we preform additional services not addressed in this engagement letter. If this occurs, we
will communicate with you regarding the scope of the additional services and the estimated fees. We also may
issue a separate engagement letter covering the additional services. In the absence of any other written
communication from us documenting such additional services, our services will continue to be governed by the
terms of this engagement letter. Qur engagement ends on delivery of our audit report. Any follow-up services
that might be required wili be a separate new engagement. The terms and conditions of that new engagement
will be governed by a new specific engagement letter for that service.

We understand that your employees will prepare all cash, accounts receivable, or other confirmations and
schedules we request and will locate any documents selected by us for testing.

We will schedule the engagement based in part on deadlines, working conditions, and the availability of your key
personnel. We will plan the engagement based on the assumption that your personnel will cooperate and provide
assistance by performing tasks such as preparing requested schedules, retrieving supporting documents, and
preparing confirmations. If, for whatever reason, your personnel are unavailable to provide the necessary
assistance in a timely manner, it may substantially increase the work we have to do to complete the engagement
within the established deadlines, resulting in an increase in fees over our original fee estimate.



30

We will provide copies of our reports to the West Virginia Higher Education Fund, the West Virginia Council for
Community & Technical College Education, and the State of West Virginia; however, management is responsible
for distribution of the reports and the financial statements. Unless restricted by law or regulation, or containing
privileged and confidential information, copies of our reports are to be made available for public inspection.

The audit documentation for this engagement is the property of Suttle & Stalnaker, PLLC and constitutes
confidential information. However, subject to applicable laws and regulations, audit documentation and
appropriate individuals will be made available upon request and in a timely manner to representatives of the
cognizant or oversight agency or its designee, a federal agency providing direct or indirect funding, or the U.S.
Government Accountability Office for the purposes of a quality review of the audit, to resolve audit findings, or to
carry out oversight responsibilities. We will notify you of any such request. If requested, access to such audit
documentation will be provided under the supervision of Suttle & Stalnaker, PLLC’s personnel. Furthermore, upon
request, we may provide copies of selected audit documentation to the aforementioned parties. These parties
may intend or decide to distribute the copies or information contained therein to others, including other
governmental agencies.

The audit documentation for this engagement will be retained for a minimum of five years after the report release
date or for any additional period requested by the U.S. Government Accountability Office. If we are aware that a
federal awarding agency or auditee is contesting an audit finding, we will contact the party{ies) contesting the
audit finding for guidance prior to destroying the audit documentation.

Kelly Shafer, CPA is the engagement partner and is responsible for supervising the engagement and signing the
reports or authorizing another individual to sign them. We expect to begin our audit during June 2023 and to issue
our reports no later than October 1, 2023.

We generally base our fees on the time required at our regular rates for the services and personnel assigned plus
out of pocket costs and relevant computer charges. Our charges also include other appropriate factors, including
the difficuity of the assignment, the degree of skill required, time limitations imposed on us by others, the
experience and ability of the personnel assigned and the value of services to the client. Interim billings will be
submitted as work progresses and as expenses are incurred. Billings are due upon submissions. Our fee for the
services described In this letter will be the amount included in the master contract on file with the West Virginia
Higher Education Fund. The fee is based on anticipated cooperation from your personnel and the assumption that
unexpected circumstances will not be encountered during the audit.

We will attempt to minimize our fees consistent with quality work. The extent to which we can do this will depend
on your personnel offering us clerical and other assistance to prepare schedules, perform analyses, and provide
sources documents. Our fee estimate will be subject to adjustments based on unanticipated changes in the scope
of our work and/or the incomplete or untimely receipt by us of the information on the client participation list. All
other provision of this letter will survive any fee adjustment,

As an attest client, Suttle & Stalnaker cannot retain your documents on your behalf. This is in accordance with ET
1.295.143 of the AICPA Code of Professional Conduct. The college is responsible for maintaining its own data and
records.



31

Suttle & Stalnaker, PLLC utilizes Citrix's ShareFile system to exchange files with clients. ShareFile access is
restricted and unique User IDs will be provided to the College’s employees upon request. It is the Coliege’s
responsibility to promptly notify Suttle & Stalnaker, PLLC when an employee no longer requires access or is
terminated. ShareFile is used solely as a method of exchanging information and is not intended to store the
College’s information. Upon completion of the engagement, data and other content will be removed from the
ShareFile system. For multi-year engagements, completion of the engagement occurs when the deliverables are
completed for that year and this will occur annually.

Reporting

We will issue a written report upon completion of our audit of the College’s financial statements. Our report will
be addressed tc management and those charged with governance of the College. Circumstances may arise in
which our report may differ from its expected form and content based on the results of our audit. Depending on
the nature of these circumstances, it may be necessary for us to modify our opinions, add a separate section, or
add an emphasis-of-matter or other-matter paragraph to our auditor’s report, or if necessary, withdraw from this
engagement. If our opinions are other than unmodified, we will discuss the reasons with you in advance. If, for
any reason, we are unable to complete the audit or are unable to form or have not formed opinions, we may
decline to express opinions or issue reports, or we may withdraw from this engagement.

If circumstances occur related to the condition of your records, the availability of sufficient, appropriate audit
evidence, or the existence of a significant risk of material misstatement of the financial statements caused by
error, fraudulent financial reporting, or misappropriation of assets, which in our professional judgment prevent
us from completing the audit or forming an opinion on the financial statements, we retain the right to take any
course of action permitted by professional standards, including declining to express an opinion or issue a report,
or withdrawing from the engagement.

We will also provide a report (that does not include an opinion} on internal control related to the financial
statements and compliance with the provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements,
noncompliance with which could have a material effect on the financial statements as required by Government
Auditing Standards. The report on internal control and on compliance and other matters will state {1} that the
purpose of the report is solely to describe the scope of testing of internal control and compliance, and the results
of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control on compliance,
and (2) that the report is an integral part of an audit perfermed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards
in considering the entity’s internal control and compliance. The report will also state that the report is not suitable
for any other purpose. If during our audit we become aware that the College is subject to an audit requirement
that is not encompassed in the terms of this engagement, we will communicate to management and those charged
with governance that an audit in accordance with U.S. generally accepted auditing standards and the standards
for financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards may not satisfy the relevant legal, regulatory, or
contractual requirements.

Government Auditing Standards require that we provide you with a copy of our most recent external peer review
report and any letter of comment, and any subsequent peer review reports and letters of comments received
during the period of the contract. Qur 2020 peer review report accompanies this letter.

By signing this engagement letter, you authorize us to use the name of your entity in future proposals, as well as
to provide contact infermation for requested references.



32

We appreciate the opportunity to be of service to the College and believe this letter accurately summarizes the
significant terms of our engagement. If you have any questions, please let us know. If you agree with the terms of
our engagement as described in this letter, please sign the attached copy and return it to us.

Very truly yours,

St b,

Suttle & Stalnaker, PLLC

RESPONSE: This letter correctly sets forth the understanding of Southern West Virginia Community and Technical
College.

S. Dernekl Adhis-o

By:

Title:  Chief Finance Officer
Date: 06/21/2023

cc: Pamela Alderman, President

Robert Baldwin, Chairperson



33
10

Wlﬁh}’. PsC » Phuona (06 T29-1HTY MR0E1 125117 » Fas GA5E) 129-A758 1006 KI5-000
« Wk wrmigagepacom  Wvmber of SIVAM oo

K

- elley [Glalloway

- E’“i;h 38 sl 5 i S A S 21184
Cieviifred Padlic Aroosassanes and Sabvisor

Report am the Firm's System of OQuality Coatrol

To the Members of Sunke & Sialwaker, PLLC
and the Natieaal Peer Review Coanmties

We have reviewed the symen of qualiny eomrol for the accomnting and auditing practice of Sukle and Sealnaker,
PLLE (the firm) applicable 1o engagements not subject to PCAOB permanend inspection in effect for the yoar ended
Hl-:r 31, 2020, Owar peer review wies conducted i accordarsce with ihe Siandards for P:r.ﬁ:nﬂms and H:puﬂiq on
Peer Beviews exshlished by the Pesr Review Board of the American [nstiture of Cernfied Puahlse Accountants
{Standards),

A sumemary of the nature, objectives, scope, limilations of, and the procedures performed in a System Foview as
desenibed m the Standards may be foend ol www.sicpn o pesummary. The summary alss inclodes an explenstion
of how engagemeras identificd as nod performed or reponed in conformity with applicable professional standards, if
any, are evabuated by a poer devieswser 1o delerming B peer roview mbing.

Firm's Responsibility

The firm is resporsible for designing o sysiem of quality conirol and complying wah it 1o pravide he firm wilh
reasonable assurance of performing and reporting in confoematy svith spplicable professional standards im all
matevial respecis. The fimm is alse responsible for evabuating actions 1o promptly remediate engagements deemed as
not performed of repomed m confoemity with professional standards, whes appropriate, amd for remediating
wisaknesses in it system of quality control, i any,

Peer Reviewer's Responsibiliny

Our responsibility is to cxpress &n opinbon on the desagn of the sysiem of quadity comrod and the firm's compliance
therewith based on owr review.

Reguired Selections and Considerations

Engsgements selected for roview included engagements perfomeed wnder Govermment Aindiving  Srondonds,
including a complisnce audit under the Single Audit Act, and audits of enployes benel plans.

Az part of our review, we consadered rovicws by regualatary entities as communicaied by the firm, i applicable, @
deternuining the Rsture and cxtenil of our procedures.

Oipimbon

In oaur apensan, ihe sysens of qualiy control for the accouming and sudineg practice of Sulife & Sabnaker, PLLC
applicable to engagements not subject 1o PCACQE permarent inspectson in effect fie the year ended May 31, 2000,
has been switably desipmed snd complied with 1o provide the s with reasonable astirance of perfooming and
repodting in conformiry with applicabls professional standards ia all mascrial respects. Fimes can receive a mbimg of
jperss, pass with daficleacyfien) or fodl, Suitle & Sulaker, PLLE has roecived a poer review raimg of pass,

Alelley il i Aoy, 13

Ashland, Bermucky
Uheeernber 14, 2020

Pikeville, KY Cincinnati, OH



MANAGEMENT REPRESENTATION LETTER

34



' SOUTHERN

WY COMMUNITY & TECHMICAL COLLEGE

October 4, 2023

Sutthe & Stalnaker, PLLC

The Virginia Center, Suite 100
1411 Virginia Street, East
Charleston, West Virginka 25301

This representation letter is provided in connection with your audits of the financial statements of
Southern West Virginia Community & Technical College (the College], which comprise the respective
financial position of the business-type activities and the discretely presented component unit as of June
30, 2023 and 2022, and the respective changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows for
the years then ended, and the disclosures (collectively, the “financial statements”), for the purpose of
expressing opinions as to whether the financial statements are presented fairly, in all material respects,
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (U.5. GAAP).

Certain representations in this letter are described as being limited to matters that are material. tems
are considerad to be material, regardless of size, if they involve an omission or misstatement of
accounting information that, in light of surrounding circumstances, makes it probable that the judgment
of a reasonable person relying on the information would be changed or influenced by the omission or
misstaternent. An omission or misstatement that is monetarily small in amount could be considered
material as a result of qualitative factors.

We confirm, to the best of our knowledge and belief, as of October 4, 2023 the following
representations made to you during your audit.

Financial Statements

1. We have fulfilled our responsibilities, as set out in the terms of the audit engagement letter
dated June 20, 2023, including our respansibility for the preparation and fair presentation of the
financial staterments in accordance with U.5. GAAP and fcr preparation of the supplementary
information in accordance with the applicable criteria.

2. The financial statements referred to above are fairly presented in conformity with U5, GAAP
and include all properly classified funds and other financial information of the primary
government and all component units required by generally accepted accounting principles to be
included in the financial reporting entity.

Sputhern WV Community & Technical Collega | 100 College Drive, Logan, W 25601 | (866) T98-2821 | www.southernwy edu



36

3. We acknowledge our responsibility for the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal
control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

4. We acknowledge our responsibility for the design, implementation, and maintenance of internat
control to prevent and detect fraud.

5. The methods, significant assumptions, and data used in making accounting estimates and their
related disclosures are appropriate to achleve recognition, measurement, or disclosure that is
reasonable in accordance with U.S. GAAP,

6. Related party relationships and transactions, inciuding revenues, expenditures/expenses, loans,
transfers, leasing arrangements, and guarantees, and amounts recelvable from or payable to
related parties have been appropriately accounted for and disclosed in accordance with U.S.
GAAP.

7. Adjustments or disclosures have been made for all events, including instances of
noncompllance, subsequent to the date of the financial statements that would require
adjustment to or disclosure in the financlal statements.

- 8. Weare in agreement with the adjusting journal entries you have proposed, and they have been
posted to the accounts.

8. The effects of all known actual or possible litigation, claims, and assessments have been
accounted for and disclosed In accordance with 1.5, GAAP,

- 10. Guarantees, whether written or oral, under which the College is contingently ||able, if any, have
been properly recorded or disclosed.

11. Receivables recorded in the financial statements represent valid claims agalnst debtors for
transactions arising on or before the date of the statement of net position and have been
reduced to their estimated net realizable value.

12. We believe that the actuarial assumptions and methods used to measure net pension and net
other postemployment benefit liabilities and costs for financial accounting purposes are
appropriate in the circumstances.

13. We do not plan to make frequent amendments to our pension or other postretirement benefit
plans.

Information Provided
14. We have provided you with:
a. Access to all information, of which we are aware, that Is relevant to the preparation and
fair presentation of the financial statements, such as records, {including information

obtained from outside of the general and subsidiary ledgers), documentation, and other
matters.



15,

1s.

17.

18,

1.

20.

21,

22

37

b. Additienal information that you have requested from us for the purpose of the audit.

€. Unrestricted access to persons within the College from whom you determined it
necessary to obtain audit evidence.

d. Minutes of the meetings of the Board of Governors or summaries of actions of recent
meetings for which minutes have not yet been prepared.

All material transactions have been recorded in the accounting records and are refiected in the
financial statements.

We have disclosed to you the results of our assessment of the risk that the financial statements
may be materially misstated as a result of fraud.

We have no knowledge of any fraud or suspected fraud that affects the College and involves:
a. Management,
b. Employees who have significant roles in internal control, or
c. Others where the fraud could have a material effect on the financial statements.

We have no knowledge of any allegations of fraud or suspected fraud affecting the College’s
flnancial statements communicated by employees, former employees, regulators, or others,

We have no knowledge of instances of noncompliance or suspected noncompliance with
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, or grant agreements, or waste or abuse, whose effects
should be considered when preparing financial statements.

We have disclosed to you zll known actual or possible litigation, claims, and assessments whose
effects should be considared when preparing the financial staterments,

We have disclosed to you the names of the College’s related parties and all the related party
relationships and transactions, including any side agreements.

The following, if any, have been properly recorded or disclosed in the financial statements:

a. We have evaluated our lease agreements under the requirements of GASB No. 87, Leases,
and determined that the College has no material leases that are required to he recorded.

b. we have evaluated our agreements under the requirements of GASB No. 96, Subscription
Based Information Technology Agreements [SBiTAs), and determined that the College has no
material contracts that are required to be recorded.



23,

-3
h.

38

4

All significant estimates and material concentrations known to management which are
required to be disclosed In accordance with the AICPA’s Statement of Position 94-6,
Disclosure of Certain Significant Risks and Uncertainties. Significant estimates are estimates
at the date of the statement of net position which could change materially within the next
year. Concentrations refer to volumes of business, revenues, available sources of supply, or
markets for which events could occur which would significantly disrupt normal finances
within the next year.

Authaorized but unissued bonds and/or notes,
Risk financing activities.

Derivative financial instruments,

Special and extraordinary items.

Deposits and investment securities category of custodial credit risk.

We are responsible for making the accounting estimates included in the financial statements.
Those estimates reflect our judgment based on our knowledge and experience about past and
current events and our assumptions about conditions we expect to exist and course of action we
expect to take. In regard, adequate provisions have been made:

b.

To reduce receivables to their estimated net collectable amounts.
To reduce ohsolete, damaged, or excess inventorles to thelr estimated net realizable values.

To reduce investments, intangibles, and other assets which have permanently declined in
value to their realizable values.

For risk retention, including uninsured losses or loss retentions {deductibles) attributable to
events occurring through the date of this letter and/or for expected retroactive Insurance
premium adjustments applicable to periods through the date of this letter.

For pension obligations, post-retirement benefits other than pensions and deferred
compensation agreements attributable to employee services rendered through the date of
this letter,

For any material loss to be sustained in the fulfillment of, or from the inability to fulfill, any
service commitments,

For any material loss to be sustained as a result of purchase commitments.

For environmental cleanup obligations.



39

Government—Specific

24,

- 23,

26,

27.

28,

28.

30.

3L

32

33.

34.

as.

" 36.

There have been no communications from regulatory agencies concerning noncompliance with,
or deficiencies in, financial reporting practices.

We have taken timely and appropriate steps to remedy identlfied and suspected fraud, or
noncompliance with provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements that you
have reported to us, if any.

We have a process to track the status of audit findings and recommendations.

We have provided our views on reported findings, conclusions, and recommendations, as well
as our planned corrective actions, for the repart,

We have identified to you any previous audits, attestation engagements, and other studies
related to the objectives of the audit and whether related recommendations have been
implemented.

We have identified to you any investigations or legal proceedings that have been initiated with
respect to the period under audit.

The College has no plans or intentions that may materially affect the carrying value or
classification of assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilitles, deferred inflows of resources,
or net position.

We are responsible for compliance with the laws, regulations, and provisions of contracts and
grant agreements applicable to us, including tax or debt limits and debt contracts, and legal and
contractual provisions for reporting speclific activities in separate funds.

We have identified and disclosed to you all instances of identified and suspected fraud and
noncompliance with provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements that we
believe have a material effect on the financial statements,

There are no violations or possible viclations of budget ordinances, laws and regulations
{including those pertaining to adopting, approving, and amending budgets), provisions of
contracts and grant agreements, tax or debt limits, and any related debt covenants whose
effects should be considered for disclosure in the financial statements, or as a basis for
recording a loss contingency, or for reporting on noncompliance.

The College has satisfactory title to all owned assets, and there are no liens or encumbrances on
such assets nor has any asset been pledged as collateral,

The financial statements include all component units, appropriately present majority equity
interests in legally separate organizations and joint ventures with an equity interest, and
properly disclose all other joint ventures and other related organizations,

The financial stataments properly classify ail funds and activities, in accordance with GASRS No.
34, as amended,



37.

38.
39,

40,

41.

42,

43,

45,

46.

47,

48.

40

Ali funds that meet the quantitative criteria in GASBS Nos. 34 and 37 for presentation as major
are identified and presented as such and all other funds that are presented as major are
particularly important to financial statement users.

Components of net position {net investment In capital assets; restricted; and unrestricted) are
properly classified and, if applicable, approved.

Investments, derivative instrument transactions, and land and other real estate held by
endowments are proparly valued.

Provisions for uncollectible receivables have keen properly identified and recorded.
Expenses have been appropriately classified In or allocated o functions and programs in the
statement of revenues, expenses, and changes in net position, and allocations have been made

on a reasonable basis.

Revenues are appropriately classified in the statement of revenues, expenses, and changes in
net position within operating, non-operating or as other items.

Interfund, internal, and intra-entity activity and balances have been appropriately classifled and
reported.

. Deposits and investment securities and derlvative instrument transactlons are properly

classified as to risk and are properly disclosed.

Capital assets, including Infrastructure and intangible assets, are properly capitalized, reported,
and, if applicable, depreciated or amortized.

We have appropriately disclosed the College’s policy regarding whether to first apply restricted
or unrestricted resources when an expense is incurred for purposes for which both restricted
and unrestricted net position is available and have determined that net position is properly
recognized under the policy.

We acknowledge our responsibility for the required supplementary information (RS1}. The RSI is
measured and presented within prescribed guidelines and the methods of measurement and
presentation have not changed from those used in the prior perlod. We have disclosed to you
any significant assumptions and interpretations underlying the measurement and presentation
of the RSI.

As part of your audit, you provided routlne technical assistance and assisted with preparation of
the financial statements. We acknowledge our responsibility as it relates to those nonaudit
services, including that we assume all management responsibilities; oversee the services by
deslgnating an individual, preferably within senior management, who possesses suitable skili,
knowledge, or experience; evaluate the adequacy and results of the services performed; and
accept responsibility for the results of the services. We have reviewed, approved, and accepted
responsibility for the financial statements and related notes.



Ly

49, The financial statements inciude all fiduciary activities required by GASB No. 84, if any.

(D‘ %{;ﬂé@ M;{;{_.

Dr. Pamela Alderman, President

T

Velva Pennington, interim Chief Financial Officer




42

Southern West Virginia
Community and Technical College
Financial Statements
Years Ended June 30, 2023 and 2022
and

Independent Auditor's Reports

Suttle&  Setified
Sta In EkEr #.Lcj:cc:ﬁnrants

A Professional Limited Liability Company



43

SOUTHERN WEST VIRGINIA
COMMUNITY AND TECHNICAL COLLEGE

TABLE OF CONTENTS
Page
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 3-5
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (RSI) (UNAUDITED) 6-14
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Statements of Net Position 15
Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position 16
Statements of Cash Flows 17
Component Unit - Statements of Financial Position 18
Component Unit - Statements of Activities 19-20
Notes to Financial Statements 21-60
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
Schedule of Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability 62
Schedule of Pension Contributions 63
Schedule of Proportionate Share of the Net OPEB Liability (Asset) 64
Schedule of OPEB Contributions 65
Notes to Required Supplementary Information 66 - 69
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER
FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS
BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED
IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 70-71
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND RESPONSES 72

CORRECTIVE ACTION PLAN 73



44

|".jdﬁ1 e H'.I S Utt I e & :
/52 Stalnaker...

Certified Public Accountants

INDEPENDEMNT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Board of Governors
Southern West Virginia Community and Technical College
Mt. Gay, West Virginia

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Dpinions

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the business-type activities and discretely presented
component unit of the Southern West Virginia Community and Technical College {the College], a component
unit of the West Virginia Council for Community and Technical College Education, as of and for the years ended
June 30, 2023 and 2023, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the
College’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective
financial position of the business-type activities and the discretely presented component unit of the College as
of June 30, 2023 and 2022, and the respective changes in financial position, and where applicable, cash flows
thereof for the vears then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America.

We did not audit the financial statements of the Southern West Virginia Community College Foundation, inc.,
which is a discretely presented component unit of the College. Thase statements were audited by other auditors
whose report has been furnished to us, and our opinion, insofar as it relates to the amounts included for the
discretely presented financial statements of the Southern West Virginia Community College Foundation, Inc., Is
based solely on the repart of the other auditors.

Basis for Opinions

We conducted owr audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by
the Comptroller General of the United States. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described
in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. The financial
staterments of the Southern West Virginia Community College Foundation, Inc. were not audited in accordance
with Gowvernment Auditing Stondards. We are required to be independent of the College and to meet our other
ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit, We believe
that the audit evidence we have cbtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinions,

The Virginia Canter The Rivers Office Park Sunicrest Towne Centre Thie Somerville Bullding
1411 -,.-.Eq'.ma Strent, East 200 Star Avenus 453 Suncrest Towne Cenire Drive 500 58k Awenue

Suite 00 Suite 220 Salite 200 Euite 1

Charleston, WV 25301 Paricersburg, WV 26101 Margantown, WV 26505 Huntingtan, WY 25701
s 0K} E-4135 wun (D04 4B5-6584 sat (304) 4856584 wan (304) 525-0301

ran (304) 3438008 P (304 4850971 Fad (304] A85-0971 pE (3043 5221569



45

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the design,
implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or
events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the College’s ability to continue as a
going concern for twelve months beyond the financial statement date, including any currently known
information that may raise substantial doubt shortly thereafter.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’'s report that includes our
opinions. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and Government
Auditing Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements
are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would
influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and Government Auditing
Standards, we:

+ Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

o |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include
examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.

¢« Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the College’s internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

s Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the financial
statements,

¢ Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that
raise substantial doubt about the College’s ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable period
of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related matters
that we identified during the audit.



46

Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management's
discussion and analysis on pages 6 through 14, the schedule of proportionate share of the net pension liability,
schedule of pension contributions, schedule of proportionate share of the net OPEB liability {asset), and
schedule of OPEB contributions, and related footnotes on pages 62 through 69 be presented to supplement the
basic financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and, although not a part of the
basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be
an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational,
economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the reguired supplementary
information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which
consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the
information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and
other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements, We do not express an opinion
or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient
evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated October 4, 2023, on
our consideration of the College’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance
with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of
that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the College’s
internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed
in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the College’s internal control over financial
reporting and compliance.

St b,

Charleston, West Virginia
Qctober 4, 2023



47

SOUTHERN WEST VIRGINIA COMMURNITY AND TECHNICAL COLLEGE 6
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

Overview of the Financial Statements and Financial Analysis

Southern West Virginia Community and Technical College (the College)} presents its financial statements for the
fiscal years ended June 30, 2023 and June 30, 2022. The emphasis of discussions about these statements will be
an current year data. There are three financial statements presented: the Statements of Net Position; the
Statements of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position; and the Statements of Cash Flows. This
discussion and analysis of the College’s financial statements provides an overview of its financial activities for
the year and is required supplemental information. Since this analysis is designed to focus on current activities,
resuiting change and currently known facts, please read it in conjunction with the College’s basic financial
statements and the footnotes to these financial statements. Responsibility for the completeness and fairness of
this infermation rests with the College.

The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) establishes standards for the presentation format of
College financial statements. The current format places emphasis on the overall economic resources of the
College.

Statements of Net Position

The Statement of Net Position presents the assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, deferred inflows of
resources, and net position of the College as of the end of the fiscal year. The Statement of Net Position is a
point of time financial statement. The purpose of the Statement of Net Position is to present to the readers of
the financial statements a fiscal snapshot of the College. The Statement of Net Position presents end-of-year
data concerning assets (current and noncurrent), deferred outfiows of resources, liabilities {current and
noncurrent}, deferred inflows of resources, and net position. The difference between current and noncurrent
assets and liabilities is discussed in the footnotes to the financial statements.

From the data presented, readers of the Statement of Net Position are able to determine the assets available to
continue the operations of the College. They are also able to determine how much the College owes vendors
and lending institutions. The Statement of Net Position provides a picture of the net position and its availability
for College expenditures.

Net Position is divided into three major categories. The first category, net investment in capital assets, provides
the College’s equity in property, plant and equipment owned by the College. The next asset category is
restricted net position, which is divided into two categories, nonexpendable and expendable. The College does
not currently have nonexpendable restricted net position since all funds of this nature would be directed to the
Southern West Virginia Community College Foundation, Inc. The corpus of nonexpendable restricted resources
is only available for investment purposes. Expendable restricted net position is available for expenditure by the
College but must be spent for purposes as determined by donors and/or external entities that have placed time
or purpose restrictions on the use of the assets. The College does not currently have expendable restricted net
position. The final category is unrestricted net position. Unrestricted net position is available to the College for
any lawful purpose.



48

SOUTHERN WEST VIRGINIA COMMUNITY AND TECHNICAL COLLEGE 7
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

Condensed Schedules of Net Position
June 30,
(in thousands)

2023 2022 2021
Assets and deferred outflows
Current assets s 13,365  § 15651 S 14,759
Other noncurrent assets 55 116 70
Capital assets, net 26,977 27,311 27,817
Tatal assets 40,397 43,078 42,646
Deferred outflows of resources 443 399 647
Total S 40,840 5 43,477 S 43,293
Liabilities, deferred inflows and net position
Current liabilities s 3,272 $ 4,716 $ 3,663
Nencurrent liabilities 476 228 1,260
Total liabilities 3,748 4,944 4,923
Deferred inflows of resources 859 2,089 2,526
Net position
Net investment in capital assets 26,977 27,311 27,817
Unrestricted net position 9,256 9,133 8,027
Total net position 36,233 36,444 35,844
Total S 40,840 S 43,477 5 43,293

Total net position of the College decreased by $211 thousand from June 30, 2022 to June 30, 2023. Total net
position increased by $600 thousand from June 30, 2021 to lune 30, 2022. These changes are related to a
number of changes as described below:

s The total net position decreased in 2023 due to several factors, such as a decrease in nonoperating revenues
of $3.6 million offset by a decrease in operating expenses of $1.9 million and increase in operating revenues
of $1.2 million.

o The current ratio for fiscal years 2023 and 2022 is 4.1 and 3.3, respectively. The current ratio measures the
ability to meet short-term obligations. The current ratio is the most widely-used measure of liquidity.
Typically, current ratios range from 1 to 4.

+ The net working capital for the College was $10.1 million at the end of 2023. This is a decrease of $800
thousand from the previous year’s working capital of $10.9 million.



SOUTHERN WEST VIRGINIA COMMUNITY AND TECHNICAL COLLEGE
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023
Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position

The difference in total net position as presented on the Statement of Net Position is based on the activity
presented in the Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position. The purpose of the statement is
to present the revenues received by the College, both operating and non-operating, and the expenses paid by
the College, operating and non-operating, and any other revenues, expenses, gains and losses received or spent

by the Coliege.

Operating revenues are received for providing goods and services to the various constituencies of the College.
Operating expenses are those expenses paid to acquire or produce the goods and services provided in return for
the operating revenues, and to carry out the mission of the College. Revenues received for which goods and
services are not provided are reported as non-operating revenues, For example, state appropriations are non-
operating because they are provided by the Legislature to the College without the Legislature directly receiving

commensurate goods and services for those revenues.

Condensed Schedules of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position

Years Ended June 30,
{in thousands)
2023 2022 2021
Operating revenues 5 6,345 [ 5,102 5 4,964
Operating expenses 20,232 22,155 18,841
Operating loss {13,887) {17,053} {13,877}
Non-operating revenues 13,694 17,311 15,293
Capital payments on behalf 148 398 629
Other payments on behalf {166) {56) 185
Increase (decrease} in net position {211} 600 2,230
Net position - beginning of year 36,444 35,844 33,614
Net position - end of year S 36,233 S 36,444 S 35,844

increases in net position reveals the following explanations:

Operating Revenues

* For fiscal year 2023, operating revenues increased by approximately 24%. This was due to an increase in

state grant and contract revenue of 25%.

e State grant revenue increased by 25% in 2023; an increase of $900 thousand.

¢ Tuition and fee revenue increased by 5200 thousand, a 14% increase from the previous year.

49

A review of the individual revenue and expense categories and those items that contributed to the overall



50

SOUTHERN WEST VIRGINIA COMMUNITY AND TECHNICAL COLLEGE 9
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

Operating Expenses

For fiscal year 2023, the total cost of scholarships decreased $3.1 million, or 53%. The decrease is primarily
due to the distribution of the remainder of the student portion of higher education emergency relief funds
(HEERF) to students in 2022. Total HEERF disbursements to students totaled $2.8 million in 2022.

For fiscal year 2023, supplies and other services decreased approximately $268 thousand, or 6%. The
decrease is primarily due to 3 decrease in spending after a bulk of the higher education emergency relief
funds (HEERF} were spent in recent years.

Salaries and wages increased by $1.1 million, or 13%, and depreciation increased by $94 thousand, or 7% in
2023.

Non-operating Revenues

For fiscal year 2023, there was an increase in the amount of state appropriations. State appropriations
totaled $8.6 million and $8.2 million for fiscal years 2023 and 2022, respectively.

For fiscal year 2023, higher education emergency relief (HEERF) revenues decreased by $4.3 million. No
additional funds were awarded in fiscal year 2023. The College expended and recognized the remainder of
their HEERF funds in 2023,

For fiscal year 2023, investment income increased $392 thousand due to more favorable interest rates
during the year. Investment income was $20 thousand in fiscal year 2022.

For fiscal year 2023, the Higher Education Policy Commission made capital payments on behalf of the
College for $148 thousand. This was a decrease from the previous year of approximately $250 thousand.



SOUTHERMN WEST VIRGINLA COMMUMITY AND TECHNICAL COLLEGE
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

REVENUE BY SOURCE
Operating Revenue
Other Sources
Auxiliary 5o
0%
Tuition and
Fees [net)
5%
Federal Granis
5
State Grants
BE%
REVENUE BY SOURCE
Nonoperating Revenue
HEERF Aeveniug I stmant
T income
I%

Federal Pell
Grants
7%

Hate
Appropriations
63%

51

10



SOUTHERN WEST VIRGINIA COMMUNITY AND TECHNICAL COLLEGE
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

52

11

Dperating Expenses
Years Ended June 30,
{in thousands)
(2022 to {2022 to
2023) 2023)
Increase Percent
2023 2022 2021 {Decrease] Change
Cperating expense
Imstruction N & 498G 5 5326 5 1,134 227 %
Academic suppart 781 B81 1,061 {120) 111.4)%
Student services 1,032 1,642 1,573 {610} (37.2)%
Public service 11 L1 437 {344} 196.9)%
Operations & malntenance plant 3,651 1,627 1,780 2,064 127.0%
Institutional support 4,274 5,354 3,640 {1,080]) 1202 %
Financial aid 2,724 g, 793 3,625 {3,069) (53.0)%
Auxiliary - 7 4 (7] (100.0)%
Depreciation 1,531 1,437 1,325 G4 6o %
Other 68 73 70 (5] {6.9)%
Taotal 5 20232 % 22,158 5 18841 5 (1,923) 18.71%
The following is a graphic illustration of fiscal year 2023 operating expenses:
| OPERATING EXPENSES
Auxiliary Depr:ialinn 'D::I:r lnsl;'.u.::hn
Enterprises
0%
Student
Fimancial Aid Pubiic Service
13%
Operations and
Maintenance of Academic
Plant Support
185 4%
Student Servioes
Institutianal S0
Support

1%




53

SOUTHERN WEST VIRGINIA COMMUNITY AND TECHNICAL COLLEGE 12
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023
Statements of Cash Flows

The final statement presented by the College is the Statement of Cash Flows. The Statement of Cash Flows
presents detailed information about the cash activity of the College during the year. The statement is divided
into five parts. The first part deals with operating cash flows and shows the net cash used by the operating
activities of the College. The second section reflects cash flows from noncapital financing activities. This section
reflects the cash raceived and spent for non-operating, non-investing, and non-capital financing purposes. The
third section deals with cash flows from capital and related financing activities. This section deals with the cash
used for the acquisition and construction of capital and related items. The fourth section reflects the cash flows
from investing activities and shows the purchases, proceeds, and interest received from investing activities. The
fifth section reconciles the net cash used in operations to the operating income or loss reflected on the
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position,

Condensed Schedules of Cash Flows
Years Ended June 30,
(in thousands)

2023 2022 2021
Cash provided {used) by:
Operating activities s (14,680) S (16,144} § {14,043)
Noncapital financing activities 13,073 17,393 14,453
Capital and related financing activities {1,126) (530} {160)
[nvesting activities 412 20 20
Net change in cash {2,321} 739 270
Cash, beginning of year 15,210 14,471 14,201

Cash, end of year ] 12,889 $ 15,210 § 14,471




54

SOUTHERN WEST VIRGINIA COMMUNITY AND TECHNICAL COLLEGE 13
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

Capital Asset and Debt Administration

Capital Assets, Net
June 30,
(in thousands)
(2022 to {2022 to
2023) 2023)
Increase Percent
2023 2022 2021 {Decrease) Change
Capital Assets

Land and Improvements  § 1,563 s 1,563 S 1,563 S - - %
Construction in Progress - - 538 - - %
Buildings 43,939 43,432 42,506 507 12%
Equipment 4,072 6,136 5,650 {2,064) (33.6)%
Library Holdings 3,933 3,938 3,942 (5) {0.1)%
Total 53,507 55,065 54,199 {1,552} (2.8)%
Less: Accum Depreciation (26,530} {27,758) (26,382) 1,228 4.4 %
Net Capital Assets S 26,977 S 27,311 S 27,817 $ (334) (1.2)%

Capital assets net decrease of $334 thousand was a result of current year additions offset by depreciation and
retirements.

At June 30, 2023, the College had no significant outstanding contractual commitments for property, plant and
equipment expenditures.

Readers interested in more detailed information regarding capital assets should review the accompanying
note 5 to the financial statements.

Economic Outlook

The economic outlock for West Virginia (the State), and particularly the College’s service area, continues to
present challenges, The State has experienced a gradual population decrease of approximately 3% per year since
2009. Over that same time period, the College’s service area experienced a population decrease of
approximately 16%. The State also has one of the nation’s oldest populations, and the age distribution is
expected to skew toward older age groups in the coming years. The State’s college matriculation rate has also
experienced a decline over the last several years and dropped to just 46% in 2021. The College’s service area has
a matriculation rate of only 43%.

These challenges also present opportunities, The College’s Early College Academy has been wildly successful
over the past three years in Logan and Mingo counties, and continued expansion of the Academy is expected
over the next few years. The Early College Academy not only provides the opportunity to earn college credit
while still in high schoel, but it introduces many students who may not view college as an option to college
coursework. The College anticipates the Early College Academy will assist with the increase in matriculation
rates across the College’s service area.



55

SOUTHERN WEST VIRGINIA COMMUNITY AND TECHNICAL COLLEGE 14
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

The College has also adapted its program offerings to the needs of our workforce, Programs such as Commercial
Driver's License, Lineman, and Cosmetology have been successful, and the College’s Nursing program has
expanded to a weekend option to help meet employer demand. Due to the aging population in the College’s
service area, the healthcare industry job outlook remains strong. The College’s programming aims to meet the
demand with our Nursing, Radiological Tech, Surgical Tech and other Allied Health programs.

State appropriations have been steady over the past few years after a decade of fluctuation. The State recently
codified their first higher education funding model for community & technical colleges, which will assist the
College with predicting future appropriations. While economic performance is expected to remain variable
across the State, tax collections from natural gas extraction should help the State budget remain relatively flat.

Requests for Information

The financial report is designed to provide an overview of the finances of the College for those with an interest
in this organization. Questions concerning any of the information provided in this report or requests for
additional financial information should be addressed to the Southern West Virginia Community and Technical
College at 100 College Drive, Logan, West Virginia 25601, For additional information on the Southern West
Virginia Cornmunity College Foundation, inc. please see their separately issued financial statements.



SOUTHERN WEST VIRGINIA COMMUNITY AND TECHNICAL COLLEGE

STATEMENTS OF NET POSITION
JUNE 30, 2023 AND 2022

ASSETS AND DEFERRED OUTFLOWS

CURRENT ASSETS:
Cash and cash equivalents

Accounts receivable, net of allowance for doubtful accounts

Due from the Commission/Council
Due from Federal Government
Prepaid expenses

Total current assets

NONCURRENT ASSETS:
Other accounts receivable
Net other postemployment henefit (OPEB) assat
Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation
Total noncurrent assets

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES:
Deferred outflows relating to pension
Deferred outftows relating to OPEB

Total deferred outflows of resources

TOTAL

LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS, AND NET POSITION

CLRRENT LIABILITIES:

Accounts payable
Cue to other State agencies
Cue to other governments
Accrued liabifities
Compensated absences
Unearned revenue

Total current liabilities

NONCURRENT LIABILITIES:
Net other postemployment benefit (OPEB} liability
Net pensicn liabiiity
Total noncurrent liabilities

DEFERRED INFLOWS QF RESOURCES:
Deferred inflows retating to pension
Deferred inflows relating to OPEB

Totat deferred inflows of resources

NET POSITION:
Met investment in capital assets
Unrestricted net pasition
Total net position

TOTAL

The Accompanying Notes Are An integral
Part Of These Financial Statements

56
15

2023 2022
$ 12,888,813 $ 15,209,798
314,643 141,182
159,765 297,395

- 496

2,251 2,333
13,365,472 15,651,204
55,355 63,264

- 52,134

26,976,896 27,310,632
27,032,251 27,426,030
99,365 111,952
343,372 287,357
422,767 395,300

$ 40,840,490 5 43,476,543
5 24,117 8 54,962
7,309 20,852
284,740 285,940
796,120 1,350,954
656,963 575,296
1,503,073 2,427,726
3,272,322 4,715,740
197,013 -
279,301 228,228
476,314 228,228
105,895 248,048
752,895 1,840,937
858,790 2,088,985
26,576,856 27,310,632
9,256,168 9,132,958
36,233,064 36,443,580
4 40,840,480 § 43,476,543




57

SOUTHERN WEST VIRGINIA COMMUNITY AND TECHNICAL COLLEGE 16
STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION
YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2023 AND 2022

2023 2022
OPERATING REVENLIES:
Student tuition and fees, net of scholarship allowance of $3,748,533 and $3,426,410
for 2023 and 2022, respactively S 160985 S5 1414778
Contracts and grants:
Federal 150,237 125,382
State 4,286,707 3,426,669
Auwiliary enterprise revenue 12,765 62,615
Miscellaneous, net 285,309 68,285
Total operating revenues 6,345,484 5,101,733
OPERATING EXPENSES:
Salaries and wages 9,686,624 8,538,457
Benefits 1,360,531 1,254,380
Supplies and ather services 4,036,193 4,304,174
Utilities 826,008 754,656
Student financial aid - scholarships and fellowships 3,724,043 5,793 455
Depreciation 1,531,286 1,436,816
Fees assessed by the Commission for operations 67,533 73,000
Totat operating expenses 20,232,218 22,154,938
OPERATING LOSS (13,886,734} {17,053,205)
RONOPERATING REVENUES:
State appropriations 8,557,086 8,241,823
Gifts 76,500 44,030
Investment income 412,422 15,940
federal Pell grants 3,753,781 3,745,591
Higher education emergency relief fund (HEERF} revenue 971,060 5,257,046
Other nonoperating revenues {expenses) (76,435} 2,147
Total nonoperating revenues 13,694,414 17,310,577
INCREASE (DECREASE) IN NET POSITIOM BEFORE OTHER REVENUES, EXPENSES, GAINS, OR LOSSES (192,320} 257,372
CAPITAL PAYMENTS MADE AND EXPENSES INCURRED ON BEHALF OF THE COLLEGE 147,537 398,141
PAYMENTS MADE AND EXPENSES (OFFSET) INCURRED BY THE STATE ON BEHALF OF THE COLLEGE {165,743) {56,414}
INCREASE {DECREASE) IN NET POSITION (210,526) 599,099
NET POSITION - Beginning of year 36,443,550 35,844,491
NET POSITION - End of year $ 36,233,064 $ 36,443,580

The Accompanying Notes Are An Integral
Part Of These Financial Statements



58

SOUTHERN WEST VIRGINIA COMMUNITY AND TECHNICAL COLLEGE 17
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2023 AND 2022

2023 2022
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Cash received from student tuition and fees 5 1,436,405 5 1,355,565
Cash received from contracts and grants 3,921,207 4,240,323
Payments to and on bahalf of employees (12,527,562) {11,001,205}
Payments to suppliers {4,180,583) (4,248,765}
Payments to utllities 826,008} {754,656)
Payments for schotarships and fellowships {2,724,043) {5,793,455}
Auxiliary enterprise charges 12,765 62,615
Fees assessed by Commission {67,533} (73,000
Other receipts, net 285,909 68,288
Net cash used in operating activities {14,679,853) (16,143,888}
CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
State appropriations 8,557,086 8,241,823
Federal student loan program - direct lending receipts 1,662,869 1,765,613
Federal student loan program - direct lending payments {1,662,359) {1,765,613}
Gifts 78,500 44,030
Pell grants 3,753,781 3,745,591
Higher educatlon emergency relief fund (HEERF) revanue 685,527 5,361,772
Net cash provided by noncapital financing activities 13,072,854 17,393,216
CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Purchases of capital assets (1,127,669} [532,247)
C(ther nonoperating revenues [expenses} 1,221 2,147
Net cash used in capital financing activities (1,126,448} (530,100)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Interast on investments 412,422 19,940
Met cash provided by investing activities 412,422 15,940
INCREASE [DECREASE} IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS {2,320,985} 739,167
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - Beginning of year 15,209,798 14,470,631
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - End of year $ 12,888,813 S 15,209,798
RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING LOSS TO NET CASH USED IN OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Cperating loss 5 {13,886,734) $ (17,053,205}
Adjustments o reconcile operating loss 1o net cash used in operating activities:
Depreciation expense 1,531,286 1,436,816
Pension expense {offset) - special funding situatton 51,479 {8,688)
OPEB expense (offset] - special funding situation {217,222) (47,726)
Changes In assets, deferred outflows of resources, lizbilities, and deferred inflows of rescurces:
Accounts receivable, net of allowance for doubtful accounts {173,461} (80,608}
Due frem the Commisston/Councit 137,630 {102,129)
Due from the Federal Government 4936 29,504
Prepaid expensas 82 571
C(ther accounts receivable 7,509 6,303
Deferred outflows of rescurces {43,458) 247,274
Accounts payable {30,845} {36,650)
Oue to other State agencies {13,543) {56,830)
Due to other governments {1,200) -
Accrued Habitities {554,844) 125,464
Compensated absencas 81,667 50,603
QOther pastemployment benefit (OPEB} llability {asset) 248,147 (820,382)
Net pension liability 51,073 {263,094)
Unearned revenue {639,120) 835,522
Deferred inflows of resources (1,230,195} {436,594}
Net cash used in aperating activities $ (14,679,853} 5 (15,143,889)
NONCASH TRANSACTIONS:
Capital payments made and expenses incurred on behalf of the College $ 147,537 S 398,141

The Accompanying Notes Are An Integral
Part Of These Financial Statements



59

STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL FOSITION

DECEMBER 31, 2022 AND 2031

The Accompanying Motes Are An Integral
Part OF These Financial Statements



60

SOUTHERN WEST WIRGINLA COMMUNITY COLLEGE FOUNDATION, INC. 1G9
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
YEAR EMDED DECEMELR 31, 2022

The Accomparying Noles Are An Integral
Part Of These Financial Statements



61

SOUTHERN WEST VIRGIMIA COMMUNITY COLLEGE FOUNDATION, INC 20
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

WEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021

The Accompanying Motes Are An Integral
Part Of These Financial Statements.



62

SOUTHERN WEST VIRGINIA COMMUNITY AND TECHNICAL COLLEGE 21
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2023 AND 2022

NOTE 1 - ORGANIZATION

Southern West Virginia Community and Technical College {the College) is governed by the Southern West
Virginia Community and Technical College Board of Governors {the Board). The Board was established by Senate
Bill 653 (S.B. 653).

Powers and duties of the Board include, but are not limited to, the power to determine, control, supervise and
manage the financial, business and educational policies and affairs of the institutions under its jurisdiction, the
duty to develop a master plan for the institution, the power to prescribe the specific functions and institution’s
budget request, the duty to review at least every five years all academic programs offered at the institution, and
the power to fix tuition and other fees for the different classes or categories of students enrolled at its
institution.

5.B.653 also created the Waest Virginia Higher Education Policy Commission (the Commission), which is
responsible for developing, gaining consensus around and overseeing the implementation and development of a
higher education public policy agenda. Senate Bill 448 gives the West Virginia Council for Community and
Technical College Educaticn (the Council) the responsibility of developing, overseeing and advancing the State's
public policy agenda as it relates to community and technical college education.

As a requirement of Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB} standards, the College has included
information from the Southern West Virginia Community College Foundation, Inc. {the Foundation).

Although the College benefits from the activities of the Foundation, the Foundation is independent of the
College in all respects. The Foundation is not a subsidiary of the College and is not directly or indirectly
controlled by the College. The Foundation has its own separate, independent Board of Directors. Morecver, the
assets of the Foundation are the exclusive property of the Foundation and do not belong to the College. The
College is not accountable for, and does not have ownership of, any of the financial and capital resources of the
Foundation. The College does not have the power or authority to mortgage, pledge, or encumber the assets of
the Foundation. The Board of Directors of the Foundation is entitled to make all decisions regarding the business
and affairs of the Foundation, including, without limitation, distributions made to the College. Under State law,
neither the principal nor income generated by the assets of the Foundation can be taken into consideration in
determining the amount of State-appropriated funds allocated to the College. Third parties dealing with the
College, the Board, and the State of West Virginia (the State) (or any agency thereof) should not rely upon the
financial statements of the Foundation for any purpose without consideration of all the foregoing conditions and
limitations.

The financial statements of the College have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America as prescribed by GASB. The financial statement presentation required
by GASB provides a comprehensive, entity-wide perspective of the College’s assets, deferred outflows of
resources, liabilities, deferred inflows of resources, net position, revenues, expenses, changes in net position,
and cash flows.



63

SOUTHERN WEST VIRGINIA COMMUNITY AND TECHNICAL COLLEGE 22
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2023 AND 2022

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Reporting Entity - The College is a blended component unit of the West Virginia Higher Education Fund and
represents a separate fund of the State of West Virginia that is not included in the State’s general fund. The
College is a separate entity which, along with all State institutions of higher education, the Council, and the
Commission (which includes West Virginia Network for Educational Telecomputing), forms the Higher Education
Fund of the State. The Higher Education Fund is considered a component unit of the State, and its financial
statements are discretely presented in the State’s comprehensive annual financial report.

The accompanying financial statements present all funds under the authority of the College. The basic criterion
for inclusion in the accompanying financial statements is the exercise of oversight responsibility derived from
the College’s ability to significantly influence operations and accountability for fiscal matters of related entities.
A related Southern Alumni Association (Alumni Association) of the College is not part of the College’s reporting
entity and is not included in the accompanying financial statements as the College has no ability to designate
management, cannot significantly influence operations of the entity and is not accountable for the fiscal matters
of the Alumni Association under GASB.

The audited financial statements of the Foundation are presented here as a discrete component unit with the
College financial statements in accordance with GASB. The Foundation is a private non-profit organization that
reports under FASB standards. As such, certain revenue recognition criteria and presentation features are
different from GASB revenue recognition criteria and presentation features. No modifications have been made
to the Foundation’s audited financial information as it is presented herein {see also Notes 8, 9 and 11).

Financial Statement Presentation - GASB establishes standards for external financial reporting for public
colleges and universities and requires that financial statements be presented on a basis to focus on the College
as a whole. Net position is classified into four categories according to external donor restrictions or availability of
assets for satisfaction of College obligations. The College’s net position is classified as follows:

*» Net investment in capital assets - This represents the College’s total investment in capital assets, net of
depreciation and outstanding debt obligations related to those capital assets. To the extent debt has
heen incurred but not yet expended for capital assets, such amounts are not included as a component of
net investment in capital assets,

e Restricted net position, expendable - This includes resources in which the College is legally or
contractually obligated to spend resources in accordance with restrictions imposed by external third
parties.

The West Virginia State Legislature, as a regulatory body outside the reporting entity, has restricted the
use of certain funds by Article 10, Fees and Other Money Collected as State institutions of Higher
Education of the West Virginia State Code. House Bill 101 passed in March 2005 simplified the tuition
and fee structure and removed the restrictions but included designations associated with auxiliary and
capital items. These activities are fundamental to the normal ongoing operations of the institution.
These restrictions are subject to change by future actions of the Waest Virginia State Legislature. The
College does not have any restricted expendable net position at June 30, 2023 or 2022.



64

SOUTHERN WEST VIRGINIA COMMUNITY AND TECHNICAL COLLEGE 23
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2023 AND 2022

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {Continued])

e Restricted net position, nonexpendable - This includes endowment and similar type funds in which
donors or other outside sources have stipulated, as a condition of the gift instrument, that the principal
is to be maintained inviolate and in perpetuity, and invested for the purpose of producing present and
future income, which may either be expended or added to principal. The College does not have any
restricted nonexpendable net position at June 30, 2023 or 2022.

s Unrestricted net position - Unrestricted net position represents resources derived from student tuition
and fees, state appropriations and sales and services of educational activities. These resources are used
for transactions relating to the educational and general operations of the College, and may be used at
the discretion of the Board of Governors to meet current expenses for any purpose. These resources
also include resources of auxiliary enterprises, which are substantially self-supporting activities that
provide services for students, faculty and staff.

Basis of Accounting - For financial reporting purposes, the College is considered a special-purpose government
engaged only in business-type activities. Accordingly, the College’s financial statements have been prepared on
the accrual basis of accounting with a flow of economic resources measurement focus. Revenues are reported
when earned and expenditures when materials or services are received. All inter-entity accounts and
transactions have been eliminated.

Cash and Cash Equivalents - For purposes of the statements of net position, the College considers all highly
liquid investments with an original maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents.

Cash and cash equivalents balances on deposit with the State of West Virginia Treasurer’s Office (the State
Treasurer) are pooled by the State Treasurer with other available funds of the State for investment purposes by
the West Virginia Board of Treasury Investments (BTI). These funds are transferred to the BT! and the BT is
directed by the State Treasurer to invest the funds in specific external investment pools in accordance with West
Virginia code, policies set by the BTI, and hy provisions of bond indentures and trust agreements, when
applicable. Balances in the investment pools are recorded at fair value or amortized cost which approximates
fair value. Fair value is determined by a third-party pricing service based on asset portfolio pricing models and
other sources in accordance with GASB. The BTl was established by the State Legislature and is subject to
oversight by the State Legislature. Fair value and investment income are allocated to participants in the pools
based upon the funds that have been invested. The amounts on deposit are available for immediate withdrawal
or on the first day of each month for the WV Short Term Bond Pool and, accordingly, are presented as cash and
cash equivalents in the accompanying financial statements.

The BTI maintains the Consolidated Fund investment fund, which consists of eight investment pools and
participant-directed accounts, three of which the Coliege may invest in. These pools have been structured as
multi-participant variable net asset funds to reduce risk and offer investment liquidity diversification to the Fund
participants. Funds not required to meet immediate disbursement needs are invested for longer periods. A more
detailed discussion of the BTI's investment operations pool can be found in its annual audited financial report. A
copy of that annual report can be obtained from the following address: 1900 Kanawha Blvd., E. Room E-122
Charleston, West Virginia, 25305 or http://www.wvhti.com.



65

SOUTHERN WEST VIRGINIA COMMUNITY AND TECHNICAL COLLEGE 24
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2023 AND 2022

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {Continued)

Permissible investments for all agencies include those guaranteed by the United States of America, its agencies
and instrumentalities {U.S. Government obligations); corporate debt obligations, including commercial paper,
which meet certain ratings; certain money market funds; repurchase agreements; reverse repurchase
agreements; asset-backed securities; certificates of deposit; state and local government securities (SLGS); and
other investments. Other investments consist primarily of investments in accordance with the Linked Deposit
Program, a program using financial institutions in West Virginia to obtain certificates of deposit, loans approved
by the legislature, and any other program investments authorized by the legislature,

Appropriations Due from Primary Government - For financial reporting purposes, appropriations due from the
State are presented separate from cash and cash equivalents, as amounts are not specific deposits with the
State Treasurer but are obligations of the State.

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts - It is the College’s policy to provide for future losses on uncollectible
accounts, contracts, grants, and receivables based on an evaluation of the underlying account, contract and
grant balances, the historical collectability experienced by the College on such balances and such other factors
which, in the College’s judgment, require consideration in estimating doubtful accounts.

Noncurrent Cash and Cash Equivalents, and Investments - Cash and cash equivalents that are (1} externally
restricted to make debt service payments and long-term loans to students, or to maintain sinking or reserve
funds, (2) to purchase capital or other noncurrent assets, or (3} permanently restricted net position, are
classified as a noncurrent asset in the accompanying statements of net position.

Capital Assets - Capital assets include property, plant and equipment and books and materials that are part of a
catalogued library. Capital assets are stated at cost at the date of acquisition or construction, or fair market
value at the date of donation in the case of gifts. Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method over
the estimated useful lives of the assets, generally 50 years for buildings and infrastructure, 20 years for land
improvements, 7 years for library holdings, and 5to 10years for furniture and equipment. The College’s
capitalization threshold is $5,000.

Unearned Revenue - Revenues for programs or activities to be conducted primarily in the next fiscal year are
classified as unearned revenue. Unearned revenue at the College primarily consists of grant funding not spent or
with unmet timing requirements and summer tuition collected in advance. Financial aid and other deposits are
separately classified as deposits.



66

SOUTHERN WEST VIRGINIA COMMUNITY AND TECHNICAL COLLEGE 25
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2023 AND 2022

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {Continued)

Compensated Absences and Other Postemployment Benefits (OPEB)} - GASB provides for the measurement,
recognition, and display of CPEB expenditures, assets, and liabilities, including applicable note disclosures and
required supplementary information. During fiscal year 2006, House Bill No. 4654 was established to create a
trust fund for postemployment benefits for the State. The College is required to participate in this multiple-
employer, cost-sharing plan, the West Virginia Retiree Health Benefit Trust Fund, sponsored by the State of
Woest Virginia. Details regarding this plan and its stand-alone financial statements can be obtained by contacting
the West Virginia Public Employees Insurance Agency (PEIA), 601 57" Street, SE, Suite 2, Charleston, WV 25304
or http://peia.wv.gov.

GASB requires entities to accrue for employees’ rights to receive compensation for vacation leave or payments
in lieu of accrued vacation or sick leave as such benefits are earned and payment becomes probable. The
College’s full-time employees earn up to two vacation leave days for each month of service and are entitled to
compensation for accumulated, unpaid vacation leave upon termination.

For purposes of measuring the net OPEB liability (asset), deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of
resources related to OPEB, and OPEB expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the State OPEB
Plan and additions to/deductions from the OPEB Plan’s fiduciary net position have been determined on the
same basis as they are reported by West Virginia Retiree Health Benefit Trust Fund (RHBT). For this purpose,
benefit payments are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are
reported at fair value. (See Note 6)

The estimated expense and expense incurred for the vacation leave or OPEB benefits are recorded as a
component of benefits expense in the statements of revenues, expenses, and changes in net position.

Net Pension Liability - For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources and
deferred inflows of resources related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net
position of the West Virginia Teachers’ Retirement System (STRS), administered by the West Virginia
Consolidated Public Retirement Board {CPRB), and additions to/reductions from the STRS fiduciary net position
have been determined on the same basis as they are reported in the STRS financial statements, which can be
found at https://www.wvretirement.com/Publications.htm#CAFR, The plan schedules of STRS are prepared
using the accrual basis of accounting and economic resources measurement focus in accordance with U.5. GAAP
as prescribed by GASB. Employer contributions are recognized when due and the employer has a legal
requirement to provide the contributions. Investments are reported at fair value. Detailed information on
investment valuation can be found in the STRS financial statements. Management of STRS has made certain
estimates and assumptions relating to emplover allocation schedules, and actual results could differ. (See
Note 7}

Deferred Outflows of Resources - Consumption of net position by the College that is applicable to a future fiscal
year is reported as a deferred outflow of resources on the statement of net position.

Deferred Inflows of Resources - An acquisition of net position by the College that is applicable to a future fiscal
year is reported as a deferred inflow of resources on the statement of net position.



67

SOUTHERN WEST VIRGINIA COMMUNITY AND TECHNICAL COLLEGE 26
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 20623 AND 2022

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {Continued)

Risk Management - The State’s Board of Risk and Insurance Management (BRIM) provides general, property and
casualty, and liability coverage to the College and its employees. Such coverage may be provided to the College
by BRIM through self-insurance programs maintained by BRIM or policies underwritten by BRIM that may
involve experience-related premiums or adjustments to BRIM.

BRIM engages an independent actuary to assist in the determination of its premiums so as to minimize the
likelihood of premium adjustments to the College or other participants in BRIM's insurance programs. As a
result, management does not expect significant differences between the premiums the College is currently
charged by BRIM and the ultimate cost of that insurance based on the College’s actual loss experience. In the
event such differences arise between estimated premiums currently charged by BRIM to the College and the
College’s ultimate actual loss experience, the difference will be recorded, as the change in estimate becomes
known,

In addition, through its participation in the West Virginia Public Employees Insurance Agency (PEIA)} and a third-
party insurer, the College has obtained health, life, prescription drug coverage, and coverage for job related
injuries for its employees. In exchange for payment of premiums to PEIA and the third-party insurer, the College
has transferred its risks related to health, life, prescription drug coverage, and job-related injuries.

Classification of Revenues - The College has ciassified its revenues according to the following criteria:

*» Operating revenues - Operating revenues include activities that have the characteristics of exchange
transactions, such as (1) student tuition and fees, net of scholarship discounts and allowances, (2) sales
and services of auxiliary enterprises, (3) most federal, state, local, and nongovernmental grants and
contracts, and (4) sales and services of educational activities.

* Nonoperating revenues - Nonoperating revenues include activities that have the characteristics of non-
exchange transactions, such as gifts and contributions, and other revenues that are defined as
nonoperating revenues by GASB, such as state appropriations, Federal Pell Grants, investment income,
and sale of capital assets (including natural resources).

*  Other revenues - Other revenues consist primarily of capital grants and gifts.

Use of Restricted Net Position - The College has not adopted a formal policy regarding whether to first apply
restricted or unrestricted resources when an expense is incurred for purposes for which both restricted and
unrestricted net position are available. Generally, the College utilizes restricted net position first, when
practicable.



68

SOUTHERN WEST VIRGINIA COMMUNITY AND TECHNICAL COLLEGE 27
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2023 AND 2022

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Federal Financial Assistance Programs - The College makes loans to students under the Federal Direct Student
Loan Program. Under this program, the U.S. Department of Education makes interest subsidized and
nonsubsidized loans directly to students, through institutions like the College. Direct student loan receivables
are not included in the College’s statements of net position as the loans are repayable directly to the U. 5.
Department of Education. In 2023 and 2022, the College received and disbursed 51,662,869 and $1,765,613,
respectively, under the Federal Direct Student Loan Program on behalf of the U, 5. Department of Education,
which is not included as revenue and expense on the statements of revenues, expenses, and changes in net
position.

The College distributes student financial assistance funds on behalf of the federal government to students under
the Federal Pell Grant, Supplemental Educational Opportunity Grant and College Work Study programs. The
activity of these programs is recorded in the accompanying financial statements. In 2023 and 2022, the College
received and disbursed $3,937,951 and 53,883,194, respectively, under these federal student aid programs.

Scholarship Allowances - Student tuition and fee revenues, and certain other revenues from students, are
reported net of scholarship allowances in the statement of revenues, expenses and changes in net position.
Scholarship allowances are the difference between the stated charge for goods and services provided by the
College, and the amount that is paid by students and/or third parties making payments on the student’s behalf.

Financial aid to students is reported in the financial statements under the alternative method as prescribed by
the National Assaciation of College and College Business Cfficers (NACUBO}. Certain aid such as loans and funds
provided to students as awarded by third parties are accounted for as a third-party payment (credited to the
student’s account as if the student made the payment). All other aid is reflected in the financial statements as
operating expenses or scholarship allowances, which reduce revenues. The amount reported as operating
expense represents the portion of aid that was provided to the student in the form of cash. Scholarship
allowances represent the portion of aid provided to the student in the form of reduced tuition. Under the
alternative method, these amounts are computed on a College basis by allocating the cash payments to
students, excluding payments for services on the ratio of total aid to the aid not considerad to be third party aid.

Government Grants and Contracts - Government grants and contracts normally provide for the recovery of
direct and indirect costs, subject to audit. The College recognizes revenue associated with direct costs as the
related costs are incurred. Recovery of related indirect costs is generally recorded at fixed rates negotiated for a
period of one to five years.

income Taxes - The College is exempt from income taxes, except for unrelated business income, as a
governmental instrumentality under Federal income tax laws and regulations of the Internai Revenue Service as
described in Section 115 of the Internal Revenue Code.

Cash Flows - Any cash and cash equivalents escrowed, restricted for noncurrent assets or in funded reserves
have not been included as cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of the statement of cash flows.



69

SOUTHERN WEST VIRGINIA COMMUNITY AND TECHNICAL COLLEGE 28
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2023 AND 2022

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {Continued)

Use of Estimates - The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect
the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liahilities at the date of the
financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenditures during the reporting period.
Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Risk and Uncertainties - Investments are exposed to various risks, such as interest rate, credit and overall
market volatility. Due to the leve! of risk associated with certain securities, it is reasonably possible that changes
in risk and values will occur in the near term and that such changes could materiaily affect the amounts reported
in the financial statements.

Reclossifications - Certain amounts in the June 30, 2022 financial statements have been reclassified to conform
to the 2023 presentation. The reclassifications had noc impact on net position or the change in net position.

Newly Adopted Statements Issued By GASB - The College implemented GASB Statement No. 91, Conduit Debt
Obligations, which is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2021, The requirements of this
Statement eliminate the existing option for issuers to report conduit debt obligations as their own liabilities,
thereby ending significant diversity in practice. The clarified definition will resolve stakeholders’ uncertainty as
to whether a given financing is a conduit debt obligation. Requiring issuers to recognize liabilities associated
with additional commitments extended by issuers and to recognize assets and deferred inflows of rescurces
related to certain arrangements associated with conduit debt obligations also will eliminate diversity or
inconsistency. This Statement requires issuers to disclose general information about their conduit debt
obligations, organized by type of commitment, including the aggregate outstanding principal amount of the
issuers’ conduit debt obligations and a description of each type of commitment. Issuers that recognize liabilities
related to supporting the debt service of conduit debt obligations also should disclose information about the
amount recognized and how the liabilities changed during the reporting period. The adoption of GASB
Statement No. 91 did not have a significant impact on the financial statements.

The College implemented GASB Statement No. 94, Public-Private and Public-Public Partnerships (PPPs) and
Availability Payment Arrangements APAs}, which is effective for fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2022. The
requirements of this Statement establish the definitions of PPPs and APAs and provide uniform guidance on
accounting and financial reporting for transactions that meet those definitions, but are outside of the scope of
Lease or Service Concession Arrangement guidance. That uniform guidance will provide more relevant and
reliable information for financial statement users and create greater consistency in practice. This Statement will
require governments to report assets and liabilities related to PPPs consistently and disclose important
information about PPP transactions. The required disclosures will allow users to understand the scale and
important aspects of a government’s PPPs and evaluate a government’s future obligations and assets resulting
from PPPs. The adoption of GASB Statement No. 94 did not have a significant impact on the financial
statements.



70

SOUTHERN WEST VIRGINIA COMMUNITY AND TECHNICAL COLLEGE 29
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2023 AND 2022

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {Continued)

The College implemented GASB Statement No. 96, Subscription-Based Information Technology Arrangements
{SBITA), which is effective for fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2022. The requirements of this Statement
establish a definition for SBITA, which is defined as a contract that conveys control of the right to use another
party's (a SBITA vendor's) information technology (IT} software, alone or in combination with tangible capital
assets {the underlying IT assets), as specified in the contract for a period of time in an exchange or exchange-like
transaction. Generally, this Statement will require a government to recognize a right-to-use subscription asset—
an intangible asset—and a corresponding subscription liability. The Statement also establishes guidance for the
treatment of costs related to SBITA activities other than subscription payments. Those activities are: Preliminary
Project Stage, Initial Implementation Stage, and Operation and Additional Implementation Stage, This Statement
also requires a government to disclose essential information about the arrangement such as the amount of the
subscription asset, accumulated amortization, other payments not included in the measurement of a
subscription liability, principal and interest requirements for the subscription liability. The adoption of GASB
Statement No. 96 did not have a significant impact on the financial statements.

The College implemented GASB Statement No. 99, Omnibus 2022, which has varying effective dates based upon
each provision ranging from being effective immediately to fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2023. The
requirements of this Statement address a variety of items, including specific provisions regarding the following
topics: (1) guidance and terminology updates on reporting derivative instruments that do not meet the
definition of either an investment derivative or hedging derivative, but are within the scope of GASB Statement
No. 53; (2) clarification of provisions of GASB Statement Nos. 87, 94, and 96; (3) extension of the period during
which the London Interbank Offered Rate (LIBOR)} is considered an appropriate benchmark interest rate; (4)
accounting for Suppiemental Nutrition Assistance Program (SNAP) benefits; {5) non-monetary transactions; (6)
clarification related to the focus of government-wide financial statements under GASB Statement No. 34; and (7)
terminology updates related to GASB Statement No. 63. The provisions effective during the current fiscal year
did not have an impact on the financial statements.

Recent Statements Issued By GASB - GASB has issued Statement No. 100, Accounting Chonges and Error
Corrections- an Amendment of GASB Statement No, 62, which is effective for fiscal years beginning after June 15,
2023. This Statement defines accounting changes as changes in accounting principles, changes in accounting
estimates, and changes to or within the financial reporting entity and describes the transactions or other events
that constitute those changes. Those changes include things like: certain changes in accounting principles,
certain changes in estimates that result from a justified or preferable change in measurement or new
methodology. This statement requires that changes in accounting principles and error corrections be reported
retroactively by restating prior periods; changes to or within the reporting entity be reported by adjusting
beginning balances of the current period; and changes in accounting estimates be reported prospectively by
recognizing the change in the current period. If the change in accounting principle is the result of a new
pronouncement the requirements only apply absent specific transition guidance in the pronouncement. Under
this standard it is also necessary to display the total adjustment to beginning net position, fund balance, or fund
net position on the face of the financial statements, by reporting unit. This statement also specifies both
qualitative and quantitative disclosure requirements. Lastly, this statement provides guidance for if and how
these changes should be reflected in required supplementary information and supplementary information. The
College has not yet determined the effect that the adoption of GASB Statement No. 100 may have on its
financial statements.



71
SOUTHERN WEST VIRGINIA COMMUNITY AND TECHNICAL COLLEGE 30
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2023 AND 2022

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {Continued)

GASB has issued Statement No. 101, Compensated Absences, which is effective for fiscal years beginning after
December 15, 2023. This statement modifies the criteria requiring a liability for compensated absences to be
recognized. Under this statement a liability must be recognized for leave that has not been used, or leave that
has been used but not yet paid in cash or settled through noncash means. Furthermore, the liability for leave
that has not been used is recognized if the leave is attributed to services already rendered, that accumulates,
and the leave is more likely than not to be used for time off or otherwise paid in cash or settled through noncash
means. If the leave is considered more likely than not to be settled through conversion to a defined benefit post-
employment benefit it should not be included in the liability for compensated absences. This statement also
specifies certain types of benefits where the liability is not recognized until leave commences or where the
liahility is not recognized until the leave is used. The statement also provides guidance for measuring the liability
and modifies the disclosure requirements allowing for disclosure of only the net change in the liability, and no
longer requiring disclosure of which governmental funds have been used to liquidate the liabilities. The College
has not yet determined the effect that the adoption of GASB Statement No. 101 may have an its financial
statements.

NOTE 3 - CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

The composition of cash and cash equivalents was as follows at June 30:

2023 2022
Cash on deposit with the State Treasurer/BTI S 12,873,249 S 15,196,444
Cash in bank 7,753 9,154
Cash on hand 7,811 4,200

$ 12,888,813 $ 15,209,798

Cash held by the State Treasurer includes $1,468,941 and $2,322,140 of restricted cash primarily for operating
grants as of June 30, 2023 and 2022, respectively.

The combined carrying amount of cash in the bank at June 30, 2023 and 2022 was $7,753 and $9,154, as
compared with the combined bank balance of $7,753 and $9,154, respectively. Any differences are primarily
caused by items in transit and outstanding checks. The bank balances were covered by federal depository
insurance as noted below or were collateralized by securities held by the State’s agent. Regarding federal
depository insurance, interest-bearing accounts are insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC)
up to $250,000.

Amounts with the State Treasurer were 512,873,249 and $15,196,444 as of June 30, 2023 and 2022, respectively. Of
these amounts $11,071,022 and $10,856,796 were invested in the WV Money Market Pool and the WV Short Term
Bond Pool as of June 30, 2023 and 2022, respectively. The remainder of the cash held with the State Treasurer was
not invested at June 30, 2023 and 2022.



72

SOUTHERN WEST VIRGINIA COMMUNITY AND TECHNICAL COLLEGE 31
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2023 AND 2022

NOTE 3 - CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (Continued)

Credit Risk - Credit risk is the risk that an issuer or other counterparty to an investment will not fulfill its obligations.
The following table provides information on the Standard & Poor’s rating of the investment pools as of June 30:

2023 2022
S&P S&P
External Pool Carrying Value Rating Carrying Value Rating
WV Money Market Pool $ 10,819,951 AAAmM $ 10,605,052 AAAM
WV Short Term Bond Pool 251,071  Not Rated 251,744 Not Rated

A Fund rated "AAAmM” has extremely strong capacity to maintain principal stability and to limit exposure to principal
losses due to credit, market, and/or liquidity risks. “AAAm” is the highest principal stability fund rating assigned by
Standard & Poor’s.

interest Rate Risk - Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of an
investment. All the amounts with the State Treasurer are subject to interest rate risk, The following table provides
information on the weighted-average maturities for the WV Money Market Pool:

2023 2022
WAM WAM
External Pool Carrying Value {Days) Carrying Value {Days)
WV Money Market Pool $ 10,819,951 29 $ 10,605,052 21

The following table provides information on the effective duration for the WV Shott Term Bond Pool:

2023 2022
Effective Effective
Duration Duration
External Pool Carrying Value {Days) Carrying Value {Days}
WV Short Term Bond Pool S 251,071 609 S 251,744 584

Other investment Risks - Other investment risks include concentration of credit risk, custodial credit risk, and
foreign currency risk. None of the BTI's Consolidated Fund’s investment pools or accounts is exposed to these
risks as described below.

Custodial Credit Risk - Custodial credit risk for investments is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the
counterparty to a transaction, the College will not be able to recover the value of the investment or collateral
securities that are in the possession of an outside party.



73

SOUTHERN WEST VIRGINIA COMMUNITY AND TECHNICAL COLLEGE 32
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2023 AND 2022

NOTE 3 - CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS {Continued)

Concentration of Credit Risk - Concentration of credit risk is the risk of loss attributed to the magnitude of a
Consolidated Fund pool or account’s investment in a single corporate issuer, The BTl investment policy prohibits
those pools and accounts permitted to hold corporate securities from investing more than 5% of their assets in any
one corporate name or one corporate issue,

Foreign Currency Risk - Foreign currency risk is the risk that changes in exchange rates will adversely affect the fair
value of an investment or a deposit. The College has no securities with foreign currency risk.

NOTE 4 - ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

Accounts receivable are as follows at June 30:

2023 2022
Student tuition and fees, net of allowance for doubtful accounts of
$395,170 and $259,194 in 2023 and 2022, respectively S 278,147 5 141,182
Other accounts receivable, net of allowance for doubtful accounts of
- and $-in 2023 and 2022, respectively 36,496 -

S 314,643 S 141,182




74

SOUTHERN WEST VIRGINIA COMMUNITY AND TECHNICAL COLLEGE 33

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2023 AND 2022

NOTE 5 - CAPITAL ASSETS

The following is a summation of capital asset transactions for the College for the years ended June 30:

Capital assets not being depreciated:
Construction in process
Land

Total capital assets not being
depreciated

Other capital assets:
Buildings
Equipment
Library holdings
Total other capital assets
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings
Equipment
Library holdings
Total accumulated depreciation
Other capital assets, net
Capital asset summary:
Capital assets not being depreciated
Other capital assets
Total cost of capital assets

Less accumulated depreciation

Capital assets, net

2023

Beginning Ending

Balance Additions Reductions Balance
3 -5 - S -5 -
1,563,470 - - 1,563,470
S 1563470 5 -5 - 5 1,563,470
$ 43,431,631 S 507,238 § - & 43,938,869
6,135,962 749,347 (2,813,994) 4,071,315
3,937,503 18,650 {23,216} 3,932,937

53,505,096 1,275,235 2,837,210 51943121

(19,133,385) {1,138,740) - (20,272,125)
(4,766,382) (358,469) 2,736,309 {2,388,542)
(3,858,167) {34,077} 23,216 {3.869,028)

(27,757,934) (1,531,286) 2,758,525 {26,529,695}

S 25747162 § (256051} 5 (77.685)5 25413426

$ 1,563,470 § -8 -$ 1,563,470
53,505,096 1,275,235 2,837,210) _ 51943121
55,068,566 1,275,235 {2,837,210) 53,506,591
(27,757,934) _ (1,531,286) 2,759,525 __ (26529 695)

S_27,310,632 §  {256,051) $ (77,685)$ 26,976,896



75

SOUTHERN WEST VIRGINIA COMMUNITY AND TECHNICAL COLLEGE 34
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2023 AND 2022

NOTE 5 - CAPITAL ASSETS (Continued)

2022
Beginning Ending
Balance Additions Reductions Balance
Capital assets not being depreciated:
Construction in process s 537,862 $ - S (537,862) & -
Land 1,563,470 - - 1,563,470
Total capital assets not being
depreciated $ 2101332 § - $  (537,862)$  1,563.470
Other capitzl assets:
Buildings S 42,506,311 $ 925,320 $ - $ 43,431,631
Equipment 5,649,830 513,161 {27,029) 6,135,962
Library holdings 3,941 233 29,769 {33.499) 3,937,503
Total other capital assets 52,097,374 1,468,250 {60,528) __ 53,505,096
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings (18,060,185) (1,073,200} - {19,133,385)
Equipment (4,468,008) (325,403) 27,029 (4,766,382)
Library holdings (3.853,453) {38,213} 33,499 {3,858.167)
Total accumulated depreciation (26,381,646} {1,436.816) 60,528 {27.757,934)
Other capital assets, net § 25715728 $ 31434 & -5 25747162
Capital asset summary:
Capital assets not being depreciated & 2,101,332 & -8 (537,862} 1,563,470
Other capital assets 52,097,374 1,468,250 {60,528) 53,505,096
Total cast of capital assets 54,198,706 1,468,250 {598,390) 55,068,566
Less accumulated depreciation {26,381 646) (1,436,816} 60,528 (27,757,934)
Capital assets, net $ 27817060 $ 31434 5 _ (337,862)$ 27,310.632

The College maintains certain collections of inexhaustible assets to which no value can be practically
determined. Accordingly, such collections are not capitalized or recognized for financial statement purposes.
Such collections include contributed works of art, historical treasures, and literature that are held for exhibition,
education, research, and public service. These collections are neither disposed of for financial gain nor
encumbered in any means.

At June 30, 2023, the College had no significant outstanding contractual commitments for property, plant and
equipment expenditures.



76

SOUTHERN WEST VIRGINIA COMMUNITY AND TECHNICAL COLLEGE 35
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2023 AND 2022

NOTE 6 - OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS
As related to GASB 75, following are the College’s net OPEB liability (asset), deferred outflows of resources and

deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB, revenues, and the OPEB expense and expenditures for the fiscal
years ended lune 30, 2023 and 2022:

2023 2022
Net OPEB liability (asset) S 197,013 $ (52,134}
Deferred outflows of resources 343,372 287,357
Deferred inflows of resources 752,895 1,840,937
Revenues {217,222) (47,726)
OPEB expense (offset) {862,576) {1,030,214)
Contributions made by the College 149,500 208,124

Plan Description

The West Virginia Other Post-Employment Benefit {OPEB} Plan {the Plan) is a cost-sharing, multiple employer,
defined benefit other post-empioyment benefit plan and covers the retirees of State agencies, colleges and
universities, county boards of education, and other government entities as set forth in the West Virginia Code.
Financial activities of the Plan are accounted for in the West Virginia Retiree Health Benefit Trust Fund (RHBT), a
fiduciary fund of the State established July 1, 2006 as an irrevocable trust. The Plan is administered by a
combination of the West Virginia Public Employees Insurance Agency (PEIA) and the RHBT staff. Plan benefits
are established and revised by PEIA and the RHBT management with the approval of the PEIA Finance Board.
The plan provides medical and prescription drug insurance, as well as life insurance, benefits to certain retirees
of State agencies, colleges and universities, county boards of education, and other government entities who
receive pension benefits under the PERS, STRS, TDCRS, TIAA-CREF, Plan G, Troopers Plan A, or Troopers Plan B
pension systems, as administered by the West Virginia Consolidated Public Retirement Board {CPRB). The plan is
closed to new entrants.

The Plan’s fiduciary net position has been determined on the same basis used by the Plan. The RHBT is
accounted for as a fiduciary fund, and its financial statements are prepared using the economic resources
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting in conformity with GAAP for fiduciary funds as
prescribed or permitted by the GASB. The primary sources of revenue are plan members and employer
contributions. Members' contributions are recognized in the period in which the contributions are due.
Employer contributions and related receivables to the trust are recognized pursuant to a formal commitment
from the employer or statutory or contractual requirement, when there is a reasonable expectation of
collection. Benefits and refunds are recognized when due and payable.

RHBT is considered a component unit of the State of West Virginia for financial reporting purposes, and, as such,
its financial report is also included in the State of West Virginia’s Annual Comprehensive Financial Report. RHBT
issues publicly available financial statements and required supplementary information for the OPEB plan. Details
regarding this plan and a copy of the RHBT financial repert may be obtained at www.peia.wv.gov.



77

SOUTHERN WEST VIRGINIA COMMUNITY AND TECHNICAL COLLEGE 36
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2023 AND 2022

NOTE 6 - OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS {Continued}
Benefits Provided
The Plan provides the following benefits:

s Medical and prescription drug insurance
¢ Life insurance

The medical and prescription drug insurance is provided through two options:

o Self-insured Preferred Provider Benefit Plan — primarily for non-Medicare-eligible retirees and spouses
e External Managed Care Qrganizations — primarily for Medicare-eligible retirees and spouses

Contributions

Employer contributions from the RHBT billing system represent what the employer was billed during the
respective year for its portion of the pay-as-you-go {paygo) premiums, retiree leave conversion billings, and
other matters, including billing adjustments.

Paygo premiums are established by the PEIA Finance Board annually, All participating emplovers are required by

statute to contribute this premium to the RHBT at the established rate for every active policyholder per month.
The paygo rates related to the measurement dates of June 30, 2022 and 2021 were:

July 2020-June 2021 July 2021-Ianuary 2022 February 2022-june 2022

Paygo premium S 160 S 116 S48

Members retired before July 1, 1997 pay retiree healthcare contributions at the highest sponsor subsidized rate,
regardless of their actual years of service. Members retired after July 1, 1997 or hired before June 30, 2010 pay a
subsidized rate depending on the member’s years of service. Members hired on or after July 1, 2010 pay retiree
healthcare contributions with no sponsor provided implicit or explicit subsidy.

Retiree leave conversion contributions from the employer depend on the retiree’s date of hire and years of
service at retirement as described below:

» Members hired before July 1, 1988 may convert accrued sick or annual leave days into 100% of the
required retiree healthcare contribution.

» Members hired from July 1, 1988 to June 30, 2001 may convert accrued sick or annual leave days into
50% of the required retiree healthcare contribution.



78

SOUTHERN WEST VIRGINIA COMMUNITY AND TECHNICAL COLLEGE 37
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2023 AND 2022

NOTE 6 - OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS {Continued)

The conversion rate is two days of unused sick and annual leave days per month for single healthcare coverage
and three days of unused sick and annual leave days per month for family healthcare coverage.

The College’s contributions to the OPEB plan for the years ended June 30, 2023, 2022, and 2021, were $149,500,
$208,124, and $319,568, respectively.

Assumptions

The June 30, 2023 QPEB liability (asset} for financial reporting purposes was determined by an actuarial
valuation as of June 30, 2021 and a measurement date of June 30, 2022. The following actuarial assumptions
were used and applied to all periods included in the measurement, unless otherwise specified:

¢ Inflation rate; 2.25%.

e Salary increase: Specific to the OPEB covered group. Ranging from 2.75% to 5.18%, including inflation.

s [nvestment rate of return: 6.65%, net of OPEB plan investment expense, including inflation.

e Healthcare cost trend rates: Trend rate for pre-Medicare per capita costs of 7.0% for plan year end
2023, decreasing by 0.50% for two years then by 0.25% each year thereafter, until ultimate trend rate
of 4.25% is reached in plan year end 2032. Trend rate for Medicare per capita costs of 8.83% for plan
year end 2023, decreasing ratably each year thereafter, until ultimate trend rate of 4.25% is reached in
plan year end 2032,

e Actuarial cost method: Entry age normal cost method.

* Amortization method: Level percentage of payroll over a 20-year closed period beginning June 30,
2017.

s Wage inflation: 2.75%.

+ Retirement age: Experience-based table of rates that are specific to the type of eligibility condition.
Last updated for the June 30, 2020 actuarial valuation.

e Aging factors: Based on the 2013 SOA Study “Health Care Costs — From Birth to Death”.

s Expenses: Health administrative expenses are included in the development of the per capita claims
cost. Operating expenses are included as a component of the annual expense.

» Mortality post retirement: Pub-2010 General Healthy Retiree Mortality Tables projected with MP-2021
and scaling factors of 100% for males and 108% for females.

* Mortality pre-retirement; Pub-2010 General Employee Mortality Tables projected with MP-2021 and
scaling factors of 100% for males and 100% for females.



79

SOUTHERN WEST VIRGINIA COMMUNITY AND TECHNICAL COLLEGE 38
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2023 AND 2022

NOTE 6 - OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (Continued)

The actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2021 valuation were based on the results of an actuvarial
experience study for the period July 1, 2015 to June 30, 2020,

The actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2021, refiects updates to the following assumptions which are reviewed at
each measurement date:

Projected capped subsidies;

Per capita claim costs;

Healthcare trend rates;

Coverage and continuance;

+ Percentage eligible for tobacco-free premium discount; and
» Retired employee assistance program participation

L

The long-term expected rate of return of 6.65% on OPEB plan investments was determined by a combination of
an expected long-term rate of return of 7.00% for long-term assets invested with the WV Investment
Management Board and an expected short-term rate of return of 2.50% for assets invested with the BTI.

The long-term expected rate of return on OPEB plan investments was determined using a building-block method
in which estimates of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of OPEB plan investment
expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. These ranges are combined to produce the
long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates of return by the target asset
allocation percentage. Target asset allocations, capital market assumptions (CMA), and forecast returns were
provided by the Plan’s investment advisors, including the West Virginia Investment Management Board {WV-
IMB). The projected nominal return for the Money Market Pool held with the BTl was estimated based on the
WV-IMB assumed inflation of 2.0% plus a 25 basis point spread.

The target allocation and estimates of annualized long-term expected returns assuming a 10-year horizon are
summarized below:

Long-term Expected

Asset Class Target Allocation Real Return
Global equity 55% 4.8%
Core plus fixed income 15% 2.1%
Core real estate 10% 4.1%
Hedge fund 10% 2.4%
Private equity 10% 6.8%

Single discount rate. A single discount rate of 6.65% was used to measure the total OPEB liability (asset). This
single discount rate was based on the expected rate of return on OPEB plan investments of 6.65%. The
projection of cash flows used to determine this single discount rate assumed that employer contributions will be
made in accordance with the prefunding and investment policies. Based on these assumptions, the OPEB plan’s
fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments of current
plan members. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on OPEB plan investments was applied to all
periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total OPEB liability (asset).



80

SOUTHERN WEST VIRGINIA COMMUNITY AND TECHNICAL COLLEGE 39
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEARS ENDED [UNE 30, 2023 AND 2022

NOTE 6 - OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS {Continued)

Sensitivity of the net OPEB liability {asset) to changes in the discount rate. The following presents the College’s
proportionate share of the net OPEB liability (asset) as of June 30, 2023 and 2022 calculated using the discount
rate of 6.65%, as well as what the College's net OPEB liability {asset) would be if it were calculated using a
discount rate that is one percentage point lower {5.65%) or one percentage point higher (7.65%) than the
current rate.

1% Decrease Current Discount Rate 1% Increase

(5.65%) (6.65%) (7.65%)
2023 5 506,399 S 197,013 S (68,405)
2022 279,756 (52,134) {327,697)

Sensitivity of the net OPEB liability (asset} to changes in the healthcare cost trend rate. The following presents
the College’s proportionate share of the net OPEB liability {(asset) as of June 30, 2023 and 2022 cakulated using
the healthcare cost trend rate, as well as what the College’s net OPEB liability (asset) would be if it were
calculated using a healthcare cost trend rate that is one percentage point lower or one percentage point higher
than the current rate.

1% Decrease Trend Rate 1% increase
2023 $ (112,006) $ 187,013 5 562,664
2022 (384,928) {52,134) 353,248

OPEB Liabilities {Assets), OPEB Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Infiows of
Resources Related to OPEB

The June 30, 2023 net OPEB liability (asset) was measured as of June 30, 2022, and the total OPEB liability {asset)
was determined by an actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2021, roiled forward to the measurement date of June
30, 2022, The June 30, 2022 net OPER liability (asset) was measured as of June 30, 2021, and the total OPEB
liability (asset) was determined by an actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2020, rolled forward to the measurement
date of June 30, 2021.

At June 30, 2023, the College’s proportionate share of the net OPEB liability was $264,502. Of this amount, the
College recognized $197,013 as its proportionate share on the statement of net position. The remainder of
$67,489 denotes the College’s proportionate share of net OPEB liability attributable to the special funding.

At June 30, 2022, the College’s proportionate share of the net OPEB liability (asset) was $(62,399). Of this
amount, the College recognized $(52,134) as its proportionate share on the statement of net position. The
remainder of $(10,265) denotes the College’s proportionate share of net OPEB liability (asset) attributable to the
special funding.



81

SOUTHERN WEST VIRGINIA COMMUNITY AND TECHNICAL COLLEGE 40
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2023 AND 2022

NOTE & - OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS {Continued)

The allocation percentage assigned to each participating employer and non-employer contributing entity is
based on its proportionate share of employer and non-employer contributions to OPEB for each of the fiscal
years ended June 30, 2022 and 2021. Employer contributions are recognized when due, At the June 30, 2022
measurement date, the College’s proportion was 0.177012624%, an increase of 0.001682874% from its
proportion of 0,175329750% calculated as of June 30, 2021. At the June 30, 2021 measurement date, the
College’s proportion was 0.175329750%, an increase of 0.001396712% from its proportion of 0.173333038%
calculated as of June 30, 2020.

For the year ended June 30, 2023, the College recognized OPEB expense {offset} of ${962,576). Of this amount,
$(745,354) was recognized as the College’s proportionate share of OPEB expense and $(217,222) as the amount
of OPEB expense attributable to specizal funding from a non-employer contributing entity. The College also
recognized revenue of $(217,222) for support provided by the State.

Far the year ended June 30, 2022, the College recognized OPEB expense {offset) of $(1,030,214). Of this amount,
5(982,488) was recognized as the College’s proportionate share of OPEB expense and ${47,726) as the amount
of OPEB expense attributable to special funding from a non-employer contributing entity. The College also
recognized revenue of 5(47,726) for support provided by the State.

At June 30, 2023 and 2022, deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB
are as follows.

Deferred Deferred
June 30, 2023 Qutflows of Inflows of
Resources Resources
Differences between expected and actual non-investment experience S - S 251,329
Changes in proportion and difference hetween employer contributions
and proportionate share of contributions 36,947 -
Net difference between projected and actual investment earnings 30,580 -
Changes in assumptions 126,345 500,576
Reallocations of opt-out employer changes in proportionate share - 950
Contributions after the measurement date 149,500 -

Total S 343,372 S 752,895




82

SOUTHERN WEST VIRGINIA COMMUNITY AND TECHNICAL COLLEGE 41
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2023 AND 2022

NOTE 6 - OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS {Continued}

Deferred Deferred

June 30, 2022 OQutflows of Inflows of

Resources Resgurces
Differences between expected and actual non-investment experience S - $ 359,124

Changes in proportion and difference between employer contributions

and proportionate share of contributions 79,233 -
Net difference between projected and actual investment earnings - 359,790
Changes in assumptions - 1,103,175
Reallocations of opt-out employer changes in proportionate share - 18,848
Contributions after the measurement date 208,124 -
Total S 287,357 $ 1,840,937

The College will recognize the $149,500 reported a2s deferred outflows of resources resulting from OPEB
contributions after the measurement date as a reduction of the net OPEB liability {asset) in the year ended
June 30, 2024. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources
related to OPEB will be recognized in GPEB expense as follows:

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, Amortization
2024 5 {571,652)
2025 (52,132}
2026 (9,208}
2027 73,969

$ {559,023}

Payables to the OPEB Plan

The College did not report any amounts payable for normal contributions to the OPEB plan as of June 30, 2023
and 2022.

NOTE 7 - RETIREMENT PLANS

Substantially all eligible full-time employees of the College participate in either the West Virginia State Teachers’
Retirement System {STRS} or the Teachers’ Insurance and Annuities Association - College Retirement Equities
Fund (TIAA-CREF), now known as TIAA. In years past upon full-time employment, each employee was required
to make an irrevocable selection between the STRS and TIAA-CREF. Remaining participants in the STRS are
permitted to make a one-time election to cease their participation in that plan and commence contributions to
the West Virginia Teachers’ Defined Contribution Plan. Contributions to and participation in this plan by College
employees have not been significant to date,



83
SOUTHERN WEST VIRGINIA COMMUNITY AND TECHNICAL COLLEGE 42
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2023 AND 2022

NOTE 7 - RETIREMENT PLANS (Continued)

Effective January 1, 2003, higher education employees enrolled in the basic 401{z} retirement plan with TIAA-
CREF have an option to switch to the Educators Money 401(a} basic retirement plan. New hires have the choice
of either plan. As of June 30, 2023, no College employees were enrolled in the Educators Money 401(a} basic
retirement plan.

The College’s total payroll for the years ended June 30, 2023, 2022, and 2021 was $9,897,790, $8,665,510, and
$8,412,024, respectively; total covered employees’ salaries in the STRS and TIAA-CREF were $327,715 and
$9,164,581 in 2023; $304,991 and $8,018,829 in 2022; and $412,627 and $7,554,402 in 2021.

DEFINED CONTRIBUTION PENSION PLAN

The TIAA-CREF is a defined contribution benefit plan in which benefits are based solely upon amounts
contributed plus investment earnings. Employees who elect to participate in this plan are required to make a
contribution equal to 6% of total annual compensation. The College matches the employees’ 6% contribution.
Contributions are immediately and fully vested. In addition, employees may elect to make additional
contributions to TIAA-CREF which are not matched by the College.

Total contributions te the TIAA-CREF for the vears ended June 30, 2023, 2022 and 2021 were $1,099,750,
$962,260, and $906,528, respectively, which consisted of equal contributions from the College and covered
employees in 2023, 2022, and 2021 of $549,875, $481,130, and $453,264, respectively.

DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN

Some employees of the College are enrolled in a defined benefit pension plan, the STRS plan, which is
administered by the West Virginia Consolidated Public Retirement Board (CPRB}.

Following is the College’s pension liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources
related to pensions, revenues, and the pension expense and expenditures for the fiscal years ended June 30:

STRS 2023 2022
Net pension liability S 279,301 $ 228228
Deferred outflows of resources 99,395 111,952
Deferred inflows of resources 105,895 248,048
Revenues 51,479 (8,688)
Pension expense (offset) 28,812 (53,938)

Contributions made by the College 49,157 45,749



84

SOUTHERN WEST VIRGINIA COMMUNITY AND TECHNICAL COLLEGE 43
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2023 AND 2022

NOTE 7 - RETIREMENT PLANS (Continued)
Plan Description

STRS is a multiple employer, defined benefit, cost sharing, public employee retirement system providing
retirement benefits as well as death and disability benefits. It covers all full-time employees of the 55 county,
public school systems in the State of West Virginia and certain personnel of the 13 State-supported institutions
of higher education, State Department of Education, and the Higher Education Policy Commission hired prior to
July 1, 1991. Employees of the State-supported institutions of higher education and the Higher Education Policy
Commission hired after 1991 are required to participate in the Higher Education Retirement System. STRS closed
membership to new hires effective July 1, 1991. However, effective July 1, 2005, all new employees hired for the
first time are required to participate in STRS.

STRS is considered a component unit of the State of West Virginia for financial reporting purposes, and, as such,
its financial report is alsc included in the State of West Virginia’s Annual Comprehensive financial Report. STRS
issues a publicly available annual comprehensive financial report that includes financial statements and required
supplementary information for the plan. A copy of the report may be obtained from the STRS website at
https:/fwww.wvretirement.com/Publications.htmI#CAFR

Benefits Provided

STRS provides retirement, death, and disability benefits. A member is eligible for normal retirement at age 60
with five years of service, age 55 with 30 years of service or any age with 35 years of service. A member may
retire with 30 years of credited service at any age with the pension reduced actuarially if the member retires
before age 55. Terminated members with at least five, but less than 20, years of credited service who do not
withdraw their accumulated contributions are entitled to a deferred retirement commencing at age 62.
Retirement benefits are equivalent to 2% of average annual salary multiplied by years of service. Average salary
is the average of the five highest fiscal years of earnings during the last 15 fiscal years of earnings. Chapter 18,
Article 7A of the West Virginia State Code assigns the authority to establish and amend the provisions of the
plan, including contribution rates, to the State Legislature.

Contributions

The funding objective of the CPRB pension trust funds is to meet long-term benefit requirements through
contributions, which remain relatively level as a percent of member payroll over time, and through investment
earnings. Contribution requirements are set by the CPRB. A member who withdraws from service for any cause
other than death or retirement may request that the accumulated employee contributions plus interest be
refunded.

Member Contributions: STRS funding policy provides for member contributions based on 6% of members’ gross
salary. Contributions as a percentage of payroll for members and employers are established by State law and are
not actuariaily determined.



85

SOUTHERN WEST VIRGINIA COMMUNITY AND TECHNICAL COLLEGE 44
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2023 AND 2022

NOTE 7 - RETIREMENT PLANS {Continued)

Employer Contributions: The $tate (including institutions of higher education) contributes:

15% of gross salary of their State-employed members hired prior to July 1, 1991;

7.5% of the gross salary of their STRS covered employees hired for the first time after july 1, 2005 and
for those TDCRS members who elected to transfer to STRS effective July 1, 2008;

a certain percentage of fire insurance premiums paid by State residents; and

under WV State code section 18-9-A-6a, an amount determined by the State Actuary as being needed to
eliminate the STRS unfunded liability within 40 years of June 30, 1994, As of June 30, 2023 and 2022,
respectively, the College’s proportionate share attributable to this special funding subsidy was $51,479
and $(8,688).

The College’s contributions to STRS for the years ended June 30, 2023, 2022, and 2021, were $49,157, 545,749,
and $61,894, respectively.

Assumptions

The total pension liabilities for financial reporting purposes were determined by actuarial valuations as of July 1,
2021 and 2020 and rolled forward to June 30, 2022 and 2021, respectively. The following actuarial assumptions
were used and applied to the current period measurement:

® & & & » & @

Actuarial cost method: Entry age normal cost with level percentage of payroll.

Asset valuation method: Investments are reported at fair (market) value.

Amortization method and period: Level dollar, fixed period over 40 years, from July 1, 1994 through
fiscal year 2034,

Investment rate of return: 7.25%, net of pension plan administrative and investment expenses.
Projected salary increases: Teachers 2.75-5.90% and non-teachers 2.75-6.50%, based on age.

Inflation rate: 2.75%.

Discount rate: 7.25%.

Mortality rates based on Pub-2010 Mortality Tables.

Withdrawal rates: State 7.00-35.00% and nonstate 2.30-18.00%.

Disability rates: 0.004-0.563%.

Retirement age: An age-related assumption is used for participants not yet receiving payments.
Retirement rates: 15.00-100.00%.

Ad hoc cost-of-living increases in pensions are periodically granted by the Legislature. However, the
retirement system makes no automatic provision for such increases.

Experience studies are performed at least once in every five-year period. The most recent experience study
covered the period from July 1, 2014 to June 30, 2019. These assumptions will remain in effect for valuation
purposes until such time as the CPRB adopts revised assumptions.



86

SOUTHERN WEST VIRGINIA COMMUNITY AND TECHNICAL COLLEGE 45
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2023 AND 2022

NOTE 7 - RETIREMENT PLANS (Continued)

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using the building-block
method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of pension
plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. These ranges are combined to
produce the iong-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates of return by the
target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation. Best estimates of the long-term geometric
real rates of return for each major asset class included in STRS' target asset allocation as of June 30, 2022 and
2021, are summarized below.

June 30, 2022

Long-term
Asset Class Expected Real Rate Target Allocation
of Return
Domaestic equity 5.3% 27.5%
International equity 6.1% 27.5%
Fixed income 2.2% 15.0%
Real estate 6.5% 10.0%
Private equity 9.5% 10.0%
Hedge funds 3.8% 10.0%
June 30, 2021
Long-term
Asset Class Expected Real Rate Target Allocation
of Return
Domestic equity 5.5% 27.5%
International equity 7.0% 27.5%
Fixed income 2.2% 15.0%
Real estate 6.6% 10.0%
Private equity 8.5% 10.0%
Hedge funds 4.0% 10.0%

Discount rate. The discount rate used to measure the total STRS pension liability was 7.25% for fiscal years 2022
and 2021. The projection of cash fiows used to determine the discount rate assumed that State contributions
will continue to follow the current funding policy. Based on those assumptions, STRS' fiduciary net position was
projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments of current plan members. Therefore, the
long-term expected rate of return on STRS' investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments
to determine the total pension liability.

Sensitivity of the net pension liability to changes in the discount rate. The following presents the College’s
proportionate share of the STRS net pension liability as of June 30, 2023 and 2022 calculated using the discount
rate of 7.25%, as well as what the College’s STRS net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a
discount rate that is one percentage point lower (6.25%) or one percentage point higher {8.25%) than the
current rate.



87

SOUTHERN WEST VIRGINIA COMMUNITY AND TECHNICAL COLLEGE 46
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2023 AND 2022

NOTE 7 - RETIREMENT PLANS (Continued)

Current

1% Discount
Decrease Rate 1% Increase
Net pension liability 2023 $ 410,817 $ 279,301 S 167,605
Net pension liability 2022 403,295 228,228 79,465

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outfiows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources
Related to Pensions

The June 30, 2023 STRS net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2022, and the total pension liability
was determined by an actuarial valuation as of July 1, 2021, rolled forward to the measurement date of June 30,
2022, The June 30, 2022 STRS net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2021, and the total pension
liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2020, rolled forward to the measurement date
of June 30, 2021.

At June 30, 2023, the College’s proportionate share of the STRS net pension liability was $901,491. Of this
amount, the College recognized $279,301 as its proportionate share on the statement of net position. The
remainder of $622,190 denotes the College's proportionate share of net pension liability attributable to the
special funding.

At June 30, 2022, the College’s proportionate share of the STRS net pension liability was $738,514. Of this
amount, the College recognized $228,228 as its proportionate share on the statement of net position. The
remainder of $510,286 denotes the College’s proportionate share of net pension liability attributable to the
special funding.

The allocation percentage assigned to each participating employer and non-employer contributing entity is
based on their proportionate share of employer and non-employer contributions to STRS for each of the fiscal
years ended June 30, 2022 and 2021. Employer contributions are recognized when due. At the June 30, 2022
measurement date, the College's proportion was 0.010859%, a decrease of {0.003745)% from its proportion of
0.014604% calculated as of June 30, 2021, At the June 30, 2021 measurement date, the College’s proportion was
0.014604%, a decrease of (0.000650)% from its proportion of 0.015254% calculated as of June 30, 2020.

For the year ended June 30, 2023, the College recognized STRS pension expense (offset) of $28,812. Of this
amount, $(22,667) was recognized as the College’s propaortionate share of the STRS expense and $51,479 as the
amount of pension expense attributable to special funding from a non-employer contributing entity. The College
also recognized revenue of $51,479 for support provided by the State.

For the year ended June 30, 2022, the College recognized STRS pension expense {offset} of $(53,938). Of this
amount, $(45,250) was recognized as the College’s proportionate share of the STRS expense and $(8,688) as the
amount of pension expense attributable to special funding from a non-employer contributing entity. The College
also recognized revenue of $(8,688) for support provided by the State.



SOUTHERN WEST VIRGINIA COMMUNITY AND TECHNICAL COLLEGE

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2023 AND 2022

NOTE 7 - RETIREMENT PLANS (Continued)

88
47

At June 30, 2023 and 2022, deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to the STRS

pension are as follows.

June 30, 2023

Changes in proportion and difference between employer
contributions and proportionate share of contributions

Net difference between projected and actual investment earnings

Differences between expected and actual experience

Changes in assumptions
Contributions after the measurement date

Total

June 30, 2022

Changes in proportion and difference between employer
contributions and proportionate share of contributions

Net difference between projected and actual investment earnings

Differences between expected and actual experience

Changes in assumptions
Contributions after the measurement date

Total

Deferred Outflows

Deferred Inflows

of Resources of Resources
S 11,532 $ 103,617
11,329 -
11,598 2,278
15,779 -
49,157 -
S 99,395 $ 105,895

Deferred Outflows

Deferred Inflows

Of Resources Of Resources
S 19,277 5 58,960
- 182,405
18,593 6,683
28,333 -
45,749 -
$ 111,952 $ 248,048

The College will recognize the $49,157 reported as deferred outflows of resources resulting from pension
contributions after the measurement date as a reduction of the STRS net pension lfability in the year ended
June 30, 2024. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources
related to pensions will be recognized in STRS pension expense as follows.

Fiscal Year Ended June 30,

Amortization

Payables to the Pension Plan

2024
2025
2026
2027

(25,807)
(16,920)
(30,630)

17,700

{55,657)

The Coliege did not report any amounts payable for normal contributions to the STRS as of June 30, 2023 and

2022,



89

SOUTHERN WEST VIRGINIA COMMUNITY AND TECHNICAL COLLEGE 43
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2023 AND 2022

NOTE 8 - FOUNDATION

The Foundation is a separate nonprofit organization incorporated in the State of West Virginia and has as its
purpose “to support, encourage and assist in the development and growth of the College, to render service and
assistance to the College, and through it to the citizens of the State of West Virginia...” Oversight of the
Foundation is the responsibility of a separate and independently elected Board of Directors, not otherwise
affiliated with the College. In carrying out its responsibilities, the Board of Directors of the Foundation employs
management, forms policy and maintains fiscal accountability over funds administered by the Foundation.
Althcugh the College does not control the timing or amount of receipts from the Foundation, the majority of
resources, or income thereon, that the Foundation holds and invests are restricted to the activities of the
College by the donors. Because these restricted resources held by the Foundation can only be used by, or for the
benefit of, the College, the Foundation is considered a component unit of the College and is therefore discretely
presented with the College’s financial statements in accordance with GASB.

The Foundation’s net assets totaled $4,990,839 and $4,790,124 at December 31, 2022 and 2021, respectively.
The net assets include amounts which are restricted by donors to use for specific projects or departments of the
College. During the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021, the Foundation made $305,180 and $220,270
respectively, in contributions to the College for student scholarships and other support. Complete financial
statements for the Foundation can be obtained from the Southern West Virginia Community College
Foundation, Inc.

NOTE 9 - AFFILIATED ORGANIZATION AND OTHER STATE AGENCIES

The College has a separately incorporated affiliated organization, the Southern Alumni Asscciation. Oversight
responsibility for this entity rests with an independent board and management not otherwise affiliated with the
College. Accordingly, the financial statements of such organizations are not included in the accompanying
financial statements under the blended component unit requirements. They are not included in the College’s
accompanying financial statements under discretely presented component unit requirements as, they (1) are
not material or (2) have dual purposes (i.e., not entirely or almost entirely for the benefit of the College).

In addition to the relationships and transactions previously described, the College receives funding or grants
from and provides services to other state agencies, and utilizes services, supplies and equipment provided by
other state agencies. Amounts due from and due to other state agencies at June 30, are as follows:

2023 2022
Due to:
WVNET 5 3,310 S 13,242
WYV State Treasurer’'s Office - 187
WV Department of Administration 37 139
WV Public Employees Insurance Agency 3,962 7,284

$ 7,309 $ 20,852




90

SOUTHERN WEST VIRGINIA COMMUNITY AND TECHNICAL COLLEGE 49
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2023 AND 2022

NOTE 10 - CONTINGENCIES

The nature of the educational industry is such that, from time-to-time, claims will be presented against the
College on account of alleged negligence, acts of discrimination, breach of contract or disagreements arising
from the interpretation of laws or regulations. While some of these claims may be for substantial amounts, they
are not unusual in the ordinary course of providing educational services in a higher education system. In the
opinion of management, all known claims are covered by insurance or are such that an award against the
College would not impact seriously on the financial status of the institution.

Under the terms of federal grants, periodic audits are required and certain costs may be questioned as not being
appropriate expenditures under the terms of the grants. Such audits could lead to reimbursement to the grantor
agencies. The College’s management believes disallowances, if any, will not have a significant financial impact on
the College’s financial position.

The College owns various buildings which are known to contain asbestos. The College is not required by federal,
state or local law to remove the asbestos from its buildings. The College is required under Federal
Environmental Health and Safety Regulations to manage the presence of asbestos in its buildings in a safe
condition. The College addresses its responsibility to manage the presence of asbestos in its buildings on a case-
by-case basis. Significant problems of dangerous ashestos conditions are abated as the condition becomes
known. The College also addresses the presence of asbestos as building renovation or demolition projects are
undertaken and through asbestos operation and maintenance programs directed at containing, managing or
operating with the asbestos in a safe condition.

NOTE 11 - COMPONENT UNIT DISCLOSURES

The following are the notes taken directly from the Foundation’s financial statements starting on the following
page:



91

SOUTHERN WEST VIRGINIA COMMUNITY COLLEGE FOUNDATION, INC. 50
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022 AND 2021

NOTE 1 — DESCRIPTION OF ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Organization - Southern West Virginia Community College Foundation, Inc. {the Foundation) was incorporated
in September 1971 as a tax-exempt, not-for-profit corporation under Section 501{c)(3) of the Internal Revenue
Code for the purpose of collecting denations from individuals, corporations, and foundations which are to be
distributed as scholarships to individual who are attending what is not known as Southern West Virginia
Community and Technical College (the College}, and also to be used for other purposes benefiting the College.
The Foundation is considered to be a component unit of the Coliege. Administrative services are provided by
the College,

Basis of Accounting — The financial statements of the Foundation have been prepared on the accrual basis of
accounting in accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America ("GAAP “).

Net Assets — The financial statements report net assets and changes in net assets under two classes that are
based upon the existence or absence of restrictions on use that are placed by its donors as net assets without
donor restriction and net assets with donor restriction.

Net Assets without Donor Restrictions — Net assets without donor restriction are resources that are available to
support operations. The only limits on the use of these net assets are the broad limits resulting from the nature
of the organization, the environment in which it operates, the purposes specified in its corporate documents
and its application for tax-exempt status, and any limits resulting from contractual agreements with creditors
and others that are entered into during its operations.

Net Assets with Donor Restrictions — are resources that are restricted by a donor for use for a particular
purpose, or in a particular future pericd. Some donor-imposed restrictions are temporary in nature, and the
restriction will expire when the resources are used in accordance with the donor's instructions, or when the
stipulated time has passed. Other donor-imposed restrictions are perpetual in nature; the Foundation must
continue to use the resources in accordance with the donor ‘s instructions.

When a donor's restriction is satisfied, either by using the resources in the manner specified by the donor or by
the passage of time, the expiration of the restriction is reported in the financial statements by reclassifying the
net assets with donor restriction to net assets without donor restriction. Net assets restricted for the acquisition
of buildings or equipment (or, less commonly, the contribution of those assets directly) are reported as net
assets with donor restriction until the specified asset is placed in service by the Foundation, unless the donor
provides more specific directions about the period of its use,

Cash and Cash Equivalents — Cash and cash equivalents consist primarily of demand deposits and money market
funds. The Foundation places its cash with high-credit quality financial institutions. At times, the balances in
such institutions may exceed the FDIC limit. Restricted cash includes cash and cash equivalents held within the
Foundation's investment portfolios for donor-restricted purposes.

Investments ~ Investments are reported at fair value. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement
date. See Note 9 for discussion of fair value measurements.



92

SOUTHERN WEST VIRGINIA COMMUNITY COLLEGE FOUNDATION, INC. 51
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022 AND 2021

NOTE 1 ~ DESCRIPTION OF ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
{Continued)

In-Kind Contributions — Donated goods are recorded as revenue when they are received and are expensed
when they are used or distributed. Donated services are recognized as contributions if the services (a) create or
enhance nonfinancial assets or {b) require specialized skills, are performed by people with those skills, and
would otherwise be purchased by the Foundation.

Contributions and Unconditional Promises to Give ~ Contributions received and unconditional promises to give
("contributions receivable") are measured at their fair values and are reported as increases in net assets. The
Foundation reports gifts of cash and other assets as restricted support if they are received with donor
stipulations that limit the use of the donated assets. When a donor restriction expires, that is, when a stipulated
time restriction ends or purpose restriction is accomplished, net assets with donor restrictions are reclassified to
net assets without donor restrictions and reported in the statement of activities as net assets released from
restrictions. Conditional promises to give are not recorded until the condition on which it depends is
substantially met,

Unconditional promises to give that are expected to be collected within one year are recorded at net realizable
value. Unconditional promises to give that are expected to be collected in future years are recorded at the
present value of their estimate future cash flows. The discounts on those amounts are computed using a risk-
adjusted discount rate applicable to the years in which the promises are received. Amortization of the discounts
is included in contribution revenue.

The allowance for uncollectible contributions receivable is determined based upon management's evaluation of
the collectability of the individual promises. Promises that remain uncollected for more than one year after their
due dates are then written off, unless the donors indicate that the payment is merely postponed. No allowance
for uncollectible contributions receivable was considered necessary at December 31, 2022 and 2021.

Functional Expenses — The cost of providing the Foundation's programs and other activities is summarized in
Note 6. The expenses that can be identified with a specific program or support service are charged directly to
that program and support service. Expenses that are allocated include personnel costs which are allocated based
on estimates of time and effort. Administrative and general expenses include those costs that are not directly
identifiable with any specific program, but which provide for the overall support and direction of the
Foundation.

All scholarships and direct program support services distributions are approved by the Board of Directors.

Use of Estimates — The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect
the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the
financial statements, and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual
results could differ from those estimates.

Income Taxes — The Foundation is classified as a tax-exempt organization under Section 501{c}{3) of the Internal
Revenue Code, and, therefore, is not subject to taxes on incomes derived from its exempt activities. The College
has been classified as an organization that is a not a private foundation under Section 509({a){2}.



93

SOUTHERN WEST VIRGINIA COMMUNITY COLLEGE FOUNDATION, INC. 52
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022 AND 2021

NOTE 1 - DESCRIPTION OF ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Subsequent Events — The date to which events occurring after December 31, 2022, have been evaluated for
possible adjustment to or disclosure in the financial statements is September 11, 2023, which is the date the
financial statements were available to be issued.

NOTE 2 - PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMIENT

Net assets have been restated as of January 1, 2022, to reflect adjustments necessary to present net assets in
accordance with the generally accepted accounting principles. Management has determined that net assets of
$398,305 were previously classified as net assets with donor restrictions, but should have been classified as net
assets without donor restrictions. This reclassification had no effect on total net assets.

NOTE 3 - LIQUIDITY AND AVAILABILITY

Financial assets and liquidity resources available within one year for general expenditure, that is, without donor
or other restrictions limiting their use, within one year of December 31, 2022, are as follows:

Financial assets available within one year:

Cash and cash equivalents 5 324,774
Contributions receivable 254,331
Investments 4,341,894
Certificate of deposit 56,101
Interest and dividends receivable -
Total financial assets 4,977,100
Financial assets held to meet donor-imposed restrictions: (4,125,769)

Financial assets not available within one year:
Pledges receivable -

Amount available for general expenditures

within one year S 851331



94

SOUTHERN WEST VIRGINIA COMMUNITY COLLEGE FOUNDATION, INC. 53
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022 AND 2021

NOTE 3 — LIQUIDITY AND AVAILABILITY (Continued)

Financial assets and liquidity resources available within one year for general expenditure, that is, without donor
or other restrictions limiting their use, within one year of December 31, 2021, are as follows:

Financial assets available within one year:

Cash and cash equivalents 5 203,077
Contributions receivable 163,707
Investments 4,390,916
Certificate of deposit 56,009
Interest and dividends receivable 7.385
Total financial assets 4,821,094
Financial assets held to meet donor-imposed restrictions: {4,276,403)

Financial assets not available within one year:

Pledges receivable {124,500}

Amount available for general expenditures

within one year ) 420,181

The abave table reflects donor-restricted and board-designated endowment funds as unavailable since it is the
Foundation’s intention to invest those resources for the long-term support of the Foundation.

NOTE 4 — CONTRIBUTIONS RECEIVABLE
Contributions receivable consist of the following unconditional promises to give:

Unconditional promises to give at December 31, 2022 and 2021, are as follows:

2022 2021
Receivable within one year S 82,250 LS 51,750
Receivable in two to five years 170,250 124,500
Receivable in more than five years 22,493 -
Total unconditional promises to give 274,993 176,250
Discounts to net present value (20,662} (12,543)

Net unconditional promises to give s 254,331 S 163,707




95

SOUTHERN WEST VIRGINIA COMMUNITY COLLEGE FOUNDATION, INC. 54
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022 AND 2021

NOTE 5 — RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Foundation's scholarships are awarded by the College. The Foundation recognized expenses in the amount
of $92,144 and $102,154 in 2022 and 2021, respectively. In addition, the Foundation paid $44,000 to the College
far support of the respiratory program and certain expenses of $85,981 were paid directly by the Foundation for
the benefit of the College during 2022. No direct program support payments were recognized in 2021.

The Foundation recognized contribution revenue and corresponding program expense for donated services
provided by the College related to accounting and management personnel costs. The fair value of these donated
services, determined by management, was $302,838 for the year ended December 31, 2022. No contributes
services received from the College and from unrelated volunteers were recorded for the year ended December
31, 2021.

NOTE 6 — FUNCTIONAL CLASSIFICATION OF EXPENSES

Expenses for the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021 were allocated as follows:

2022 2021
Prograr Services:
Scholarships ] 92,144 § 102,154
Personnel 73,615 -
Other 139,421 -
Food donations {in-kind) - 118,116
Total program services 305,180 220,270
Administrative and general:
Personnel 124,379 -
Qutside services 56,283 87,643
Bank fees 4,542 43,402
Insurance 852 3,058
Business expense 63,993 105,650
Total administrative and general 250,049 239,753
Fundraising:
Personnel 104,844 -
Fundraising events 77,211 12,095
Total fundraising 182,055 12,095

Total functional expenses S 737,284 S 472,118




96

SOUTHERN WEST VIRGINIA COMMUNITY COLLEGE FOUNDATION, INC, 55
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022 AND 2021

NOTE 7 — NET ASSETS WITH DONOR RESTRICTION

At December 31, 2022 and 2021, net assets with donor restriction are available for the following purposes or
periods:

2021
{As Previously
2022 Reported)
Subject to expenditure for specific purposes:
Scholarships $ 2,059,921 $ 1,818,546
Educational development 1,376,135 1,614,544
3,436,056 3,433,090
Promises to give, without donor restrictions, but
which are unavailable for expenditure until due 19,500 -
Investment in perpetuity, the income from which is
expendable to support scholarships 670,213 843,313
Total net assets with donor restrictions S 4,125,769 S 4,276,403

NOTE 8 - ENDOWMENT FUNDS

Interpretations of the relevant law - The Board of Directors of the Foundation has interpreted Uniform Prudent
Management of institutional Funds Act (UPMIFA} as requiring the preservation of the fair value of the original
gift as of the gift date of donor-restricted endowment funds, absent of any explicit donor stipulations to the
contrary. As a result of this interpretation, the Foundation classifies as net assets with donor restrictions (a) the
original value of gifts donated to the permanent endowment, {b) the original value of subsequent gifts to the
permanent endowment, and (c) accumulations to the permanent endowment made in accordance with the
direction of the applicable donor gift instrument at the time of the accumulation is added to the fund. Also
included in net assets with donor restrictions is accumulated appreciated on donor- restricted endowments
which are available for expenditure in a manner consistent with the standard of prudence prescribed by UPMIFA
and deficiencies associated with funds where the value of the fund has fallen below the original value of the
gifts.

In accordance with UPMIFA, the Foundation considers the following factors in making a determination to
appropriate or accumulate donor-restricted endowment funds: (1) the duratien and preservation of the various
funds, (2) the purposes of the donor-restricted endowment funds, (3} general econamic conditions, (4) the
possible effect of inflation and deflation, (5) the expected total return from income and the appreciation of
investments, (6) other resources of the Foundation, and (7) the Foundation’s investment policies.

Return objectives, risk parameters, and strategies — The endowed funds consist of scholarship funds which are
awarded annually at the discretion of the Board of Directors, or as stipulated by donors of permanently
endowed contributions. The Foundation has adopted investment and spending policies to provide a predictable
stream of funding to programs supported by its endowment funds while also maintaining the purchasing power
of those endowment assets over the long-term.



97

SOUTHERN WEST VIRGINIA COMMUNITY COLLEGE FOUNDATION, INC. 56
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022 AND 2021

NOTE 8 - ENDOWMENT FUNDS (Continued)

From time to time, certain donor-restricted endowment funds may have fair values that are less than the
amount required to be maintained by donors or by law (underwater endowments). The Foundation has
interpreted UPMIFA to permit spending from underwater endowments in accordance with prudent measures
required under law. During 2022, the Foundation did not appropriate any expenditure from underwater
endowments and as of December 31, 2022 there were no underwater endowments.

Endowment net asset composition, by restriction, as of December 31, 2022, is as follows:

Without Donor With Donor

Restrictions Restrictions Total
Donor-restricted endowment funds S - § 1,359,452 S§ 1,359,452
Board-designated endowment funds - 2,146,628 2,146,628
Total s - & 3,506,080 6,08

Changes in the endowment net assets from 2021 to 2022 are as follows:

Without Donor With Donor

Restrictions Restrictions Total
ENDOWMENT NET ASSETS,
BEGINNING OF YEAR $ - $ 3433090 S5 3433090
Endowment investment return:
Interest and dividends - 123,502 123,502
Net realized and unrealized iosses - (109,374) (109,374)
Total endowment
investment return - 14,128 14,128
Contributions - 214,017 214,017
Appropriation of endowmaents -
release from restriction - (155,155} {155,155)
ENDOWIMENT NET ASSETS,

END OF YEAR $ - 5 350608 S 3,506,080



98

SOUTHERN WEST VIRGINIA COMMUNITY COLLEGE FOUNDATION, INC. 57
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022 AND 2021

NOTE 8 - ENDOWMENT FUNDS (Continued}
Endowment net asset compaosition, by restriction, as of December 31, 2021, is as follows:

Without Donor With Donor

Restrictions Restrictions Total
Donor-restricted endowment funds S - S 791,956 5 791,956
Board-designated endowment funds - 2,641,134 2,641,134
Total $ - S 3433090 $ 3,433,090

Changes in the endowment net assets from 2020 to 2021 are as follows:

Without Donor With Donor
Restrictions Restrictions Total
ENDOWMENT NET ASSETS,
BEGINNING OF YEAR S - $ 2,889,187 S 2,889 197

Endowment investment return:

Interest and dividends - 114,012 114,012
Net unrealized and realized gains - 418,718 418,718
Total endowment
investment return - 532,730 532,730
Contributions - 203,836 203,836

Appropriation of endowments -

release from restriction {192,673) {192,673)

ENDOWMENT NET ASSETS,
END OF YEAR $ - 5 3433080 S 3433090



99
SOUTHERN WEST VIRGINIA COMMUNITY COLLEGE FOUNDATION, INC. 58
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022 AND 2021

NOTE 9 ~ FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

The framework for measuring fair value provides a fair value hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs to valuation
techniques used to measure fair value. The hierarchy gives the highest priority to unadjusted quoted prices in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities (level 1 measurements) and the lowest pricrity to unobservable
inputs {level 3 measurements). The three levels of the fair value hierarchy are described below:

Leve! 1. Inputs to the valuation methodology are unadjusted quoted prices for identical assets or liabilities in
active markets that the Foundation has the ability to access.

Level 2; Inputs to the valuation methedology include:
s Quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets;
e« Quoted prices for identical or similar assets or liabilities in inactive markets;
¢ Inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the asset or liability;
¢ |nputs that are derived principally from or corroborated by observable market data by
correlation or by other means.

Leve! 3: Inputs to the valuation methodology are unobservable and significant to the fair value measurement.

The asset or liability's fair value measurement level within the fair value hierarchy is based on the lowest level of
any input that is significant to the fair value measurement. Valuation techniques used maximize the use of
observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs. Following is a description of the valuation
methodologies used for assets measured at fair value {(or at net asset value as a practical expedient for fair
value) on a recurring basis. There have been no changes to the methodologies.

Equities: Valued at the closing price reported on the active market on which the individual securities are
traded.

Exchange-traded funds: Valued at the net asset value {NAV) of shares on the last trading day of the fiscal year,
which is the basis for transactions at that date.

Money market: Valued at amortized cost.



100

SOUTHERN WEST VIRGINIA COMMUNITY COLLEGE FOUNDATION, INC. 59
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022 AND 2021

NOTE 9 — FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS {Continued)

The following table sets forth by level, within the fair value hierarchy, the Foundation's assets that are
reported on the financial statements at their fair values as of December 31, 2022 and 2021:

__levell  _level2 _Llevel 3 Total

022
Money market S 247,265 S - 5 - 8 247,265
Equity securities 4,003,039 - - 4,003,039
Exchange-traded funds 91,590 - - 91,590
$ 4341804 S - s . $ 434130

2021
Equity securities S 4390916 S - 8 - S 4,390,816

$.4390916 3 - § - $ 4390916




SOUTHERN WEST VIRGINIA COMMUNITY AND TECHNICAL COLLEGE
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2023 AND 2022

JNCTIONAL CLASSIFICATIONS

tin both natural and functional classifications for the years ended June 30:

101

2023

Fees

Salaries Supplies Scholarships Assessed

and and Other and by the

Wages Benefits Services Utilities Fellowships Depreciation Commission Tatal
$ 4036476 3 435199 S5 1,648,048 5 - % - 5 - 5 - % 6119723
2,251 306 8,738 - - - - 11,295
692,843 86,648 1,678 - . - - 781,169
698,979 108,377 223,845 427 - - - 1,031,628
2,425,176 335,507 1,501,269 12,146 - - - 4,274,098
1,830,899 394,454 652,615 813,435 - - - 3,691,443
- - - - 2,724,043 - - 2,724,043
- - - - - 1,531,285 - 1,531,286
- - - - - - 657,533 67,533
5 9686624 S5 1360531 $ 4,035193 5 826,008 S5 2724043 $ 153128 S 67,533 5 20232218
2022

Fees

Salarigs Supplies Scholarships Assessed

and and Qther and by the

Wages Benefits Services Utilities Fellowships Depraciation Commission Total

$ 3386209 $ 494,879 § 1105243 - % - 8 - § - § 4986421
270,306 43,335 41,343 - - - - 354,984
693,364 122,448 65,522 - - - - 881,334
1,120,468 198,446 322,756 - - - - 1,541,670
2,714,791 341,085 2,087,749 209,996 - - - 5,353,625
353,229 54,183 674,819 544,660 - - - 1,626,891
- - - - 5,793,455 - - 5,793,455
- - 6,742 - - - - 6,742
- - - - - 1,436,816 - 1,436,316
- - - - - - 73,000 73,000
$§ 8538457 § 1254380 S5 4304174 § 754656 S5 5793455 $ 1436816 § 73,000 S 22,154,938

09



REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

102

61



SOUTHERN WEST VIRGINIA COMMUNITY AND TECHNICAL COLLEGE
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
SCHEDULE OF PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF THE NET PENSION UABIUTY

103

Sune 30, 2023
State Teachers' Retlrement System
Last 10 Fiscal Years®*
2023 2022 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
0.010859% 0.014604% 0.015254% 0.015165% 00135500 0.017543% 0.018586% 0.021596% 0.025505%
% 279,301 ) 228,228 H 451,322 s 451,185 $ 435,555 -] 606,105 $ 763,874 H 754,580 $ 873883
522,190 510,286 L067,592 1,089,203 1,128,572 1,340,375 1,454,975 1,707,576 1,988,159
S 501,491 5 738,514 5 1,558,914 $ 1,540,388 $ 1,564,127 5 1946481 5 2,318,850 $ 2,452,166 $ 2,868,042
$ 304,991 5 412,627 % 420,743 H 437,954 § 414,629 $ 484,171 $ 480,377 1] 654,684 5 783,432
91.58% 55.31% 116.77% 103.02% 102.57% 125.18% 159.02% 115.25% 112.31%
77.78% 86.38% T0.89% 72.64% LM% 57.85% 61.42% 66.25% 65.95%

ermined as of June 30th of the previcus year. [(Measurement date)
ent to show information for 10 years. However, unti! a full 10-year trend is compiled, Colleges should present

wlabla,

79



SOUFTHERN WEST VIRGINIA COMMUNITY AKD TECHNICAL COLLEGE
REQUIRED SUFPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
SCHEDULE OF PENSION CONTRIBUTIONS

State Teachers' Retlramant System

lung 30, 2023

104

Last 10 Fiseal Years
2023 2022 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 W15 2014
H 49,157 45749 % 61,894 63,111 3% 65693 5 63,654 5 72626 % 72057 98,203
(49.15%) {45,749) {61,854) [63,111) [63,693) (63,658) (72,626) [72,057) {98,203}
§ - - % - - 5 -3 - 5 - 8 - 5 -
$ 327,718 364,891 5 412637 420,743 5 437954 & 424,629 5 484171 S 480,377 %  BS54,6B4
15.00% 15.00% 15.00% 15.00% 15.00% 15.00% 15.00% 15.00% 15.00%

ent to show Information for 10 years. However, until 2 full 10-year trend is compiled, Collages should present

iilabfe.

£9



105

SOUTHERN WEST VIRGINIA COMMUNITY AND TECHNICAL COLLEGE
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
SCHEDULE OF PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF THE NET OPER LIABILITY (ASSET)
lune 30, 2023

Last 10 Fiscal Years"

2023 2022 2021 2020 201% 2018 017 2016 2015 2014
0.177012624% 0.175329750% 0.173933038% 0.171521178% 0.170212668% 0.161373742%
S 197,013 § {52,134} $ 768,248 $ 2,845,763 $ 3,652,018 $ 3,968,163
67,489 {10,265} 169,872 582,370 754,775 815,065
$ 264,502 $ {62,359} § 938,120 5 3428133 $ 2,406,793 S 4733228

& 7,028,625 ] 6,814,218 ] 6,791,671 $ 6083379 §_ 626002 S 6247930

2.80% 0.77% 11.31% 46.78% 58.26% 6§3.51%

93.59% 101.81% 73.49% 39.69% 30.92% 25.10%

‘mined as af June 3Gth of the previous vear. (M easurement date}
> show information for 10 years, However, until a full 10-year trend is compiled, Colleges should p infarmation for thaose

¥9



SQUTHERN WEST VIRGINIA COMMUNITY AND TECHNICAL COLLEGE
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
SCHEDULE OF OPES CONTRIBUTIONS
lune 30, 2023

Last 10 Fiscal Years

2023 2022 2021 2020 2019 2018

2017

2016

2015

2014

$ 149,500 S 208,124 $ 319,568 $ 33192 S 276,087 $ 280,764

{149,500) {208,124} {319,568) {336,192) £276,087} {280,764}

5 7.922.055 $ 7,028,629 $ 6,814,218 $ 6,791,670 $ 6083379 $ 6,268,021

1.89% 2.95% 4.69% 4.95% 4.54% 4.48%

ment 1o show infarmation for 10 years. However, until a full 10-year trend is complled, Colleges should present
available.

59



107

SOUTHERN WEST VIRGINIA COMMUNITY TECHNICAL COLLEGE
NOTE TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION - PENSION
YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2023 AND 2022

inptions to more closely reflect actual experience. Significant changas in assumptions are related to projected salary increases, inflation rate, and mortality tables.

Salary Incraases

'r members, salary increasas
on member experience,

L oh age and gender, ranging
to 5.50%. For non-teacher
salary increases 2re based on
xperience, dependent on age
r, ranging from 2,75 to

r members, salary increases
on member experience,

t on age and gender, ranging
10 5.9%.

achar members, salary

re based on member

3, dependent on age and
nging from .75 to 6.5%.

‘+ members, salary increases
on member experience,

L on age and gender, ranging
to 6.16%.

acher members, salary

ire based on member

3, dependent on age and
nging from 3.00 to 6.75%.

Investment Rate of Return

7.25%, net of pension plan
investrnent expense, including
inflation.

7.25%, net of pension plan
investment expense, including
inflation.

7.5%, net of pension plan
investment expense, including
inflation.

Mortality

Active: Pub-2010, General Empiovees table, headcount weighted, projected 7.25%
generatianally with scale MP-2019, Retired: Healthy males — 100% of Pub-
2010 General Retirea Male table, headcount weighted, projected
generationally with scale MP-2013; Retired hezithy females — 112% of Pub-
2010 General Retiree Female table, headcount weighted, projected
generationally with scale MP-2019; Disabled males — 107% of Pub-2010
General/Teacher Disabled Male table, headcount welghted, projected
generationally with scale MP-2019; Disabled females — 113% of Pub-2010
General/Teacher Disabled Femnale table, headcount weighted, projected
genarationally with scale MP-2019; Beneficiary males-101% of Pub-2010
Contingent Survivar Male table, headoount weighted, projectad
generationally with Scale MP-2019; Beneficiary females-113% of Pub-2010
Contingent Survivor Female table, headcount weighted, projected
generationally with Scale MP-2019.

Active: Pub-2010, General Emplayees table, headcount weighted, projected 7.25%
generationally with scale MP-2019.

Retired: Healthy mates — 100% of Pub-2010 Genreral Retiree Male table,
headcount weighted, projected generationally with scale MP-2019;

Retired healthy fernales — 112% of Pub-2010 Genaral Retiree Female table,
headcount weighted, projected panarationally with scale MP-2019;
Disabled males — 107% of Pub-2010 General/Teacher Disabled Male table,
hezdcount weighted, projected generationally with scale MP-2019;
Disabled femates - 113% of Pub-2010 General/Teacher Disabled Fernale
table, headcount weighted, projected generationally with scale MP-2019.
Active: Pub-2010, General Employaes table, headcount weighted, projected 2.5%
generationally with scale MP-2019.

Retired: Healthy mates — 108% of Pub-2010 General Retiree Male table,

headcount weighted, profected generationally with scale MP-2019;

Retired healthy females — 112% of Pub-2010 General Retiree Female takle,

headcount weighted, projected generationally with scale MP-2019;

Disabled males — 107% of Pub-2010 General/Teacher Disabled Malg table,

headcount weighted, projected generationally with scale MP-2019;

Disabled females - 113% of Pub-2010 General/Teacher Disabled Female

table, headcount weighted, projected generationally with scate MP-2019.

Discount Rate

99



SOUTHERN WEST VIRGINIA COMMUNITY TECHNICAL COLLEGE
NOTE TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION - PENSION
YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2023 AND 2022

Salary [ncreases

'r members, salary increases
on member experience,

t on age and gender, ranging
to 6.00%.

acher members, salary

e based on member

:, dependent on age and
nging from 3.00 to 6.50%.

'+ members, salary increases
on member experience,

t on age and gender, ranging
to 6,00%.

acher members, salary

are based on membar

3, dependent on age and
nging from 3.00 to 6.50%.

r members, salary increases
on member experience,

t on age and gender, ranging
to 6.00%.

acher members, salary

re based on member

3, dependent on age and
nging from 3.00 to 6.50%.

r members, salary increases
on member experience,

t on age and gender, ranging
to 6.00%.

acher members, salary

re based on member

3, dependent on age and
nging from 3.00 to 6.50%.

Investment Rate of Return

7.5%, net of pension plan
investment expense, including
inflation.

7.5%, net of pension plan
invastment expense, including
inflation.

7.5%, nat of pension plan
investment expense, including
inflation.

7.5%, net of pension plan
investment expense, including
inflation.

Martality

Active: RP2000, non-annuitant table, projected with Scale AA on a fully
generational basis.

Retired: Healthy males — 97% of RP20C0 healthy annuitzant table, projected
with Scale AA on a fully generational basis;

Healthy females — 94% of RP2000 healthy annuitant table, projected with
Scale AA on a fully generationa! basis;

Disabled males — 96% of RP2000 disabled annuitant table, projected with
Scale AA on a fully generational hasis;

Disabled females — 101% of RP2000 disabled annuitant table, projected with
Scale AA on a fully generational basis.

Active: RP2000, non-annuitant table, projected with Scale AA on a fully
generational basis.

Retired: Healthy males — 97% of RP2000 healthy annuitant table, projected
with Scale AA on a fully generational basis;

Healthy females —~ 949 of RP2000 healthy annuitant table, projected with
Scale AA on a fully generational basis;

Disabled males - $6% of #2000 disabled annuitant table, projected with
Scale AA on a fully generational basis;

Disabled females — 101% of RP2000 disabled annuitant table, projected with
Scale AA on 3 fully generational basis.

Active: RP2000, non-annuitant table, projected with Scale AA an a fully
generational basis.

Retired: healthy males - 97% of RP2000 healthy arnuitant table, projected
with Scale AA on a fully generational basis;

healthy females — 94% of RP2000 healthy annuitant table, projected with
Scale AA on a fully generational basis; disabled males — 96% of RP2000
disabled annuitant table, projected with Scale AA on a fully generational
basis; disabled females — 101% of RP2000 diszbled annuitant table, projected
with Scale AA on a fully generational basis.

Active: RP2000, non-annuitant table, projected with Scate AA on a fully
genarational basis.

Retired: Healthy males = 97% of RP2000 healthy annuitant table, projected
with Scale AA on a fully generational basis;

Healthy females — 94% of RP2000 healthy annuitant table, projected with
Scale AA on a fully generational basls;

Disabled rnales — 96% of RP2000 disabled annuitant table, projected with
Scale AA on a fully generational basis;

Disabled females = 101% of RF2000 disabled annuitant table, projected with
Scale AA on a fully generational basis.

108

Discount Rate

7.5%

7.5%

7.5%

7.5%

L9



109

SOUTHERN WEST VIRGINIA COMMUNITY TECHNICAL COLLEGE
NOTE TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION - PENSION
YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2023 AND 2022

Salary Increases

'r members, salary increases
an member expariance,

t on age and gender, ranging
ta 5.25%.

acher members, salary

ire based on member

3, dependent on age and
nging fram 3.40 to 6.50%.

-+ members, salary increases
on member experience,

t on age and gender, ranging
to 5.25%.

acher members, salary

ire based on member

3, dependent on age and
nging from 3.40 to 6.50%.

{nvestment Rate of Return

7.5%, net of pension plan
investment expense, including
inflation.

7.5%, net of pension plan
investment expense, including
inflation.

Moartality Discount Rate
Active: RP2000, non-annuitant monthiy mortality table. 75%
Retired: RP2000 healthy annuitant, scale AA;
Disabled: RP2000 disabled arnuitant mortality table, scale AA.
Active: RP2000, non-annuitant monthly mortality table; 7.5%

Retired: RP2000 healthy annuitant, scale AA;
Disabled: RP2000 disabled annuitant mortality table, scale AA.

: affect trends in the amounts reported, such as a change of benefit terms or other assumptions. Additional information, if necessary, can be obtained from the CPRB

or the corresponding year.

89



SOUTHERN WEST VIRGINIA COMMUNITY AND TECHNICAL COWEGE
NOTYES 10 THE REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION - OPEB
YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2023 AND 2022

110

sulation can change from yaar to yaar, Please see fahle below which rizes the izl usad for the respective maasuramant dates.

wtment Rate of

n & Discount Rzte Mortality Aatirement Age Aging Factary Expenses Healtherre Cast Trend Rates

,nat of OFEB plan  Post-Rett Pub-201D 1 Haalthy Exparience-basad table 2013 50A study Hezlth 2dmin|strative axpensas Trend rata for pra-Medicara per caplts costs of 7.0% for plan year end 2023,

ment expensa, Retlrea Mortality Tables projectad with MP- of ratos that are "Haalth Czra Costs+  araincludad In the devel d 1g by 0.50% for two yazrs than by 0.25% each year thersafter, untll

ing inflation 2021 and scaling factors of 100% for males and  spocific 1o the type of From 8irth to ol tha per capita clalms cosL ultimata trand rata of 4.25% ls reachad in plen year 2032. Trand rate for
108% for femates; eligiblity candition Daath* Op are includad par capita coits of 8.83% for plan year end 2023, decreasing
Pra-Ratiremeant; Pub-2010 Genaral Emplayes asa mmpqnnnt of xanual ratably aach yasr theraafier, untll uliimate trand rate of 4.25% ks reached in
Mortalitv Tables orolacted with MP-2021 mEpAnsE. plan yezr and 3032,

,aatof OPES plan  Post PLb-20. 2l Below- Exparience-based tabla 2013 S0A study Health administrative sypencas Trend rata far pra-Medicare per capits corts of 7.0% for plon year end 2020,

mHnt expense, Madlan Hazlthy Ratires Mortality Tablaz of ratas that are “Haalth Cara Costs «  ar& included (n they devel - ing by 0.50% for ona year than by 0.15% aach yeer thereaftes, untll

ing inflstion projacted with MP-2019 2nd scaling factars of  specifictothatype of  FromBinth 1o of thy per capita clzims cost, ultimate trend fate of 4,25% Is reeched In plan year 2032 Trend rate for
100% for males and 108% far famal gibllity conditt Death® \f 0% are ineluded i per capita costs of 31,3 1% for plan year and 2022, 9.15% for plan
Pro-Retirement; Pub-2010 Pub-2010 Ganearal a5 3 companent of znnuzl yezrend 2013, decreading ratzbly each year thersafter, until yitimate trand
Employes Mortallty Tablas projectad with Scala expense, rate of 4.25% It reached In plan year and 2038,
MF-2019

Lnatof OPEG plan  Post-Aatirement: Pub-2010 Genarzl Below- Exparienca-based table 2013 SOA study Hezith administrzthes axpensac Trand rata for pra-Medicare per caplta coxts of 7.0% for plan year end 2022,

ANt axpanse, Medizn Hazithy Ratiree Mortality Tzblas of rates that arn “Health Care Costs - zre included in the development 6.5% far plan year end 2023, dacraasing by 0.75% aach year thereafer, untl

ing nfation projactad with MP-2018 and scaling factors of spectfictotha type of  From Binth to of tha par caphia cl2ims cost. uitimate trend rate of 4,25% |5 raached in plan year 2032 Trend rate for
100% for males and 108% for femalas; #ligibility condftlon Death” e} g axg are Included Medlcars per capits costs of 31.11% for plan year end 2022, 9.15% for pin
Py i Fub-2010 ] #3 a companent of znnusl yoar and 2013, 8.40% Tor plan yazr and 2024, dacreasing gradually sach year
Mortallty Tablas projected with MP-2019 [EPENLY. thareafter, until ultimata trend rete of 4.25% i reached [n plan year end

2036,

. net of GPEB plan  Past-Ratiremant: RP-2000 Healthy A Experi based table 2013 50A study Health administrative expanses Trend rate for pre-Medicare por canna costs of 85% for plan yaar and 2020,

mant axp Takle projected with Scala AA on a of rages that are “Health Cara Costs - ara ncluded In the develop d Ing by 0.5% each yearth , until trend rata of 4.5% Is

Ing inflation Fulty genoraliunat basis; spaciic to the type of From Birth to of the per capita claims cost. reached iy plan year 2029, Trend rate for Mediczrs par capita costs of 1.1%
Pre-f RP=2000 Noxn-A eligibility eondition Daath* Operating expansas ara ncluded for plan year énd 2020, 9.5% for plan year end 2021, decreasing by 0.5%
Mortallty Table projected with Scale Ad ona 25 a component of anaual each yaar thereafier, until ultimate trend rate of 4.5% is reached in plan yagr
Fully genarational bash LT and 2031,

,net of OPEG plan  Post-Retirament: RP—2000 Haalthy Annuita E i based tabla 2013 SOA study Health zdminfstrative axpenses Actual trend used far fiscal yaar 2018, For fiscal yezrs on #nd after 2019,

ment axponse, Mortality Table projacted with Scale AAon s of rates that are *Health Care Costs - are [acludad In the development trend mm at E.OX and 10.0% for pre snd post-Medicara, raspactivaly, and

ing inflation fully generstional basis; spetific 1o the typa of From Birth to of the par capita cleims cost. o an ul trand rate of 4.50%. Excess trend rate of
Pra-Ret: RP—2000 N igibl ' Death* Op ing ara i d 0 13% lnd 0.00% for pra lnll pun-Muﬂun respactively, is sdded
Mortality Table profacted with Scale AR on & as » campanont of annyal hailth trend rates p T to pes caita claims casts beginning in 2022
fulty generstiona| basis SxpansE. to accaunt far the Exclye Tax.

.netof OPEB plan  Post-Retirement: RP-2000 Healthy A Expari bated table 1013 S0A study Hezlth adminisirative cupeases Actual trand used for fiscal year 2017. For fiscal years on and after 2018,

ment expanse, Mortality Table projected with Scala AA on a af rates that ars “Haalth Cara Costs -  areincluded n the davalapment Wnd starts at B.5% and 9.75% for pra and post-Madicare, sespactively, and

ing Infation fully ganarational basts; spcticto the typa af  From Birth to of the par capita claims cost, fy ot 1o 0 it trand rate of 4.50%. Excess trand rata of
F RP-2000 Non-A g ¥ diti Death® ] are includad 0 14% 2nd 0.25% for pra and post-Medicare, respectively, |5 addad to
Mortality Table projected with Scala AA on a a3 & compa nant of annuzl healthczra trand ratas pertaining to par capita chaims ¢casts baginning [n 2020
fully genarational basis apania, o actount for the Exelse Tax,

[+1]
o



111

(5@1 Suttle& 70
I it Sta I na kerm.u:
Certified Public Accountants

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE
AND OTHER MATTERS BASED OMN AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE
WITH GOVERNMENT ALDITING STANDARDS

Board of Governors
Southern West Virginia Community and Technical College
Mt Gay, West Virginia

We hawve audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America
and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Stondords issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the business-type activities and discretely
presented component unit of Southern West Virginia Community and Technical College (the College], as of and
for the yvear ended June 30, 2023, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise
the College’s basic financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated October 4, 2023, which states
reliance on another auditor for the discretely presented component unit. Our report includes a reference to
another auditor who audited the financial statements of The Southern West Virginia Community College
Foundation, Inc. {the Foundation), as described in our report on the College's financial statements. This report
does not include the results of the other auditor's testing of internal control over financial reporting or
compliance and other matters that are reported on separately by that auditor. The financial statements of the
Foundation were not audited in accordance with Gowvernment Awditing Standards.

Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the College’s internal contral
over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness the College's internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an
opinion on the effectiveness of the College's internal contral,

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or
emplovees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct,
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weokness it a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in
internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial
statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significont deficiency is a
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal contral that is less severe than a material weakness, yet
important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance,

Viroi The R Park Sancrest Towne Centre Thet Somerville Bullding
mp Jﬁ',ﬂ?,:.‘fﬂ?;{,m ﬁgmiﬂf i 453 Suncrest Towne Cendre Drive 501 5tk Asenue
Suite 100 Suite 220 Sulle 201 ; Suite 1
Charleston, WV 25301 Parkersburg, WV 26101 orgamtowm, WY 26505 Huntington, WV 25701
s {304) 343-4126 s [304] 4856584 w304} 4856584 wis [304) 5250301

fan {3068] 3A3-BO0E rax (B0 4B5-0971 (30 4850071 s [304) 522-1569



112
71

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section
and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or
significant deficiencies and therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were not
identified. We identified certain deficiencies in internal control, described in the accompanying schedule of
findings and responses as item 2023-001 that we consider to be a material weakness.

Report on Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the College’s financial statements are free from
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the
financial statements. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective
of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances
of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

The Coliege’s Response to Findings

Government Auditing Standords requires the auditor to perform limited procedures on the College’s response to
the findings identified in our audit and described in the accompanying schedule of findings and responses. The
College’s response was not subjected to the other auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial
statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on the response.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and
the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control or
on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards in considering the entity's internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not
suitable for any other purpose.

St ot

Charleston, West Virginia
October 4, 2023



SOUTHERN WEST VIRGINIA COMMUNITY AND TECHNICAL COLLEGE
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND RESPONSES
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

2023-001 FINANCIAL REPORTING

Criteria:

Condition:

Context:

Cause:

Effect:

Recommendation:

Management of the College is responsible for establishing an internal control
structure that reduces to an acceptable level the risk of errors and fraud occurring
and not being detected. The College is also responsible for having a financial
management system in place to account for the receipt and expenditure of grant
and other funds, prepare accurate financial reports and be able to trace funds to a
level of expenditures adequate to establish that such funds have not been used in
violation of applicable laws and regulations, in a timely manner,

Several accounts in the general ledger required material adjustments to reconcile
to supporting documentation. Additionally, the trial balance initially provided did
not balance and beginning net position did not progress from prior year audited
net position.

Total assets, deferred outflows, Habilities, deferred inflows, net position,
revenues, and expenses of the College are $40.4 million, $443 thousand, $3.7
million, $859 thousand, $36.2 million, $20.2 million, and $20.4 million,
respectively, The impact of adjustments to assets, deferred outflows, liabilities,
deferred inflows, net position, revenues, and expenses was $450 thousand, 50,
$2.9 million, $0, $192 thousand, $7.9 million, and $5.2 million, respectively.

Inaccuracies in posting prior year audit adjustments, recording yearend accruals,
and reconciling supporting schedules to the fiscal year 2023 trial balance resulted
in material adjustments to the financial statements.

The financial statements required material audit adjustments in order to be
presented in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America (U.S. GAAP). Additionally, the discrepancies between
accounting records and the trial balance resulted in delays in issuing the audited
financial statements.

We recommend that management review the daily accounting functions, staffing,
and financial reporting processes to ensure adequate policies and procedures are
in place to ensure accurate and timely financial reporting. Management should
ensure that account reconciliations are prepared and reviewed in a timely manner
and ensure supporting schedules agree to the College’s financial records for all
account balances.

Views of Responsible We agree with the findings and will take the necessary corrective actions.

Officials:

113

72



114

<. SOUTHERN

WY COMMUNITY & TECHMICAL COLLECE

October 4, 2023
West Virginia Council for Community and Technical College Education

sputhern West Virginia Community and Technical College respectfully submits the following corrective action
plan for the yvear ended June 30, 2023,

Name and address of independent public accounting firm: Suttle & Stalnaker, PLLC, 1411 Virginia Street, East,

Suite 100, Charleston, WV 25301
Audit Period: Year ended June 30, 2023

The finding from the October 4, 2023 schedule of findings and responses is discussed below. The finding is
numbered consistently with the number assigned in the schedule,

FINDING-FINANCIAL STATEMENT AUDIT

2023-001 - FINANCIAL REPORTING

Recommendation;

We recommend that management review the daily accounting functions, staffing, and financial reporting

processes to ensure adequate policies and procedures are in place to ensure accurate and timely financial

reporting. Management should ensure that account reconciliations are prepared and reviewed in a timely

manner and ensure supporting schedules agree to the College's financial records for all account balances,
lanned Carrecti

Management is aware of the issues mentioned above due to the turnover in Finance Management and changes

In policies and procedures. We are currently reviewing accounting pelicies and procedures to ensure accuracy,

consistency, and timeliness of financial reporting. Cross training the accounting staff to strengthen the Finance

Department will be a priority. itwill be the responsibility of the Chief Finance Officer to make sure this corrective

action plan is put into effect immediately. 5

If the West Virginia Council for Community and Technical College Education has questions regarding this plan,
please call Velva Pennington, interim CFO at 304-896-7405

Sincarely,

f%&%

Velva Pennington, CFD

Southern WY Community & Technical College | 100 College Drive, Logan, WV 25601 | (866) 798-2821 | waw.southermwy.edu



115

SOUTHERN

COMARALIMITY & TECHMIC COLLEGE

Southern West Virginia Community and Technical College
Focused Visit Report
Prepared for:
The Higher Learning Commission and Visiting Committee
for Visit:
March 11-12, 2024
Area of Focus:

Faculty Credentialing, Assessment of Student Learning: Process Developed



116

Table of Contents
Historical Context

3.C.1-7 Summary. The institution has the faculty and staff needed for effective, high-
quality programs and student services.

3.C.1 Diversity, Equality, and Inclusion of Faculty: The institution strives to ensure that
the overall compaosition of its faculty and staff reflects human diversity as appropriate
within its mission and for the constituencies it serves.

3.C.2 Number of Faculty: The institution has sufficient numbers and continuity of faculty
members to carry out both the classroom and the non-classroom roles of faculty,
including oversight of the curriculum and expectations for student performance,
assessment of student learning, and establishment of academic credentials for
instructional staff.

Qversight of the Curriculum
Expectations for Student Performance
Assessment of Student Learning

Establishment of Academic Credentiais

3.C.3 Qualifications of All Facuity: All instructors are appropriately qualified, including
those in dual credit, contractual, and consortial offerings.

3.C.4 Evaluation of Faculty: instructors are evaluated regularly by established
institutional policies and procedures.

e Adjunct and Dual Credit Evaluations

3.C.5 Faculty Professional Development: The institution has processes and resources
for assuring that instructors are current in their disciplines and adept in their teaching
roles: it supports their professional development.

3.C.6 Accessibility of Instructors: Instructors are accessible for student inquiry.

3.C.7 Student Services: Staff members providing student support services, such as
tutoring, financial aid, advising, academic advising, and cocurricular activities are
appropriately qualified, trained, and supported in their professional development.

o Overview
o Staffing of Student Services
o Tutoring



117

+ Financial Aid
¢ Advising

4.B.1-3 Summary: The institution engages in ongoing assessment of student learning
as part of its commitment to the educational outcomes of its students.

4.8B.1. Process for Assessment of Student Learning and Goals: The institution has
effective processes for assessment of student learning and for achievement of learning
goals in academic and cocurricular offerings.

General Education Assessment
Course-Level Assessment
Program-Level Assessment
Program-Level Assessment
Co-Curricular Assessment

4.B.2 Assessment Data to Improve Student Learning Summary: The institution uses
the information gained from assessment to improve student learning.

General Education Qutcomes Assessment Data
General Education Qutcomes

Completion Rates of General Education Courses
Student Course Evaluations

Brightspace Data -

Course Student Learning OQutcomes Assessment Data
Program-Level Assessment Data

Co-Curricular Data

Administrative Assessment Data

4.B.3 Process and Methodology: The institutions processes and methodologies to
assess student learning reflect goed practice, including the substantial participation of
faculty, instructional, and other relevant staff members.



118

Historical Context

Southern West Virginia Community and Technical College (*Southemn”) serves
six counties in its region as a wide-ranging community college that strives to fulfill its
mission by providing education and leadership to its students. Southem West Virginia
Community and Technical College's updated mission statement is to improve lives
through education, services, and training. Employees, staff, faculty, and administrators
believe in his mission and collaborated in writing this statement, which describes the
community college.

Southern fulfills this mission by providing transfer, career, dual credit, co-
curricular activities, workforce development, and community offerings in various delivery
modalities. Southern serves approximately 1,400 students on its three campuses. In
2018, the College was on the Higher Learing Commission's (HLC) Open Pathway with
an onsite visit, which resulted in four components being “Met with Concern.” This
caused a modification to the Standard Pathway and a Focus Visit in 2020. During the
next visit, two more components were added, resulting in six areas that were “Met with
Concemn." Even though the Accreditation Liaison Officer (ALO) and new President,

Dr. Pamela Alderman, were able to defend some areas, the Institutional Actions
Council's (IAC) review supported the Committee's findings. It determined that an
embedded report was needed for their upcoming Assurance Argument in November
2022, With clanfication of the Argument by the visit and the submission of multiple
documents to the Evidence File, the Visiting Committee determined that Southermn is
moving in a positive direction due in part to the new leadership and the work completed
in the past two years. The College received a 10-year accreditation with a Focus Visit
scheduled for March 2024 on the two areas that were "Met with Concemn,” specifically
Faculty Credentialing and Assessment of Student Learning.

Since the 2022 visit, Southern has filled many critical administrative roles, which
the Visiting Committee recommended. In January 2023, a Director of Accreditation and
Assessment was hired, as well as a Dean of Allied Health and Nursing; furthermore,
after a careful nationwide search, Southem filled the significant position of Chief
Academic Officer (CAD). The experienced CAQ has 22 years of faculty experience, is
our current ALO, wrote the 2019 and 2022 reports, was instrumental in initiating the
Assessment Academy application, and was the initial Committee leader in the inttiation
of the Assessment Academy. The three people hired into these positions have an
average of 20 years of experience at Southern and were eager to fill these roles. With
these roles filled, the President could spend more time in her Presidential role, thereby
increasing her efficacy. During the Fall semester of 2023, the Director of Institutional
Research was hired by the Higher Education Learning Commission (HEPC), which was
closer to his home, Southern began posting the job in late fall, and found three gqualified
candidates for the position. Interviews were completed and a new person started
December 11, 2023. The person selected had an array of experience and excellent
expenance collecting and analyzing data. For a complete review of the job structures
and chain of command, see Organizational Chart.




119

Opening Message

Southern West Virginia Community and Technical College deployed and
implemented numerous new policies and processes during the restructuring phase that
tock place upon the arrival of their most current President, Dr. Pamela L. Alderman, on
May 4, 2020. Since that time, the College has overcome many concerns cited by
previous visiting teams. During its Comprehensive Visit on November 14, 2022, the
visiting team noted efforts in conducting assessment models broadly while using its data
to provide information for planning and budgeting successfully. The Team also
commended the College on the stability of its financial and physical resources,
leadership plans, and campus climate improvements.

Institutional Leadership Team

Dr. Pamela L. Alderman serves as the President, a role she has served since
May 4, 2020. President Alderman is a 32-year employee of the College and a 37-year
veteran of Higher Education. Other members of the President's Leadership Team are
Mr. William H. Alderman, Chief Academic Officer/Accreditation Liaison Officer, Mr.
Darrell Taylor, Chief Student Services Officer, Mr. Stacy Dingess, Chief Externat Affairs
Officer, Mr. Tom Cook, Chief Informaticn Office, Ms. Velva Pennington, Chief Finance
Officer, Ms. Debbie Dingess, Chief Human Resources Officer, and Mr. Joe Linville,
Chief Facilities Management Officer. Under the direction of the Chief Academic Officer,
Academic Leadership is provided by Dr. Lisa Haddox-Heston and Dr. Michael Jiles.

The College has secured key leadership positions over the past year with long-
term employees who have served in several roles from long-term faculty to various
levels of administrative roles. Additionally, these leaders have served the College
through various committees, spanning over 25 years each with strong ties to the
communities and service areas. Both of these leaders collaborated with the Team
Chair, absorbed all the knowiedge and advice offered, and worked tirelessly over the
past year to not only develop plans to implement but to expedite and provide evidence
ahead of schedule. As identified in the Reaffirmation Review, several practices were
underway but lacked clarity, and simplicity, and were too complex for faculty buy-in.
One of the College's newest leaders has been in her role since January 2023 after a
strong presence identifying assessment models used throughout her Nursing career.
The second leader is a 24-year employee in his second career, serving in Workforce
Development, Faculty, Division Chair, and Accreditation Liaison Officer, and was
chosen by a committee for Chief Academic Officer in January 2023. He previously held
upper-management roles for 22 years in an energy corporation most applicable to the
College's culture.



120

Assessment Academy Team

In addition to the Leadership Team, a seasoned Assessment Academy Team
leads the College in assessment models either streamlined, added, or significantly
improved over the past year, up to and including, closing the loops. The College has
been a member of the Higher Learning Commission’s Assessment Academy since its
approval in July 2020. Since that time, substantial growth has occurred within the team,
as well as the College. The team meets monthly while also managing their Academy
Projects which now consists of the following members:

Regina Bias, Chair of Assessment Academy and Director of Accreditation and
Assessment, Larry D'Angelo, Co-Chair and Assistant Professor of English, Sheliah
Elkins, Professor/Director of Nursing, Nathan Freeman, Assistant Professor of English,
Hattie Newsome, Student Success Career Coordinator, Vincent George, Assistant
Professor of Physical Science, Gordon Hensley Il, Assistant Professor of Business,
Meloney McRoberts, Associate Professor of Surgical Technology, Chris Ward,
Associate Professor of Mathematics and Director of Math and Sciences for Professional
and Transfer Programs, Pamela L. Alderman, Ex-Officio, President, William H.
Alderman, Ex-Officio, Chief Academic Officer/Accreditation Liaison Officer, and Darrell
Taylor, Ex-Officio, Chief Student Services Officer.

The Team has replaced members through a rotation method only, attempting to
maintain balance in all areas of discipline and adding co-curricular. The Team is
currently progressing in student learning outcomes and program outcomes, with Project
7 scheduled for February 24, 2024. The next step for the Team is progressing to
curriculum mapping and further data analysis which will transition the Team on the post
board from the Mid-Point Roundtable this past October. The Team will present the
entire 2-year progress at their Academy Graduation in fall of 2024.

The Assessment Academy’s Mentor and Scholar duly noted a great deal of
accomplishments in their SPARQ report dated October 1, 2023, since the Mid-Point
Roundtable. Faculty Conveocation Week this past fall represented a significant
investment in faculty professional development, was well-described, and represented a
diversity of topics showing expertise levels among their audience.

The 'Faculty Guide to Assessment’ and the addition of the assessment
expectations component of faculty contracts contribute to the narrative of promoting a
robust culture of assessment. A glossary of terminology has also been developed and
implemented for common terms, which proactively places assessment expectations and
justifications in a clear context for all facuity stakeholders.

Syllabi format improvements and simplicity strengthen the narrative that learning
outcomes are clearly and definitively communicated without the complexity that existed
during the Comprehensive Visit. Learning outcomes are communicated to students
early and often as the courses progress.



121

The 5 newly revised General Education Outcomes are presented will and
clarified through performance indicators. These are easy to find on the College's
website (Insert Link Here). The College has explicitly addressed the faculty adoption
component of these changes, further reinforcing the narrative that faculty own the
curriculum, material expertise, and assessment of curriculum and learning. The team
and college were commended for their commitment to transparency through the
development and implementation of the assessment website. Dedicated information is
provided with resources on topics including the following: Program and Course level
assessments, co-curricular assessment, faculty assessment guide, syllabi (and
assessment), advisory (and assessment), as well as the General Education Qutcome
work described above and evidenced in this report. The progress described here will be
referenced and displayed throughout this written report, as well as being physically
available during the visit. The College will provide electronic and hard copy files that
may be reviewed, and the leadership teams, administration, faculty, and staff to support
their work.

Criterion 3.C.1-7 Summary. The institution has the faculty and staff needed for
effective, high-quality programs and student services.

Southern serves its students on an undergraduate level. To maintain enough full-
time and adjunct faculty, the two divisions across the campuses seek qualified
candidates for open faculty positions who are credentialed, reflect the beliefs of the
College, and support the College's mission. Southem's service area is not diverse, and
this reflects the overall compaosition of the student population. The hiring process is
based on Equal Employment Opportunity and is free of any biases. Full-time faculty
serve on Governance Committees and work within various depariments to assess
student performance. The facully's academic credentialing procedure (SIP 2171)
has been updated to reflect equivalent experiences, such as work experience, teaching
experience, speaking engagements, and certifications. Credentials are reviewed yearly
when contracts are renewed.

3.C.1 Divarsi i nd Inclusion of Faculty: The institution strives to

ensure that the overall composition of its faculty and staff reflects human
diversity as appropriate within its mission and for the constituencies it serves.

The overall make-up of faculty and staff reflects the human diversity of the
student population. The state of West Virginia and Southern's service area has a very
homogenous population regarding race compared to the nation, and these numbers are
consistent among the service area, the student population, and faculty and staff. To
summarize, the make-up of Southern’s faculty and staff mirrors its service area,
however, diversity is noted beyond race and can be reflected by persons with
disabilities, different religious backgrounds, and various sexual orientations. Southern
confirms that recruiting and hiring procedures are free from all biases. Through the
Affirmative Action Plan, Southern affirms its belief in Equal Employment Opportunity for
all employees and applications. Southern has established a hiring process aligned with
Equal Employment Opportunity. Southern recruits, hires, trains, and promotes in all job




122

titles and ensures that all personnel actions are administered without regard to veteran
status, disability status, age, ethnicity, race, color, religion, sexual or gender orientation,
marital status, sex, or national origin. Southern West Virginia Community and Technical
College participated in a Civil Rights monitoring event for the Higher Education Policy
Commission. This audit began on September 25, 2023, and closed on October 25,
2023, with an extension to November 21%, 2023. Some of the items for review included
hiring practices, ADA compliance, employment, counseling, recruitment, access,
admission, financial aid, facilities, job placement, work studies, and accessibility to our
facilities. On November 27, 2023, the monitor found Southern to be in compliance in all
areas with minimal guestions.

Southern recently participated in the Modern Think Great College to work
for the 2023 Survey. The College has participated in this survey since 2020 and has
received accolades for the results. This survey is designed to recognize college that
have been successful in creating excellent workplaces and to further research and
understanding of the factors, dynamics and influences that have the most impact on
higher education institutions. The college scored the highest on faculty and staff well-
being (91%), diversity, inclusion, and belonging (91%), and mission and pride (94%).
The survey was sent to 188 employees, 126 completed the questionnaire, resulting in a
67% response rate. While the answers were in the category of “very good to
excellent,” except for one that was in the “good” category, the response rate was not
high enough to receive special recognition of Honor Roll as Southern did in 2022,

3.C.2 Number of Faculty: The institution has sufficient numbers and continuity of

culty members to ca out both the classroom and the n lassroom ro of
faculty, including oversight of the curriculum and expectations for student
performance, assessment of student learning, and establishment of academic
credentials for instructional staff.

Southern has adequate full-time and adjunct faculty to carry out its General
Education Outcomes, Program Outcomes, and Course Student Learning Outcomes.
During a reorganization (Organizational Chart), faculty are divided into two divisions:
Professional and Transfer Programs and Allied Health and Mursing Programs. The
College has a strong group of about 60 faculty members to carry out classroom and
non-classroom roles. For the academic year 2023, Southern’s student-to-faculty ratio
remained consistent at 17:1. Southern's faculty employee roster confirms that Southern
has employed 40% of its full-time faculty for 10 years or more. The number can be
found in Human Resources and on the West Virginia Higher Education Policy
Commission (HEPC) Human Resources Data.

Besides fulfilling the classroom role, faculty also have non-classroom duties,
such as college-wide Governance Committees, e.g., Curriculum and Instruction,
Faculty Senate, Assessment, and Strategic Planning; furthermore, faculty are
responsible for co-curnicular activities, such as sponsoring organizations and clubs,
attending commencement, participating in policy and procedure, and performing
Assessment activities; governance committee participation is also part of the full-time



123

faculty workload, as well as being on various ad-hoc and screening committees as
needed. The wide variety of committees and subcommittees provides faculty
opportunities for service to the College and a voice in the shared governance structure.
As per SCP-2875, Workload Requirements for Full-time Faculty and Instructional
Specialists, faculty engage in professional development while maintaining their 7.5
hours of office and 30 credit hours a year,

Oversight of the Curriculum

The faculty at Southern monitor the curriculum through a Governance Committee
Curriculum Subcommittee, which meets regularly and as needed. This subcommittee
focuses on curricular issues at Southern and is responsible for submitting
recommendations to the Academic Student Affairs Committee (ASAC) regarding
curriculum, instruction, and student learning. The faculty members of the Curriculum
Subcommittee ensure that all new and existing academic programs and courses
coherently provide quality learning experiences by utilizing the syllabi template and
reviewing the proposed Bloom's Taxonomy Levels for accuracy,

The external stakeholders also review the curriculum: the program advisory
members who meet annually. Program Cutcomes, job placement, program completion,
and cerification passage rates are also discussed (Advisory Handboaok). During the
2023 Advisory meetings of various programs, a Strength-Weakness-Opportunities-
Threat Analysis was created and will be assessed every three years. Many program
advisory members felt that the program's curriculum was one of its strengths. Ninety
percent of the program advisories(N=15), as well as the faculty overseeing and
implementing the curriculum, listed the components of the curriculum as one of its
strengths.

Expectations for Student Performance

Faculty explain student performance expectations in the current, up-to-date
course syllabi through the Course Student Leamning Outcomes. Syllabi identifies what
the faculty member requires and expects from the student during the course and what
the student should expect from the faculty member teaching the class. Faculty possess
ownership of their systems and want students to succeed. Clearly defined outcomes
are Southern’'s contract with all students and stakeholders and reflect those learning
outcomes that students will have with the course's completion. The Course Student
Leaming Qutcomes are measurable, realistic, observable, and reflective of the
knowledge and skills valued by the faculty and the College. These outcomes drive the
teaching-learning relationships inherent to success at Southern.

The 2022 HLC Visiting Committee indicated that Southern’s current three-part
syllabus was confusing and may not be working. They suggested that Southem develop
a different formatftemplate as a college-wide system. The College updated SI1P-3160,
Course Syllabus, and SIP-3180.A, Course Syllabu Course Syllabus Format, SIP-
3160.A, was sent out by the Faculty Senate Chair, who encouraged faculty to respond.
Also, this syllabi procedure and format were created collaboratively by the Academic



124

Assessment Subcommittee (AAS) (“Assessment Academy") and the Faculty Senate
before its introduction to faculty-at-large.

As a pilot for the new syllabi format, the administration worked collaboratively,
and faculty were provided with pre-filled syliabi in the Summer 2023 term. These syllabi
were developed using information in Banner and merged into the new syllabi template.
This helped ensure that course descriptions and syllabi format were congruent. Some
problems encountered were spacing issues, courses added after the merger, and
prerequisites. During Faculty Convocation 2023, all faculty received training regarding
completing and submitting the new syllabi format. On August 14, 2023, the faculty
approved the new syllabi format and its implementation for the Fall 2023 semester.

Another item the previous HLC Visiting Committee mentioned was that the
Course Student Learning Qutcomes were not measurable and would frustrate students
and faculty trying to understand student performance. The faculty expressed confusion
regarding the difference between Program and Course QOutcomes. As part of the
Assessment Academy’s project, and through recommendations by the Academy’s
mentor and site visitors, faculty along with the Assessment Academy members are
reviewing Course Student Learning Outcomes and Project Outcomes for all courses
offered at Southern to ensure they are measurable, realistic, and observable;
furthermore, the Academy is planning professional development regarding writing
Course Student Learning Outcomes,

Assessment of Student Learning

Assessment is faculty-driven, as demonstrated by the membership of the Academic
Assessment Subcommittee (AAS) ("Assessment Academy”) and the processes
introduced in the past year. When the Academy began, the membership included
various people across the college. Southern faculty used to perceive that Assessment
was like “taxes”, meaning that it was a report that took a lot of time and had no benefit.
However, this atmosphere has changed because faculty has claimed responsibility,
realizing that assessment can bring change and that administration is working to make it
easier. Based on the mentor's recommendation in the third-year consultation, Southern
restructured the committee to all faculty, except for one student services representative,
with staff as ex-officio. The mentor stated,

“Given concerns that faculty members may not have been completely

on board with mandates related to assessment, Southern might

reconsider its voting membership on the Assessment Committee in

order to foster a perception that those that make Assessment decisions

that faculty will need to implement and be responsible for its data

collection are themselves all faculty members. Some field proponents

consider this an important driver regarding faculty ownership of curriculum

(and its assessment). Staff can still have ex-officio membership which

allows them to participate in all the work of the committee.”



125

The Academic Assessment Subcommittee aims to provide assessments regarding the
assurance of quality and consistent teaching and learning through evaluation, review of
programs, provide vigorous evaluations of individual courses and programs within the
Academic Affairs division, and to promote assessment by being “Assessment Academy
Ambassadors.” This faculty committee is responsible for developing, maintaining, and
evaluating, through rubrics, the General Education Outcomes. The Academy is also
responsible for working with the Academic Deans and Program Directors to ensure that
state, federal, and college Assessment standards are reviewed, evaluated, and reported
to all parties concerned and for updating accreditation and compliance regulations.

Southern has established a process for assessing student learning through
General Education, Program, and Course Student Learning Outcomes. These
processes can be found in the Faculty Assessment Guide. In fact, Veronica McGowan,
Assessment Academy Mentor, stated, "The “Faculty Guide to Assessment” and
assessment component of faculty contracts also contnbute to the narrative of promoting
a culture of assessment by providing a glossary of common terms and proactively
putting assessment expectations and justification in context for faculty stakeholders.”
General Education Assessment is the ultimate responsibility of faculty, and the report
outlines these results. Because the General Education Outcomes had to be rewritten
before Southern could begin collecting data, the College began collecting data in the
2023 summer term instead of the 2023 spring term. The Course-Level Assessment
Reporting was continued, and Program-Level Assessment was initiated by updating
Program Outcomes, curricula mapping, and completing an annual survey. The Five-
Year Program Reviews were kept on schedule. Section 4. B details the Academic
Assessment Subcommittee’s work; we are involved in mapping General Education,
Program, and Course Student Learning Outcomes.

Establish C ial

Southern employs qualified faculty members by using the Higher Learning
Commission Guidelines, “Determining Qualiied Faculty through HLC's Criteria for
Accreditation and Assumed Practices,” and Facully Qualifications Proposed Folicy
Change, on June 22, 2023; Southern previously did not use equivalent experience in
determining minimal qualifications, as stated in the final report from the 2022 Visiting
Committee. Since the visit, the Higher Learning Commission on November 15, 2023,
released a new policy, "Faculty Qualification, new guidelines, “Institutional Policies and
Procedures for Determining Faculty Qualifications: HLC's Criteria for Accreditation and
Assumed Practices,.” and guidelines for "Dual Credit." This policy and the guidelines
were used as a basis for the newly updated procedure, SIP-2171, "Faculty
Credentialing,” which includes equivalent experience and progression. When the faculty
cannot be fully credentialed through academics or equivalent experience, a Professional
Development Plan is developed between the College and the applicant. This plan will
specify what needs to be completed, the faculty member's responsibilities, the college's
responsibilities, and a designated time frame for completion. Southern considers the
highest degree held as the starting point in the hiring process. Suppose an applicant
does not have a master's degree in a related field or 18 graduate credit hours in the




126

discipline or subfield applied for (or a bachelor's degree in the career or technology
field). In that case, the Dean must review the procedure to determine a justification to
hire the individual. The policy states that Southern can use equivalent experiences,
such as current certifications, five years of full-time work experience, five years of full-
time teaching experience, publications, and national speaking engagements, in
determining qualifications. Potential candidates must show they have some of these
gualifications to be hired. Using equivalent experience to determine minimal
qualifications is especially important in considering what courses to be taught and the
individual's relevant work history. With this new procedure and the completion of SCP-
2171.A, Determine Minimal Qualificafion for Instructional Faculty Form, the Academic
Deans, responsible for ensuring qualifications, can review competence, effectiveness,
knowledge, and skills appropriate to the course, program, and institution. Full-time,
adjunct, and dual-credit faculty must be credentialed and have all official transcripts
before hiring. A Professional Development Plan will be developed with a timeline if
additional professional development is required, The Office of Human Resources
maintains records of all job postings, job applications, copies of official transcripts
submitted, professional development plans, and other credential documents.

Another avenue Southern has added to their credentialing procedure is
progression, where a progression plan, or "Professional Development Plan,” is
established for faculty who do not meet the minimum highest degree qualification. This
procedure is reviewed with the faculty member and is included in the faculty member's
contract.

Southern West Virginia Community and Technical College’s Accreditation Liaison
Officer met via Zoom with the Staff Liaison to discuss developing a new procedura
regarding credentialing. The difficulty in obtaining qualified faculty based solely on the
highest degree eamed was acknowledged, and the Staff Liaizon Officer stated that one
way to meet the criteria for credentialing was to combine years of experience, classes,
work experience, and student success data to ensure that each faculty member is
qualified to teach classes at Southern. Based on the policy changes and the Staff
Liaison's recommendations, Southern updated the credentialing procedure to lower
previous requirements to hire at 12 graduate hours in the field to teach, to use
progression to reach the 18 graduate hours, and to use equivalent experience. This
procedure and form were then sent for faculty review and approved by the President's
Cabinet,

C. ifications of All Fac . instru riately qualified
including those in dual credit, contractual, and consortial offerings.

All faculty are appropriately qualified per the establishment of academic
credentials and equivalent experience for instructional staff as stated in section 3.C.2.
The Faculty Credentialing Form, SCP-2171.A, must be presented to the Office of
Human Resources by all Academic Deans to verify the qualifications of all faculty. The
Deans list all courses each faculty member is qualified to teach and the degrees,
special certifications, and experiences that meet the Higher Learning Commission's




127

guidelines. Faculty are responsible for updating their new credentials, such as
certifications, licenses, and certificates, to their Dean and Human Resources.

During the recent 10-year comprehensive visit, some facuity files were missing
transcripts; according to Southern’s procedures, some facuity were not minimally
qualified. To rectify this situation, Southern approached this problem utilizing a
committee approach. As mentioned, the systems were updated to reflect equivalent
experience and progression, and the credentialing form was updated to reflect the
change of using equivalent experience. The Chief Academic Officer and Chief of
Human Resources requested that all faculty review their employee files and update
them as needed. As faculty checked their files, they were asked to sign a form
indicating completion of the task. Southern faculty discovered they had two files: one
for demographics and evaluations and the other a “transcript” file. When faculty
reviewed their files, many found that transcripts were inadvertently missing, placed in
the demographic files, or had fallen into the bottom of the drawer. During a meeting, the
Chief of Human Resources and her employees closed the “transcript” file, thus ensuring
the transcripts’ security.

During the 2023 summer term, the administration conducted audits to ensure all files
had their transcripts and an updated credentialing form. This included full-time faculty,
adjunct faculty, and dual-credit faculty. The revised procedure and form were applied to
determine if each faculty member was credentialed and if the system was viable. The
administration discovered that minor modifications had to be made; however, Southern
believes current faculty are credentialed and qualified to teach their assigned courses.
Southern has been routinely reviewing files and updating forms as needed. The audits
included ensuring the transcripts were in the file, the transcripts were official, and the
facuity member was credentialed to teach what they were credentialed to teach.
Furthermore, The Chief Technology Officer has made a dashboard to determine if the
faculty is credentialed. Error reports are done daily to ensure no one is teaching
something they are not supposed to. A copy of the audit forms will be available during
the visit.

Name:

Yes No

2171 Signed

Qualified to teach classes
Classes

Transcripts match 2171
Transcripts Official
Masters/18 hours preferred
Bachelors/ equivalent
experience

If not qualified, progression
development plan




128

Other (Licenses,
certifications)

Another issue that has been corrected was listing what course qualified faculty
could teach. Previous Deans were writing “all” on the forms, which did not clearly define
the courses the faculty could teach. Deans are responsible for determining which
lessons faculty may teach and fill out SCP_2171A. Form and send it to their respective
Administrative Associate, who submits the state to “Sign Now" so the faculty member,
the Dean, and Chief Human Resource Officer, can review the form and initial it.

Lastly, the record is updated in the system. This informal process ensures that faculty
only teach courses for which they are qualified.

3.C.4 Evaluation of Faculty: Instructors are evaluated reqularly in accordance

with established institutional policies and procedures,
All full-time, adjunct, and dual-credit faculty are evaluated by SCP 2218

Evalualion of Full-time Facully, which frames the guidelines for evaluating instructors.
Full-time faculty are evaluated annually by their Academic Dean or Director based on
their primary responsibilities in classroom teaching performance, advising, and student
relations. Southem is updating this policy to include the evaluation of adjunct faculty.
While visiting the classroom, the evaluator will utilize the specific criteria mentioned in
the policy. This ensures that the mission of the academic depariments, and the College
is fulfilled by helping the faculty members have measurable ways to improve
performance. Newly hired faculty receive a classroom visit at least once per semester
for the first three years.

Besides classroom teaching performance, advising, and student relations,
Southern administration reviews faculty’s scholarship and service. Faculty are
encouraged to seek further educational opportunities and to display professionalism to
the College, the profession, and the community. Faculty serve on various committees,
assist with college functions for the community, such as Trunk or Treat, and participate
in activities that are part of their profession. Southern stresses the importance of
maintaining current expertise, skills, and knowledge based on the job because it
improves teaching performance in the classroom,

Faculty evaluations are completed using the SCP-2218 A, Facully Evalualion

Forms. Using this form, faculty prepare an annual planning document, indicating their
professional development activities and providing information concerning the service
areas available for consideration and inclusion in promotion packets. Faculty are also
required to prepare a self-evaluation of their perfformance. This overview becomes a
part of the overall end-of-year evaluation report. A comprehensive evaluation is then
submitted to the Office of Human Resources and is maintained as part of the individual
employment demographic file. The Faculty Senate at Southern West Virginia
Community and Technical Caollege is reviewing these forms to make positive changes
and further streamline the process.



129

The Senate Chair and Senate faculty have recently been updating the Faculty
Handbook to reflect the new policies on faculty evaluation and syllabi. Faculty now
teaching at Southern have a resource for precise and consistent expectations and
processes. This Handbook will contain various policies and procedures, including
credentialing and assessment. This source can be found on the College website.

Besides being evaluated by the Academic Dean or Director, faculty are also
evaluated by students each semester. Following SIP-2220, Course Feedback, students
can provide feedback to faculty by using 5IP-2220.A, Course Feedback Survey. This
survey is sent out electronically via the Information Technology Department, which
maintains the data and keeps the answers confidential; results are not released if the
survey has five or fewer responses. This survey provides an Assessment tool that
provides information regarding the effectiveness of the course. Southern realizes that
surveys are considered “weak data" but the Assessment Academy members feel that
students should also have a voice in evaluating their educational experience. These
student evaluations are part of the faculty's promotion packet and can be used to guide
faculty in updating their courses. During the 2023-2024 term, the Faculty Senate has
been asked to update the Course Feedback form collaboratively with the Academic
Assessment Subcommittee (“Assessment Academy”) to provide a form from which data
can be collected for student success and a more in-depth analysis of courses.

Adjunct and Dual Credit Evaluations

Adjunct and dual-credit faculty are evaluated with other measures, such as
course evaluations via SIP-2220.A, a course-level assessment. Dual-credit faculty are
further assessed using the student performance section on the college-administered
common final. Southern's Facully Senate is currently revising its policy to evaluate all
faculty, not just full-time. These forms will be slightly different to reflect the role of
adjunct faculty. The college will follow the new Higher Learning Commission Guidelines
on Dual Credit.

rusnur::as. I'nr assuring 'Ihat mstrm:tnrs are cu rrent |n 'Ihmr dlm:rphnus and adept

in their teaching roles: it supports their professional development.

All faculty are encouraged to engage in scholarship and professional growth and
participate in their discipline-related activities and organizations. Southern's purpose of
employee professional development is to increase professionalism, productivity, and
individual and organizational effectiveness, therefore, employees are encouraged lo
participate in professional development for their position or as requestedirequired by
their supervisor or discipline-accrediting body. SCP-2624, Employee Development,
outlines the requirements and steps for professional development funding. Students rely
on current, knowledgeable, and relevant instruction and benefit from an evidence-based
practice that improves teaching skills and knowledge; furthermore, the College benefits
from enhanced understanding of their faculty because students are more prepared to
move from crientation to independence in their newly employed positions.




130

A survey (2023) was sent to faculty regarding professional development. A total
of faculty (N=37) responded to the survey, with 95% stating they have had professional
development to stay current in their respective fields. Southern spent $12, 593.61 on
professional development for faculty in 2023. Additionally, faculty identified updating
and revising curriculum, networking, and attending webinars as the three most common
activities to stay current in their respective field; furthermore, to stay current in their
fields, faculty reported on a previous survey that they regularly read journal articles,
attend conferences, and take additional courses. As of Fall 2023, the administration
has requested that faculty send any certificates regarding professional development in
their related field. Below is a bar graph representing what type of professional

developments were completed by the faculty.

Which of the following activities did you use to stay current in your respective

Reading professional articles

Attending webinars
Pursuing higher degrees
Taking additional courses
Updating curriculum
Reviewing desk copies
Metwarking

fMember Protessional Org

18
18
15
2T
13

21

L&

LI

i

field?

of Instructors: Instructors are accessible for student ingui

SCP-2875, Workload Requirements for Full-time Faculty and Instructional

Specialists, and SIP 3600, Office and Class Schedule, state that faculty teaching typical
lecture classes shall schedule at least 7.5 office hours per week. Faculty that teaches

online should be synchronous using Zoom or Microsoft Committees as a form of
communication with students; faculty must maintain traditional office hours scheduled
on campus, online hours in SSConnect available for access by all students, or an
additional three-hour credit course not counted toward base course load. Faculty
teaching a combination of in-class and online courses may post up to three hours of the
7.5 office hours in SSConnect. SSConnect is a platform utilizing Zoom rooms created
by Southern during Covid so students would have an access to Student Services. Itis



131

now also used by faculty to meet with students. The SSConnect will have an operator
and will send the student to an assigned room to speak with the requested individual.
Additionally, many faculty post their times of availability and contact information (phone
number and office number) in their syllabi and Brightspace, Southern's Leaming
Management System. Faculty are also required to post their office schedules on their
office doors and submit a copy of their office schedule to their respective Deans.

In 2018, with the creation of SIP-7000.A, E-Mail Procedures and Guidelines
Goveming Distribution Lists, Southern e-mail became the primary method of
communication between students and faculty. The College purchased licenses so that
faculty, staff, and students would have access to the Microsoft 365 Suite. The various
methods of communication processes are discussed with students during the first week
of class, furthermore, during New Student Orientation, students are educated on e-mail
communication at Southern and are given a login for e-mail and Brightspace. Under
SCP 2875, faculty are given a 48-hour response time for e-mails but try to answer them
even more quickly.

Besides being accessible to students via e-mail and office schedules, many
faculty offer to meet with students beyond their scheduled office time and after class.
Faculty stress to students the importance of reaching out for assistance and encourage
them to ask for help. Students often express their gratitude to faculty via e-mail and on
student course evaluations.

Another avenue that offers open communication between faculty and students is
using Microsoft Committees, which was introduced on November 3™, 2023, at an
employee-at-large assembly for professional development, The Chief Academic Officer
used a large screen to explain the composition of this electronic business
communication platform. Committees, a communication platform, offers workspace chat
and videoconferencing, file storage, and application integration. Faculty and staff were
encouraged to use this modality as Zoom is being phased out.

3.C.7T Student Services: Staff members providing student support services, such
as tutoring, financial aid, advising, academic advising, and cocurricular activities

are appropriately qualified, trained, and supported in their professional
development.

Overview

Southern is committed to providing high-guality student support services that
meet the needs of the students. The College recognizes the critical role this department
plays in student success. The Administrative Unit of Student Services offers numerous
ways to engage students and augment their learning at Southemn through workshops,
training, counseling, clubs, and other activities.

Southern subscribes to the Council for the Advancement of Standards in Higher
Education (CAS) for programmatic and co-curricular assessment purposes. In 2022-



132

2023, Southern conducted its first self-assessment with various disciplines on the
Academic Advising Criteria Committee. The Final Review Committee for Student
Success was comprised of one faculty member, one staff member, and one academic
advisor. The review of findings identified Good Practices, such as staff members who
are highly. qualified, effective, and provide professional leadership to accomplish
student success; students can receive academic advising anywhere they can access
the internet using their phone, computer, or other device. The Admission Committee
found Good Practices also included a well-trained admission staff and the use of
technology, such as SSConnect, which is a Zoom room designed to provide all students
on-site or distant support services in financial aid, futoring, advising, and information on
co-curricular activities. The review of findings recognized some “Areas of
Improvement,” such as a need for a mission statement with goals and improved
alignment with diversity, equity, and inclusion, as well as more co-curricular
assessment. Since this meeting, Southern has developed a definition for co-curricular
and an Assessment plan with co-curricular outcomes and program indicators. The
"Areas of Improvement” are now corrected.

Staffing of Student Servi

One of Southern's strong points is that Student Services staff members meat or
exceed the gualifications of their job descriptions.  Their supervisor evaluates them
yearly using the appropriate Performance Appraisal Form, which assesses job
knowledge, effective leadership, quality of work, interpersonal skills, customer service,
collaborative effort, and punctuality. All Student Services staff serve at least state,
regional, or national organizations.

Southern West Virginia Community and Technical College

Audit Sheet for Student Services
Title Education Exparience
Student Success Matters Only | Master of Business
For Admissions and/or Administration
Student Records Matters Only | AA Business Administration-
Health care Management
Student Success Advisor Bachelor of Science, Hired 2002 as financial aid
Business, Finance counselor until 2011, now in

Disability Services. Savas Kostas
Award, Presidents Future Leader

Acadeny

Student Success Advisor Ad: General Studies: BA:

Elementary Education
Director of Financial BA, Regents
Assistance AAS, Accounting
Student Success Advisor Master of Education,

Counseling and Human

Development
Financial Ald Counselor A4, University Transfer,

General Studies Certificate)




133

AAS: Business Accounting,
Administration,

Student Success Advisar Master of Education,

[TANF) Counseling and Human
Development

Student Success Center Master of Education,

Coordinator Counseling and Humarn
Development

Director of Admission AAS-Governor Adult

completion, Master of
Education, Counseling and
Human Development

Chief Student Services Officer | Doctorate of Education,
Education Leadership
MA-Agency Counseling
Director of Student Success MA-Counseling

Registrar m5 Adult and Technical
Education

Associate in Scient-Business-
Banking

Associate in Science-General
Studies

Student Success Advisor Bachelor Business
Administration-Marketing
Area

Career Services Counsalor AAS: General Business, Bs-
Business Management, M5-
Management of Leadership
Student Success Advisor Regents Business
Administration, AA-
University Transfer,
certificate General Studies

Southern encourages all staff to seek out opportunities for self-improvement by
seeking professional development opportunities, classes, webinars, and training that
can improve their knowledge and 5ki|la as part of EGPvEEEJI. I'I.I'Iany staff membears
apply for tuition waivers as part of 5. Awardin fe Tuition and
Fee Waivers, and SIP-2165, Edur:ahﬂna! Release ﬂme for C}asmﬁed Staff, which
allows for educational release time for one class a semester dunng the year, Southern
has always had an environment of encouraging staff to pursue professional
development. Finance reports that many full-time staff received professional
development funds. Southern spent $13,917.05 for student services professional
development and allocated 48,280.55 for staff's continuing education. Much of their
professional development was paid for my grant funding, scholarships, and third-party
employers. Also, many of the mandatory state and federal professional development is
paid for by the sponsor. Student services employees (N=17) were surveyed regarding




134

professional development and 15/17 (88%) stated they had professional development
and 13M7 (76.47%) stated that Southern had paid for professional development. Below
is a bar graph representing what type of professional developments were completed by
the student services employees.

Which of the following activities did you use to stay current in your respective
field?

Attending weblnars
Pursuing higher degrees
Taking additional courses
Updating curriculum
Reviewing desk coples

Metwoarking

et

Reading professional articles &

1

=
Wiembar Profes onal Org 2
Attending inservices via Zoom 12 . I
g l I

S Pl o O LD e
[ B3 i Les]

i

Tutering

The staff of the Student Success programs, such as disabilities accommodations,
advising, and tutoring, are qualified to provide appropriate service, as evidenced by the
credentials outlined in their résumeés. Southern utilizes a variety of approaches to
tutoring; one such program is Brainfuse, which provides online access to professional
tutors on most subjects 24 hours a day, seven days a week, Students can access this
program through their online Brightspace D2L account. This free program offers a
comprehensive online writing lab, assignment help and skills building, and an advanced
online learning platform. Many faculty members include Brainfuse as part of an
assignment to encourage students to use the service.

The Tutoring Program also includes access to Math and English faculty in a face-
to-face format that may be in-person in the Learning Studio or online using Zoom or
Microsoft Committees. Students log in to access tutoring services so Student Services
personnel can follow up on early alert referrals. Tutors are currently full-time
credentialed faculty working in one-on-one and small-group settings. Tutors
communicate and explain topics effectively and have knowledge of tutoring techniques,
standards, and supplemental learning materials for individual and group tutoring. In the
fall of 2022, 12 students received 28 tutoring sessions. In Spring 2023, five students
received tutoring services 25 times during the semester. Overall, for the 2022-2023



135

terms, 17 students received tutoring with a total of 53 sessions; furthermore, 15/17
students (88.24%, N=24) had a passing rate and 2/17 {11.75%, N=17) had a failing rate

for the academic year.

Tutoring Services Summary

Semester Number of Students # of Tutoring Sessions
Fall 2020 11 74
Spring 2021 10 76
Fall 2022 25 104
Spring 2022 19 99
Total 65 358




136

Tutoring Services Summary
Fall 2022/Spring 2023

s — s — ——

In fall 2022, there were twenty-seven (27} students who received math tutoring sessions in different subjects. Two
their courses, leaving twenty-five (25) students counted in the data collection. In total, the students received a tota
22/25 students (B8%) passed their courses, and 3/25 students (12%) failed their courses.

In spring 2023, there were twenty-three (23) students who received a total of 110 tutoring sessions. 16/23 studer
courses, and 7/23 students (30.43%) failed their courses.

Overall, there was a total of fifty (50) students who received tutoring services for both semesters (fall 2022, spring
however, withdrew the math courses, leaving 48 (48) students counted in the data collection. The forty-eight (48]
sessions. 38/48 (79.17%) had a passing rate, and 10/48 (20.83%) had a failing rate for both semesters (fall 20z

Semester Course | Course | Course| Course | Course | Course | Course | Course | Course | Course

ME 102 | MT 105A | MT 124 | MT 125 | MT 121E | MT 121 | MT 130 | MT 130A | MT 123 | BU 115

Fall 2022 0 0 1 0 23 1 1 1 0 0
(1WC (WC
course) course)
22 tolal { total

Spring 1 3 0 3 8 0 1 4 - 1

2023




137

Total

30.43%

(failed)

48 38/48 272
(total | 79.17% | (total
sfudents | (passing| {tutoring
for both rate) | sessions
semesters) for the two
10/48 | semesters)

20.83%
(failing




Tutoring Services Summary
Fall 2022 / Spring 2023

In fall 2022, there were twelve (12) students who received twenty-eight (28) English and/or writing skills tutoring
sessions for the fall semester, 10/12 students (83.33%) passed their courses. 2/12 (16.67%) failed their courses.
There were fourteen (14) students attend the TEAS English / Reading Prep sessions that were not counted in total of
witoring sessions but recorded. There were thirteen (13) students attend the TEAS Math Prep that were not counted in

total of tutoring sessions but recorded.

In spring 2023, there were five (5) students who received a total of twenty-five (25) English and/or writing skills tutoring

sessions. 575 students 100% passed their courses.

Overall, there was a total of seventeen (17) students who received a total of fifty-three (53) tutoring sessions for the two
semesters (fall 2022, spring 2023). 15/17 students (88.24%) had a passing rate, and 2/17 students (11.76%) had a

failing rate for the two semesters (fall 2022, spring 2023).

138

ENGLISH! | MATH Sissing
EN101 | EN101E | EN115 | SO200 | HS 120 | READING | PREP
PREP
12 28 tutoring
1012 sessions fotal
83.33%
Fall 2022 2 9 1 0 0 14 13 (passed) 27 students
attended TEAS
212 Prep sessions
16.67%
(failed)
(TEAS sessions
not included in

total of tutoring

sessions)




Spring 2023

Total

5
5/5 100%
(passed)

25

17
(total students
for both
semesters)

15/17
88.24%
(passing rate)

217
11.76%
(failing rate)

53
(total tutoring
sessions for the
fwo semesters)

139




Financial Aid

140

Financial Aid is overseen by the Director of Student Financial Assistance, who
has a degree in accounting. The department has ongoing professional development,
which keeps them up to date on any updates regarding federal rules. The Committee
“huddles” every Monday, receiving updates on new regulations. For the 2023 term,
Southern's financial aid program awarded 3,680 students with federal, state, or
institutional financial aid, with a total award of $6,628,087.08. The counselors make
every attempt to help students succeed in their endeavors.

Fall 2022 Spring 2023
Students Award Students | Award Yearly Award
Awardied Amount Awarded | Amount Amount
$  1,901,776.3 & 1,74549853 |5 36472716
Pell Grant 714 |5 638 | 1 (3
Direct
Subsidized
Loans 218 | 5 401,354.00 191 | § 377,718.00 | 5 779,072.00
Direct
Unsubsidized
Loans 200 | 5 446, 167.00 177 | 5 413,560.00 | 5 859, 727,00
5 21,200.0 5 60,0000 |5 81,200.0
SECQG 53| 0 151 10 i
Emergency 5 s - 15
SEOG 1] 0
5 23,418.7 s 21,6899 |5 45,108.7
Wark-study 6|9 16 | & g
$  2,793,916.1 5 26184632 |5 5412,379.4
Tatal 4 7 1
WV Higher
Education 5 1,2558110
Grant 444 | & B78,128.00 373 | 5 578,683.00 | O
WV Invest 122 | & 207,639.00 96 |5 18140200 |5  389,041.00
5 85,007.0 5 £1,458.0
Promise 44 | 0 a4 | 0 5 166,465.00
) 62,469.0 3 52,208.0
HEAPS 46 | D 7|0 -] 114,677.00
s 17,500.0 5 17,5000 |S 35,000.0
WY Mursing 710 7|0 0
$  1,050,743.0 S  1,961,994.0
(1]

| Total 0 5 911,251.00




141

Southern 5 97.401.0 5 51,827.0
scholarship 59 | 0 55| 0 5 189,228.00
Foster Care 5 7.943.0 5 72670 |5 15,210.0
Waiver 410 4|40 1]

5 12 8830 5 10,7210 | % 23,6040
HaTA F10 6|0 ]
Employee 5 9,295.0 3 72670 |8 16,562.0
Waiver 2|0 6|0 a
Emplovee
Dependent/
Spouse 5 28,223.0 ] 30,589.0 | % 58.812.0
Waiver 18| 0 15| 0 i}
Total $  155,745.00 S 14767100 |$  303,416.00
Advising

The Director of Student Success has a Master of Arts degree in counseling and
works closely with all those in her department. The Student Success Advisor advises
students about their academic plans, progress, schedules, majors, and career goals to
help them decide on personal educational purposes, The Academic Advisor is a
professional advising position responsible for providing high-quality academic advice to
applicants, current students, and recent graduates. The Academic Advisor also
conducts individual student interviews, group meetings, and workshops on résumé
writing, study skills, time management, business eliquette, siress management, eic.
This position requires excellent interpersonal communication skills and the ability to
effectively work with and provide information, assistance, and related services to
students, faculty, and staff. Work is performed under limited supervision, working within
guidelines and established standards.

aome of the problems faced in this position are varied and often complex,
requiring analysis and interpretation of the situation. Currently, eight employees provide
advising services in the Office of Student Services. Five of these employees have
earned master's degrees, and three have bachelor's degrees. As Student Success
Advisors are hired, they complete an ocnboarding process and training program. Newly
hired staff train with experienced Student Success Advisors in person and on
S5Connect. With SSConnect, experienced Student Success Advisors have recorded,
with students’ permission, some of their advising sessions with students to use as
training; furthermore, new hires are not scheduled to work on S5Connect initially, so a
more seasoned advisor is available when guestions arise.

One of Southem's significant programs under advising is the Office of Disability
Services. In the Fall 2022/Spring 2023 term, the Office of Disability Services saw 21
students with various disabilities and sometimes multiple diagnoses. Appropriate
accommaodations were made to help these students succeed, These accommodations
included extended test ime, note taking, photographed notes from the board, test
readers, test writers, and using a calculator.



142

Disahilia Tiﬂe

Extended Test Time 16
FM Hearing System

Isolated Testing/Reduced Distractions 16
MNote Taking 14
Photograph Motes from Board 13
Print Enlargement/Screen Reader

Preferential Seating g
Record Lectures (voice recording) 15
Regular Private Feedback with Faculty on 15
Performance

Professor Facing Class

Test Reader 1
Test Writer (Scribe)

Tutoring in Specific Courses 16
Use of Calculator 7
Use of Personal Laptop/Tablet'Word Processor 15
Books on Audio/Text to Speech Software 6
Oral Exams

Chronic Medical Condition 3
Emotional/Psychological 5
Hearing

Learning Disability 1
Meurclogical, Orthopedic, 11
Traumatic Brain Injury

Visual Impairments 1
Blindness

Other

Co-Curricular Activities

The Chief Student Services Officer holds a résumé thal qualifies him to oversee
co-curricular activities. Even though Southern is a small rural college, it has an
excellent co-curricular program. With its clubs, organizations, leadership programs, and
activities, each student's learning experience is augmented by the various co-curricular
happenings at the College. Students learn about current issues, Committee building,
leadership issues, Robert's Rules of Order, and more; students also learn about lifestyle



143

happenings and ways to give back to the community. The College defines Co-curricular
as learning activities, programs, and experiences that reinforce or complement the
College’s mission, values, and formal curriculum. This definition supports the mission of
the college as well as Generai Education Goals and CAS (Council for the Advancement
of Standards in Higher Education) domains. Once the definition was written, the
Committee began writing program, department, and unit goals for the curriculum plan.
Each of these goals are related back the General Education Outcomes and the CAS
domains. This resulted in Southern’s Co-Curricular Mapping which guides Student
Services in Assessment.

Southern West Virginia Community and Technical College

Co-Curricular Mapping
Program Goals Department Unit Goals {Outcomes) {Institutional) CAS Standards
Goals General

Education

Outcomes
Student will score at | Student will Students will think critically to | -Critical -Domain 2: Cognitive
least 10 out of 15 on | develop steps to develop solutions. Thinking Complexity
the SMART reach a goal -Written -Bomain &: Practical
submissions (Student Success). Communication | Competence
(Student clubs and
Organizations:
NSLS).
Student will score 3 | Students will Students will think critically to | -Critical -Domain 2: Cognitive
or higher or their appraise their develop solutions. Thinking Complexity
self-evaluation of commupication -Verbal -Domain 6: Practical
their skills {Work Study)}. Communication | Competence

communication
skills

Students will think
criticaily about their
academig
requirements.

Students will
synthesize
information when
they review their
Degree Works
repert and then
Program of Study,

Students will think critically
to develop solutions.
Students will feel connected
to the College community.
Students will demonstrate
communication habits that
support academic success.
Students wili apply
knowledge by asking
questions or glving correct
answers to questions,
examples, or problems.

-Critical
Thinking

-Domain 1: Knowledge
Acquisition,
Integration,
Construction, and
Application

-Domain 2: Cognitive
Complexity

-Domain 4:
Interpersonal
Competence
-Domain 6: Practical
Competence

Students connect
with resources that
improve their odds
of success.

At least two-thirds
of students who
complete the NSO
evaluation will
agree or strongly
apree that NSO
helped them feel
more connected to

Students will feel connected
to the College community.
Students will apply
knowledge by asking
questions or giving correct
answers to questions,
examples, or problems.

-Intercuitural
Knowledge and
Competence

-Domain 1: Knowledge
Acquisition,
integration,
Construction, and
Application

-Domain 2: Cognitive
Complexity




144

the College -Domain 3:
community. Intrapersonal
Development
-Domain 4.
Interpersonal
Competence
-Domain 5:
Humanitarianism and
Civic Engagement
-Domain 6: Practical
Competence

Criterion 4.B.1-3 Summary: The institution engages in ongoing assessment of

student learning as part of its commitment to the educational outcomes of its
students.

4.B.1. Process for Assessment of Student Learning and Goals: The institution

has effective processes for assessment of student learning and for achievement
of learning goals in academic and cocurricular offerings.

This core component, Assessment, has been identified as “Met with Concern” in

previous visits. During the 2022 comprehensive visit, Southern still displayed
weaknesses in the processes, gathering of data, and implementation of Best Practices
in Assessment. Based on the Visiting Committee’s recommendations, Southern has
made the following changes in Assessment:

1.

2.
3.

11.
12.

Continued active participation in HLC's Assessment Academy and attending
the Roundtable in October 2023.

Hired a new Director of Accreditation and Assessment.

Hired a new Chief Academic Officer, who is also the ALO and has extensive
knowledge with Assessment, as well as being known locally for his dedication
and perseverance to the institution.

Developed an Assessment Model and an Assessment Glossary to ensure
consistency in terms.

Updated the Academic Assessment Subcommittee membership to all faculty,
thereby ensuring Assessment will be faculty driven.

Restructured the General Education Outcomes with faculty input to ensure they
are measurable, realistic, and observable.

Revised the General Education Rubrics.

Obtained data by using the General Education Rubrics in Brightspace,
Southern's Learning Management System, so data can be obtained regarding
General Education OQutcome Assessment (see 4.B.2).

Refined Program QOutcomes to make them useful when being measured.
Change Certificate Program Outcomes to make them more appropriate to that
level and the certificate’s curriculum.

Improved curriculum mapping of each program.

Developed an annual survey and gathered data from all programs for Program
Assessment.




13.
14.

15.

16.
17.

18.
19.
20.
21.
22,

145

Constructed annual report on all three levels of Assessment and shared iton a
website.

Continued Five-Year Program Reviews but updated the form to obtain more
information for Assessment purposes.

Improved syllabus procedure and template, which now includes Course
Student Leaming Outcomes, required units to be taught, policies of the College,
and delivery modes by individual faculty.

Conveyed syllabus procedure and template before its implementation.
Updated list of degrees on Southemn's website to ensure commaonality and
consistency in information; each program has its Mission Statement, Program
Outcomes, curriculum, achievement data listed, and handbook (if applicable).
Defined “Co-Curricular.”

Developed Co-Curricular Plan.

Implemented Co-Curricular Plan.

Introduced faculty and staff to Curricular and Co-Curricular Plans.

Revision of the General Education Policy and the Syllabi Procedure.

Southern's Assessment Model and Glossary are provided on Southern’s websile. On
the Higher Learning Commission’s SPARQ, Veronica McGowan, the Mentor stated,

“I'd like to commend Southern on their commitment to transparency and
development of the Assessment website with dedicated information and
resources on topics including program and course level assessment, co-
curricular assessment, faculty assessment guide, syllabi (and assessment),
advisory (and assessment) and the above-stated GEO work. Since | have
mentorad this project from the beginning, it is satisfying to see how the
Academic Assessment Subcommittee has really taken charge of
communicating their assessment culture. Yes, static assessment reports
are there (these formed the bulk of the website from 3 years ago), but

the AAS (Assessment Academy Subcommittee is really making the

effort to engage with stakeholders with this website development that

can now be viewed as a resource Asset.”



S

SOUTHERN
Assessment Model

146

Lewel Dutcames Components Mg Timeline
Course Student Learning Outcomes Course Report [1-page report for “Closing the Loop” Yearly In the fall semester
Clgging the Loop) HIP5
Student Course Evaluations

General Education General Education Qutcomes iGeneral Education Reports Rubric Yearly in the spring semester
(Institution] &) Co-curricular

= ‘Verbal Possible Longitudinal Study

Communication
= Written

Communication
«  Technical
communication
Cultural [DEI)
Critlcal Thinking
= Quantitative Literal
Fluency

Program [Degrees and Program Outcomes PFrogram Review [state]-wiability, Policy Regarding Policy Review Program Review every 5
Certificates) adequacy, necessity, consistency with a | [SCP 3620 vears
missbon (SCP 3620) Program Review Template Annual Program Report (2
Program Reports (institution]- Program Review Report Program Dutoomes 5 year)
improvement Program Curriculum




147

Co-Curricular Qutcomes Comparison with Program Outcomes Rubric Yearly per selected programs
General Education Outcomes Various Co-curricular programs Observation to assess using the
and CAS Standards Rubrics CAS Standards outcomes.

Surveys
Student Assignments




148

Systematically assessing student learning is to improve student leaming and
success, Southern is committed to creating a culture of Assessment while establishing a
sustainable Assessment process. Faculty and others are held accountable and
understand the importance of Assessment. They share data with each other and with
the College during various meetings. The information gained during these meetings is
used to make improvements to better serve students in all areas: academic and co-
Curricular.

General E i

During the 2022 visit, the Committee found that Scuthern had the foundation of an
Assessment Plan in place but not implemented, and the current General Education
Qutcomes and Rubrics were not measurable.

The Academic Assessment Subcommittes (“Assessment Academy”) worked
diligently, rewrote the General Education Outcomes, and developed rubrics to gather
data. A copy of the General Education Outcomes and rubrics can be found on
Southern's website for students and the public to view. The rubrics directly reflect
the General Education Outcomes thus ensuring that the outcomes are quantifiable and
measurable. In Higher Leamning Commission's SPARQ, the mentor mentioned that
Southern didn't change their previous ones just made them measurable. She stated,

“The GE outcomes are only being rewritten to qualify their
connection to their measure. Since this was a major development
that emerged during the first part of the Assessment Academy
project, Southern is now well invested in rubric development and
collection of data artifacts at this stage, not rewriting outcomes
that have been developed with a long body of evidence supporting
them, "

Furthermore, she stated in the Project 6 update,

"“The 5 newfrevised General Education Outcomes are
presented well with clear performance indicators and are easy
to find on their institutional website (Assessment | Southern West
Virginia Community and Technical College (southernwv.edu).

In addition, it is welcomed that Southern explicitly addressed
the faculty adoption component of these changes, which further
reinforces the narrative that faculty own the curriculum, material
expertise, and assessment of curriculum and learmning.”




149

Southern West Virginia Community and Technical College
General Education Outcomes

Written Communication: Students will demonstrate effective written communication
(W) by expressing thoughts, ideas, and information clearly and effectively through
written mediums that exhibit the following qualities:

W1 Purpose is clearly stated.

W2  Organization is structured and has a clear beginning, middle, and end.

W3  Ideas are thoroughly developed and support the thesis, purpose, or

controlling idea.

W4  Grammar and mechanics are correct and do not interfere with readability.

W5  Language and style are appropriate for the intended audience and subject

matter.
Verbal Communication: Students wiill demonstrate effective verbal communication (V)
by delivering presentations or engaging in dialogue-centered specific content that
illustrates the following features:

V1  Purpose is clearly stated.

V2  Organization has a clear beginning, middle, and end.

V3 Ideas and conclusions are thoroughly developed and support the purpose

or objective.

V4  Audience is actively engaged.

V5  Delivery is clear and effective.
Quantitative Literacy: Students will demonstrate quantitative literacy (Q) by using
guantitative methods to calculate solutions to diverse problems and career-specific
situations and interpreting and applying the results, effectively exhibiting the following:

Q1 Performing mathematically correct calculations.

Q2 Interpreting the results and forming data-supported conclusions.

Q3 Applying the results to specific situations.
Critical Thinking: Students will demonstrate critical thinking (CT) by exploring
issues/objects/works through the collection and analysis of evidence that results in
informed conclusions, effectively demonstrating the following:

CT1 ldentifying the issue.

CT2 Gathering credible information.

CT3 Analyzing relevant information.

CT4 Fommulating a conclusion.
Intercultural Knowledge and Competence: Students will demonstrate intercultural
knowledge and competence (IC) recognizing diversity, as well as interacting and
cooperating in a diverse setting, including, but not limited to, differences in race,
ethnicity, gender, gender identity, sexual orientation, age, social class, physical ability or
attributes, religious or ethical values system, national origin, or political belief, effectively
demonstrating the following:

IC1 Recognizing cultural diversity.

IC2 Communicating in a diverse seiting.

IC3 Collaborating in a diverse context.



150

Furthermore, the policy, SCP-3637, General Education Philosophy and Goals

was updated to reflect the new goals. These goals were approved by faculty and
administration. During the Fall 2023 semester of Faculty Convocation, faculty received
training on the process of assessing General Education Outcomes in Brightspace,
Southern's Learning Management System (LMS), as well as the Assessment Guide for
Faculty, which contains timelines and various information.




151

Institutional General Education Outcome for Critical Thinking

Students will demonstrate critical thinking (CT) by exploring issues/objects/works through the collection and analysis of
evidence that results in informed conclusions, effectively demonstrating the following:

CT1 Identifying the issue.

CT2 Gathering credible information.
CT3 Analyzing relevant information.
CT4 Formulating a conclusion.



152

RUBRIC on
Thinking

MET (3)

PARTIALLY MET (2)

UNMET (1)

IDENTIFYING ISSUE
(CT1)

' The individual clearly
identifies and demonstrates

a clear understanding of the
| issue.

The individual identifies the
issue, but there may be a
lack of understanding or
clarity regarding the issue.

The individual does not clearly
identify the issue.

' The individual gathers
| sufficient, relevant, and

The individual gathers some
relevant information,

= =

h—

The individual does not gather
sufficient or relevant information to
inform the analysis or relies on
sources that are not credible or
reliable.

The individual does not analyze the
information or does not use
information.

GATHERING credible information, through digital technology
INFORMATION through digital technology or | or other means, but it may
(CT2) other means, demonstrating | not be sufficient or credible.
a clear understanding of the
issue,
ANALYZING Theimdw:‘: : uall :fectn:ﬂv Thelmdw;!d ulalfstrugg_les to
INFORMATION analyzes the information analyze the in :E:rmatmn or
(CT3) collected. may not use this
information effectively.
The individual formulates a The individual formulates a
FORMULATING clear_ and logical conclusion | conclusion, but it is not fully
that is supported by the supported by the
CONCLUSION { : : ?
(CT4) information collected and information collected, or the

analyzed.

The individual does not present a
logical or feasible conclusion, or the
conclusion is not supported by the
information collected.

solution may not be logical
or feasible,




153

Institutional General Education Outcome for Intercultural Knowledge and Competence

Students will demonstrate intercultural knowledge and competence (IC) recognizing diversity, as well as interacting
and cooperating in a diverse setting, including, but not limited to, differences in race, ethnicity, gender, gender
identity, sexual orientation, age, social class, physical ability or attributes, religious or ethical values system, national
origin, or political belief, effectively demonstrating the following:

IC1 Recognizing cultural diversity.
IC2  Communicating in a diverse setting.
IC3 Collaborating in a diverse context.



154

'RUBRICon

a"" d"“!‘“‘"' Knowledge MET (3) PARTIALLY MET (2) UNMET (1)
Competence B _
Demonstrates a solid Demonstrates a partial Demonstrates a limited
understanding of the understanding of the understanding of the elements
RECOGNITION : : :
(Ic1) elements important to elements important to important to another culture.

another culture,

another culture.

COMMUNICATION

Interacts respectfully and
effectively on issues of

Makes an effort to interact
on issues of cultural

5| Avoids or has difficulty interacting

on issues of cultural diversity.

{1C2) cultural diversity. diversity, but may struggle
to communicate effectively.
Collaborates respectfully Makes an effort to Avoids or has difficulty collaborating
COLLABORATION am::_l effectively with others Fullahurate with ut.herslun wﬁuh ulthers on issues of cultural
(ic3) on issues of cultural issues of cultural diversity diversity.

diversity,

but may struggle to
collaborate effectively.




155

Institutional General Education Outcome for Quantitative Literacy

Students will demonstrate quantitative literacy (Q) by using quantitative methods to calculate solutions to diverse
problems and career-specific situations and interpreting and applying the results, effectively exhibiting the
following:

Q1 Performing mathematically correct calculations.

Q2 Interpreting the results and forming data-supported conclusions.

Q3 Applying the results to specific situations.

RUBRIC on
Quantitative MET (3) PARTIALLY MET (2) | UNMET (1)
Literacy
' All calculations are correct Calculations are mostly The calculations are not correct.
CALCULATION and supporting detail is correct, with minor
(Qi) provided. mistakes.
The data has been The interpretation has led No interpretation is evident.

INTERPRETATION | interpreted and led to clear | to questionable conclusions
(a2) conclusions, with adequate | that lack support.

| support.

| The numerical solutions have | The numerical data has only | The numerical data has not been
APPLICATION . . : : :
(Q3) | tteen r::I:znrnE::tl'g.r applied to the h_EEn Farnaily applied to the | applied.

| situation. situation.




156

Institutional General Education Outcome for Verbal Communication
Students will demonstrate effective verbal communication (V) by delivering presentations or engaging in
dialogue-centered specific content that illustrates the following features:

V1 Purposeis clearly stated.

V2  Organization has a clear beginning, middle, and end.

V3 ldeas and conclusions are thoroughly developed and support the purpose or objective.
V4  Audience is actively engaged.

V5 Deliveryis clear and effective.



157

Purpose or objective is not stated.

Organization is not structured; ideas
are not presented logically, with no
clearly defined beginning middle, or

Ideas and conclusions are not
sufficiently developed or supported
with relevant evidence/information.

Speaker does not attempt to engage
audience through verbal or non-

RUBRIC on
Verbal MET (3) PARTIALLY MET (2) UNMET (1)
Communication
PURPOSE Purpose or objective stated Purpose or objective is
(V1) clearly at start. stated vaguely and may be
difficult to discern.
Organization is structured, Organization is structured
ORGANIZATION j.mth a logical progression of but Iacksl a Ir::gul:al
(v2) ideas and a clear beginning, progression of ideas or a
middle, and end. clear beginning, middle, end.
and end.
Ideas and conclusions are ldeas and conclusions are
| DEVELOPMENT thum?ghlv developed a_nd devglppeﬂ but are not .
(v3) effectively supported with sufficiently supported with
' relevant relevant evidence/
evidencefinformation. information.
Speaker frequently engages Speaker occasionally
audience through verbal or attempts to engage
non-verbal technigues, such audience through verbal or | verbal technigues.
AUDIENCE as frequent eye contact, non-verbal techniques
(va) asking questions, soliciting

feedback, or interactive
elements.




158

RUBRIC on

Verbal MET (3) PARTIALLY MET (2) UNMET (1)
Communication

Speaker effectively utilizes Speaker utilizes delivery Speaker does not utilize delivery
DELIVERY delivery techniques, such as | techniques but with some | techniques; distracting issues in
(vs) clear articulation, maintaining | issues in articulation, focus, | articulation, focus, volume, and/or

focus, and appropriate
volume and pace.

volume, or pace.

pace.




159

Institutional General Education Outcome for Written Communication
Students will demonstrate effective written communication (W) by expressing thoughts, ideas, and information
clearly and effectively through written mediums that exhibit the following qualities:

W1 Purpose is clearly stated.

W2 Organization is structured and has a clear beginning, middte, and end.

W3  Ideas are thoroughly developed and support the thesis, purpose, or controlling idea.
W4 Grammar and mechanics are correct and do not interfere with readability.

W5 Language and style are appropriate for the intended audience and subject matter.



160

'RUBRICon

mechanics.

Wﬁqgh MET (3) PARTIALLY MET (2) UNMET (1)
Communication

Purpose, controlling idea, Purpose, controlling idea, Purpose, controlling idea, or claim is
PURPOSE thesis, or claim is clearly thesis, or claim is vague and | missing or indiscernible.
(wi) stated. may be difficult to discern.

Writing is structured, witha | Writing is structured but Writing is insufficiently structured,
ORGANIZATION | logical progression of ideas lacks a logical progression of | and ideas are not presented logically;
(W2) with a clearly defined ideas or a clearly defined there is no clearly defined beginning,

beginning, middle, and end. | beginning, middle, or end. middle, or end.

Ideas are thoroughly |deas are developed but are | Ideas are not sufficiently developed
DEVELOPMENT | developed and effectively not sufficiently supported or supported with relevant
(W3) supported with relevant with relevant evidence/ evidence/information.

evidence/information. information.

Writing is clear and Writing is clear but contains | Writing is not clear and contains
CLARITY effectively conveys message | minor errors in grammar significant errors in grammar and
(W4) with excellent grammar and | and mechanics that may mechanics that interfere with

interfere with readability.

readability.




161

AUDIENCE
(W5)

Writing consistently uses
language and style that are
appropriate and effective for
its intended audience and
subject matter.

Writing occasionally strays
from language and style that
are appropriate and
effective for its intended
audience or subject matter.

Writing frequently strays from
language and style that are
appropriate and effective for its
intended audience or subject matter.




162

Faculty members of the Academic Assessment Subcommitiee ("Assessment
Academy”) determined that the rubrics were ready to be piloted and decided to do a trial
run in the summer term of 2023. Faculty hypothesized whether it would be
advantageous to use our LMS and college data from the rubrics using programs within
the system. After many collaborative meetings between Information Technology, the
Academic Assessment Subcommittee, the Director of Distance Education, and West
Virginia Network for Education Telecomputing (WVNet) employees, Southern
developed a process to link the competencies and rubrics in Brightspace to individual
course assignments. The Faculty on the Academic Assessment Subcommittee jumped

at the opportunity to try this Assessment feature, and data was gathered at the end of
the summer term.

With this information and success in progress, the faculty decided to move forward
and establish a rigorous timeline so the College can have ample data to determine
improvements to promote student success. After much discussion and rough drafts, the

faculty agreed on the following procedure for gathering Assessment data for General
Education Oulcomes:

1.  Duwring Faculty Convocation, the Director of Accreditation and Assessment will
remind faculty which General Education Quicomes are to be assessed.

2. Faculty will use the General Education Rubrics on Brightspace and Southern's
website lo assess the designated General Education Outcomes. These rubrics
are designed to assist faculty in consistently evaluating General Education
QOutcomes. Faculty will decide within each department what assignment will be
used for the General Education Assessment.

3. Faculty will assess two General Education Qutcomes a semester using the
designated General Education Rubricis).

4. Data gathered using the rubric will be used to develop an action plan to
improve student success and attain a given outcome.

On the advice of the Academy Mentor, the Academic Assessment Subcommittee
has discussed dividing into two subsections: General Education and Program/Course-
Leval Assessment. These committees would meet every other month, and on the other
month, Academy members would come together and discuss various issues and data,
The Academy is extremely effective; its members work well together and do not want to
separate ties. The Academny realizes that much time is taken with the General
Education Assessment. Still, because Program Assessment needs to be examined
more closely, it might be beneficial for the Committees to separate periodically. The
General Education Assessment Committee will analyze the data from the rubrics and
make suggestions for improvement. The Program/Course-Level Assessment
Committee will work with Program Assessment data and Course Student Learning
Outcomes Assessment data. However, once the goals for the 2023-2024 academic
terms were finalized, the General Education Assessment Committee decided to tackle
the checking of the course student leaming outcomes and the Program/Course Level
Assessment faculty would review program outcomes and help with the course student
learning outcomes. On November 16, 2023, the two Committees met and realized that
the course student leaming outcomes were completed, and only four programs course



163

student learning outcomes needed to be reviewed. Meeting minutes will be available
your review. Faculty and Deans from that discipline are working on those areas so the
outcomes will be ready for the rollout of Spring syllabi.

Cou vel Assessment

During the 2022 comprehensive visil, the visitors discovered that Southern's Course
Student Learning Outcome approach to Assessment was substantial, however, faculty
expressed concern and frustration regarding the old form and requested that the form
be changed. After much research and due diligence, the current Director of
Accreditation and Assessment developed a document using Microsoft Forms in a
survey format. This format still gathered the same information, but instead of writing a
long narrative, faculty could click through the survey and offer a brief description at the
end. The Course Student Learning Outcomes Assessment Reports are due at each
semester's end. After listening to faculty, the Academic Assessment Subcommitiee
reduced course-level reporting to one report per faculty member; however, many faculty
members voluntarily submit more than one report. Through these reports, Southern
West Virginia Community and Technical College has provided tools to help faculty and
students. Some of these tools, including Kahoot, Grammarly, and Go-Pro, have
indicated that students like using the “game format” to leam. In fact, the nursing
program has noted an increase in scores and have attributed to the flipping of the
classroom by using games and other High Impact Practices such as collaborative
assignments, preceplorships, learning communities and service learning. Lastly, these
reports are shared with faculty via e-mail and are on the College website under
“Assessment.” The procaedura for course-level Assessment is as follows:

1. The Director of Accreditation and Assessment will announce when Course-
Level Assessments are due and will send a link to the Course-Level
Assessment Form via e-mail.

2. Faculty will pick one Student Learning Outcome from one course o assess,
faculty are responsible for only one report.

J.  Faculty will complete and submit the Course-Level Assessment Form to the
Director of Accreditation and Assessment by the end of the semester.

4. The Director of Accreditation and Assessment will provide a summanry of the
Assessment Report at the next Governance Day. The Director of Accreditation
and Assessment will also announce via e-mail when the Assessment Report is
available on the College's websile.

Another problem mentioned during the Course Student Learning Outcomes
Assessment is syllabi in the classroom. The previous Director of Accreditation and
Assessment had developed a rigorous syllabl process that integrated Course, Program,
and General Education Qutcomes assessment into the syllabi. The previous syllabi had
three parts: course information, mapping of outcomes, and college policies. The visitors,
faculty, and students all had difficulty following the syllabi and determining what the
actual expectations for the course were, one visitor even said that it would take a
decoder ring to figure it out.” Faculty also became confused regarding Course Student
Learning Outcomes versus General Education Outcomes. After the visit, the new



164

Director of Accreditation and Assessment began working on a new procedure for syllabi
and the syllabus format. With faculty input and Faculty Senate approval, SIP-3160,
Course Syllabus, and SIP-31680.A, Course Syllabus Format, were developed. The Chief
Information Officer introduced the idea of merging Banner and the new syllabi format,
creating a standard document that allowed faculty input. A pilot was done in the
Summer 2023 term and showed a few glitches, which were easily fixed for Fall 2023.
Faculty expressed satisfaction with the new syllabi, especially with the hyperlinks to
school policies. If faculty do not want to use the links, a copy of the guidelines is on the
college’'s website. Faculty received professional development regarding the new syllabi,
the importance of keeping the same format, and how to add their individualized
information during Faculty Convocation August 2023 prior to start of 2023-2024
academic year. A copy of the syllabi can be found under “Assessment” on the college's
website.

Because of the success of utilizing Brightspace as a resource for General
Education Outcome Assessment, Southem is currently evaluating whether we can use
it for course and program evaluation. In Brightspace’s Data Hub, is one advanced data
sel called Program Learmning Outcome Evaluation (PLOE). This data set returns
competencies and learning objectives related to the organization unit selected, proving
insight into outcome achievement across multiple courses within a program. For
Course-level Evaluation, CLOE, an advanced data set actually retumns the learner’s
outcomes for required competencies and shows outcomes in a course.

One of the weaknesses identified by the members of the Academy was the
absence of "closing the loop." They recognized that changes were being made based
on data, but was unsure how to make sure it helping with student learning. Southern
realizes that this takes assessment activities a step further by examining whether or not
the changes implemented as a result of a prior assessment actually worked. It could be
called reassessment. This will also be a good way to document that the college used
‘evidence-based” decisions. Faculty will often discuss whether their changes occurred
but fail to document it. Documenting reassessing the data after changed, can assist an
instructor in the future so that it chronicles changes made. Also, it shows that the
faculty member is constantly striving to improve the course for the student and make
learning a positive education experience. Southern's Academy has decided to try and
use this form to show “closing the loop™ in Spring 2024. Faculty will have access to their
course-level assessments last semester in a confidential porial using the Teams App.

Because faculty have had extreme difficulty with “Closing the Loop™ and most
faculty members have expressed frustration on remembering the process each
semester, the college is holding a professional development day in January to review
the process and how to fill out the form. Faculty will be reassessing whether their
intervention was successful and whether they need to change the plan again. Moving
forward "Closing the Loop" will be integrated in all levels of assessment



SOUTHERN WEST VIRGINIA COMMUNITY AND TECHNICAL COLLEGE
STUDENT LEARNING ASSESSMENT COURSE-LEVEL REPORT

Course Number

EN 101E

Course Title

English 101 Enhanced

Faculty Name

Nathan Freeman

Semester/Year

Fall 2024 CRN 452

OBJECTIVE

ASSESSMENT

RESULTS

REFLECTION AND PLAN OF ACTION

State the Gen Ed Goal / Course-
Level Objective that is being

State the assignment and rubric
/ assessment tool used to

State the resuits of
the rubric /

Reflect on the results of the
assessment and how/if you plan on

assessed complete the assessment assessment tool used | implementing changes in the
to complete the future
assessment
EXAMPLE: EXAMPLE: EXAMPLE: EXAMPLE:

English 101E — Course Objective 5;
Locate and evaluate scholarly
sources for credibility, accuracy, and
bias.

English Source Evaluation Rubric
embedded in the Final Research
Essay

7/25 students met
expectation

12/25 students
approached
expectation

6/25 students did not
meet expectation

Based on these results, it is clear
that most students are able to
access research materials and
comprehend them, but it is unclear
to many students how to properly
vet and evaluate sources for
accuracy.

Next semester, | will provide a
recording demonstrating how best
to evaluate sources for accuracy in
my online section. | will also
incorporate an assignment where

165



166

students locate an uareliable
source and a reliable souree and
then write a reflection on the
differences between them.

STUDENT LEARNING COURSE-LEVEL ASSESSMENT;
“CLOSING THE LOOP" ON PREVIOUS ACTION PLAN

Table 2

REFLECTION AND PLAN OF ACTION

CLOSING THE LOOP

Restate the Reflection and Plan of Action from the relevant
Course-Level Report

Reflect on the results of the adjustment you made to this course, how
this adjustment affected students” ability to meet this course
objective, and what future adjustments you might consider in the
future as a result

EXAMPLE:

Based on these results, it is clear that most students are able to
access research materials and comprehend them, but it is unclear to
many students how to properly vet and evaluate sources for
ACCUTAcY.

Mext semester, | will provide a recording demonstrating how best to
evaluate sources for accuracy in my online section. | will also
Incorporate an assignment where students locate an unreliable
source and a reliable source and then write a reflection on the
differences between them.

EXAMPLE:

Students, for the most part, reacted very well to the new assignment
in which they compared and contrasted reliablefunreliable sources.
This had a noticeable impact on the quality of research they provided
in their essays as well.

One drawback was that some students still did not understand
proper vetting and evaluation, and as a result provided two sources
that were not viable or properly vetted. In the future, | am
considering making this a group assignment where students can
share their evaluation technigues and collaborate on what they think
makes a source quality versus what makes a source biased or
unreliable.




167

Program-Level Assessment

Program-level assessment was an area that was cited as “Met with Concemn” for
the reason that Southern had Program QOulcomes that were not measurable or realistic,
had identical Program Qutcomes for different programs and certificates, no curriculum
mapping, no specific procedure, and no data; this area was of great concern and
confusion. Furthermore, due to an omission by the previous Director of Accreditation
and Assessment, the five-year program reviews were not stressed in the report. This
person did not include the long-standing program review schedule, a copy of the
template, any findings, or changes made in programs.

Southern West Virginia Community and Technical College has a long history of
celebrating remarkable success with their programs' reputation of turning out
professionals and achieving exceptional outcomes. Realizing that a procedure was
needed to gather data and show student success was an essential first step in moving
forward in Assessment. After many conversations and collaborative meetings,
Southern's Academic Assessment Subcommittee ("Assessment Academy”), along with
its Chief Academic Officers, Deans, and Directors began implementing the Assessment
Flan by updating the Program Outcomes, curriculum mapping, and the Faculty
Assessment Guide. These interventions would help streamline the process and develop
a timeline so everyone would know when assessments are due. Also, the Director of
Accreditation and Assessment developed an annual survey and will modify it based on
the results and recommendations of the Program Directors. A copy of the cumulative
impacts from the Program’s Annual Survey is available on the website.

Lastly, Southern follows Title 135, Procedural Rule, West Virginia Council for
Community and Technical College Education, Series 10, Policy Regarding Program
Haview for the Five-Year Program Reviews. Southern has the following methods to
view Program Assessment: Program Outcomes, curriculum mapping, annual survey,
and Five-Year Program Review. The timeline for Program-Level Assessment is
provided in the Faculty Assessm uide.

Co-Curricular Assessment

southern defines "Co-Curricular” as "Learning activities, programs, and
expenences that reinforce or complement the College’s mission, values, and formal
curriculum.” Using a collaborative approach between Student Services, faculty, and
administration, Southern has incorporated part of the Higher Learning Commission’s
definition and mission in developing their personalized definition of "Co-Curricular.”
Southern believes thal co-curricular activities are part of a student's academic joumney
and contribute to student success. "Co-Curricular” may include Southern's various
clubs, organizations, workshops, and other services it offers to help students achieve
their goals.

Along with the definition, Southern developed a Co-Curricular Assessment Plan,
which is in its infancy stages. The Co-Curricular Committee decided to incorporate the
General Education Outcomes and CAS standards when writing the Co-Curricular



Department Outcomes. Instead of having "Program Outcomes,” Student Services is
divided into departments and various programs. After the Department Outcomes were
developed, the Director of Student Success, Director of Admissions, Director of

Financial Assistance, and the Registrar developed one Program Qutcome for their
department to start collecting data. More Program Outcomes and timelines will be
created as the process is refined.

Southern West Virginia Community and Technical College

Co-Curricular Mappin
Program Goals Department Unit Goals (Outcomes) {Institutional) CAS Standards
Goals General
|I Education
| Outcomies
Student will score at | Student will Students will think critically to | -Critical -Domain 2: Cognitive
beast 10 out of 15 on | develop steps to develop solutions. Thinking Complexity
the SMART reach a goal -Written -Domain & Practical
submissions (Student Success). Communication | Competence
{Student clubs and
Qrganizations:
M5L%).
Student will score 3 | Students will Students will think critically to | -Critical -Bomain 2: Cognithne
or higher or their appralse their develop selutions. Thinking Complexity
self-evaluation of communication -Werbal -Damain 6: Practical
their skills [Wark Study]. Communication | Competence
commasnication
skills
Students will think Students will Students will think critically -Critical -Domain 1: Knowledge
critically about their | synthesiie to develop solutions, Thinking Acguisition,
academic information when | Studemnts will feel connected Integration,
rEqUirements, they review their to the College community. Construction, and
Degree Works Students will demonstrate Application
report and then communication habits that -Damain 2: Cognitne
Program of Stuedy. | support academic success. Complexity
Students will apply <Domain 4;
knowiedge by asking Interparsanal
questiond or giving correct Competence
answers to guestions, -Domain B: Practical
examples, or problems. Compebence
Students connect At least two-thirds | Students will feel connected | -Intercultural -Domain 1: Knowledge
with resources thay | of students who to the College community. Enowledge and | Acquisition,
improwve their odds complete the M50 | Students will apply Competence Integration,
of success, evaluation will knowiedge by asking Construction, and
agree or strongly questions or giving correct Application
agree that NSO answers to guestions, -Domain 2: Cognitive
helped them feel examples, or problems., Cormplexity
more connected to -Damain 3:
the College Intrapersonal
communiby. Developmaent




169

=Chmain 4
Interpersomnal
Competence
-Diomain 5:
Humanitarianism and
Civic Engagement
-Damain B: Practical
| Competence

essment Data to Improve Student Learning Summary: The i
uses the information gained from assessment to improve student learning.

Core Component 4.B was identified as "Met with Concemn” in previous visits and
again by the 2022 Higher Learning Commission visiting Committee. Furthermore, the
Visiting Committee also identified weaknesses in process and planning. Even with
Course Student Learning Outcomes that were reviewed, many statements were
considered simply not measurable, realistic, or observable, and the Committee felt that
it would frustrate attempts to understand student performance; furthermore, the areas of
General Education, Program, and Co-Curricular Assessment were positioned for
Assessment activity but were not yet implemented. Since the visit, Southern has made
enormous strides toward developing outcomes that are measurable, realistic, and
observable, as well as data collection and data analysis at the General Education,
Program, and Course Student Learning levels. Even though the Higher Learning
Commission final report recommendations stated that a focus visit was necessary to
ensure Southern was implementing their plan and the college would not have time to
collect data, Southern through a collaborative Committee effort from all departments,
has been able not only to implemented the assessment plan, but to collect, analyze,
and discuss changes that would benefit student learning.

General Education Qutcomes Assessment Data

Southern was eager to begin collecting data after the Assessment Academy
Committee updated the outcomes and rubrics to be measurable, realistic, and
observable. The Assessment Academy initiated a pilot in the 2023 summer term with
the five rubrics being assessed and data collected using Brightspace and Argos.
Southern discovered that the rubrics were easy to attach and collected the data without
difficulty. The following General Education Outcomes and Rubrics were successfully
embedded in Brightspace:

Written Communication

Verbal Communication

Quantitative Literacy

Critical Thinking

Intercultural Knowledge and Compelence

L o



170

General Education Outcomes

In January 2023, the Assessment Academy, the Director of Institutional
Research, and the Technology Department at Southern West Virginia Community and
Technical College helped the Institution develop and implement a more comprehensive
and syslematic approach to assessing General Education Outcomes. Although the
General Education Qutcomes and Rubrics have been recently redefined, Assessment
has impacted student learning. Faculty are now reviewing various teaching and high-
impact practices such as flipping the classroom, portfolios, methodologies, low-impact
quizzes, curricula, outlines, and study notes. Because Southern is still in the beginning
stages of gathering and analyzing data, the Committee decided to look at the General
Education Assessment in three diverse ways: 1) Argos reports on who completed a
course with a "C” or better, 2) Student Course Evaluations, and 3) Brightspace (D2L)
data. The Academy, faculty, Program Directors, and Deans updated curriculum
mapping to reflect the relevant infusion of General Education QOutcomes into each area.
As part of future plans of the quality process, the Assessment Academy will ensure the
alignment of Southern's General Education Outcomes with its curriculum mapping.

Southern now realizes that professional development is the key to enhancing
Assessment efforts and promoting a positive climate. With this understanding in mind,
Southern decided to devote most of its Fall 2023 Faculty Convocation to professional
development regarding Assessment; furthermore, at the next Faculty Convocation, the
Assessment Academy plans to provide more professional development sessions.
Faculty have indicated they are eager to learn how to redesign and redefine student
learning outcomes to make them more measurable, realistic, and observable.

Completion Rate neral Education Courses

The Director of Institutional Research and Director of Accreditation and
Assessment decided to develop a report on how students performed in various General
Education courses. They pulled the class schedule to make a generous sample and
decided which courses they would review, The following table shows the results of the
completion rates; the overall goal, Scuthern's expected level of achievement, is to have
at least 70% of students in the subject to achieve a grade of "C" or better,

Year | Spring2021 | Fall2021 | Spring 2022 | Fall2022 | Spring2022 | Fall
2023

Cours M |%Cor |N |%Cor |N |%Cor [N |%Cor M L or
(2] Better Better Better Better Better

LT T




Spring 2021

Fall 2021

Springﬂz

Fall 2022

171

125

Year Spring 2023 Fall
2023
Cours | N |%Cor [N |%Cor [N |%Cor |N |%Cor ([N %C or
g Better Better Better Better Batter
Cours N| %Cor| N| %Cor| M| %Cor| N %C or M| %Cor
3 Better Better Better Better Better
EN 21| 57.14| 73| 9041 | 10| 60.00| 51| B1.31% ¥ NSA
101 % % o
EN 88| 76.14| 38| 7292 | 10| 57.43 | 36| 77.20% | 101 | 62.38
101E % 4 % p Bl 4 B
EM 110 | B636| 38| 7895 | 18| B989 | 42 | B333% | 223 | 84.75
102 % %| 8 ] %6
EM 11 | 100.00 29 93.10%

AC 48 | 79.21 46 | 84.78%

111 %

EG 25 | B84.00 15 | BO.00%

103 %

EM 5| 100.00 4| 75.00%

219 %

MT 6| 100.00| 24| 9167 3| 100.00| 20| 70.00% 5| 60.00
121 % % % %
MAT 92| 5652| 32| 7040 96| 8229 33| 73.81% | 77| 5454

6

e Better Better Better Better Better
AH 10 | 90.00% 9| BBE9| 10| B0.00 7| 42.86% 4| 100%
103 % £

BS 101 38| 63.16 67 BS.O0V% | &0 B5%




Spring 2021

Fall 2021

Spring 2022

| F1 I:IEI

172

Year Spring 2023 Fall
2023
Cours N ([%Cor |N [%Cor |N |%Cor |N |%Cor |N %Cor
e Better Better Better Better Better
B5124 | 59| 79.66% | 26| B4.41| 47| B9.36| 33| B7.09% BB | 75.5%
3 % % 3
CH 3| 66.67 4| 100,00 10| 100%
213 5% %
ML 14 | 92.86 13| 92.31%
101 %
ML 56 | 100.00 57| 100.00| 20| 100%
134 %% %
ML 41 | 100.00 53| 100.00
234 ] i
RA 15| B6.67 19| B9.47%
101 %
RC 21 | 100.00 19| 100.00
110 % %
5G 12 | 100.00 13| 100.00
Cours N| %Cor| M| % Cor| N| %Cor M| %Cor M| %Cor
e Better Better Better Better Better
AH 78| B333| 36| 86.11| &7 | B3.5B 2B | 7857
200 % % % o
AH 27| 8148 17| 8235| 21| 8571 11 | 81.82
280 % % % ¥
AR 37| 7027 43| 76.74| 31| 75.00 48 | 68.75
112 % % %% %
Cl 223 710000 | 16| 7574 | N/ M/A 12 | 83.33
Eﬁ | A S
EM N/A MNA | N/ N/A 2 | 100.00 2| 100.0
275 A % 0%
HS 47| 8511 76| B82.89| 25| 76.00 50 | 84.00
230 % b % ]
MU 37| 8378 44| 79.55| 28 | 100.00 24 | 91.67
275 o %o 0 S0
PY 201 BO| 71.67| BB| 7386 89| 75.28 | 144 | BO.56
o % % %o




 Spring 2021

Fall 2021

Spring 2022

Fall 2022

173

Year Spring 2023 Fall
2023
Cours M |%Cor |N |%Cor |N |%Cor %Cor |M %C or
[ Better Better Better Better Better
S0 B5| 7647 79| Bl.01| 74| 77.03 72 | 69.44
200 % % % %
50 12| 9167 | 19| B4.21| 27| BBAE9 22| 7273
201 % % % %

General Education OQutcome: Written Communication

Course N Completion Rate
EN 101 155 T2.21%

EN 101E 1033 T0.91%

EN 102 601 £4.63%

EM 201 40 896.55%

General Education Outcome: Verbal Communication
Course N Completion Rate
5P 103 216 T4.54%
General Education Outcome: Quantitative Literacy

Course N Completion Rate
AC 111 a4 32%

EG 103 40 32%

EM 219 9 B7.5%

MT 121 =8 24.33%
MT 121E 922 67.51%

General Education Outcome: Critical Thinking

Course N Completion Rate
AH 103 40 20.35%

BS 101 165 T1.74%

BS 124 768 B83.20%
CH213 17 28.89%

ML 101 27 92.58%

WU 134 133 100.00%

WU 234 94 100.00%

R 101 i3 2E.07%

RC 110 40 100.00%

5G 210 25 100.00%




General Education Outcomes: Intercultural Knowledge and Competence
Course N Completion Rate
AH 200 200 32.50%
AH 280 76 82.84%
AR 112 160 72.69%
€223 35 86.69%
EN 275 a 100%
H5 230 138 82%
MU 275 133 88.75%
PY 201 381 75.34%
50, 200 310 75.99%
50, 201 &0 84.38%

When analyzing this data, the Assessment Academy and Administration noted no
significant difference between the enhanced leaming courses in English 101E (Wiritten
Communication) and Math 121E (Quantitative Literacy) and the regular courses
(English 101 and Math 121). The enhanced learning courses had a lower completion
rate than the regular courses. Many faculty members expressed concern that, because
of how the Enhanced Leaming courses are structured, they may not be working for
Southern students. At Southern, students often refuse the opportunity to “test out” of the
Enhanced courses, instead of staying and receiving an extra credit hour. The
Administration, Deans, Directors, and faculty are attempting to figure out a solution to
this problem.

Number of Students Tested in EN 101E or MT 121 E
Non-ECA (Early College Academy)/Dual Credit Students

EN 101E 20 81 222 283

MT 121E 17 [ 195 272

Number of Etul:lanls Tested in EN 101E or MT 121 E
y)/Dual Crm:llt Smdnnu :

EN101E | 0 147 147 430
MT 121E 1 154 155 427

Student Course Evaluations
To obtain a clear picture for a positive change, Southern asks students

to evaluate courses to gather data for Assessment. Southern used the SIP 2220,
Course Feedback and SIP 22_ A Course Feedback were able to provide an ancnymous




175

electronic evaluation of the course. These are compiled by the Information Technology

Unit and then dispersed to faculty so they can see what needs to be updated. Even
though Southern has been collecting student evaluations for many years, Southern

elected to show the past two semesters to begin analyzing data. The following tables
provide an abbreviated summary of results that could affect student success—questions

regarding Student Learning Qulcomes, course assignments, course content, critical
thinking, and feedback.

*Legend for table: N=number of students, F22=Fall 22 Term, 202301 Term, 523=

Spring 23 Term, 202302, SD=>5trongly agree, D=disagree, N=Neutral, A=Agree,
SA=3trongly Agree. The questions are from SIP 220-A A Course Feaedback Survey.

Course | N P Questions SD[ D | N|A]| SA
General Education Outcomes: Written Communication
AC 15 (F22) | Clearly Stated SLOs (1) i 1] ] 2 13
Understanding course assignments. (8) 0 0 0 2 13
Relevance of content. () ] 1] 4] 2 13
Utilized critical thinking. {12} 0 0 o 2 13
11(823) | Feedback given promptly (17) o [ o | o | 1] 14
Clearly Stated SLOs (1} 0 0 i 2 8
Understanding course assignments. (8) | 0 0 o 4 7
Relevance of content, {8) ¥ 0 o 5 &
Litilized critical thinking. {12) 0 0 o o 11
Feedback given promptly (17) 0 0 i] 1 10
AH 63 (F22) | Clearly Stated 5L0s (1) 2 0 & | 24 a2
Understanding course assignments_ (8) | 0 0 2 g 29
Relevance of content, (9) 0 1 1 32 28
Utilized critical thinking. (12) o 1 1 0| 28
105(523) | Feedback given promptly (17) 1 1 | & |25 28
Chearly Stated SLOs (1) i 0 4 23| 78
Understanding course assignments. (8) 1 1 4 14 81
Relevance of content. (9] 1 0 5 15 | &1
Utilzed critical thinking. (12) 0 0 3 18| &1
Feedback given prompily (17) 0 2 G 18 | 78
AR 15 (F22) | Clearly Stated SLOs (1) ] 1 1] [ ]
' Understanding course assignments. (8) | © | 1 | o | 8 | B
I 14(523 Relevance of content. (9) o 1 o ] =
(523} | Utilzed eritical thinking. (12) o 0 o 9 &
Feedback given promptly (17) o 0 1] 1] &
Cilearly Stated SLOs (1) o 1 o 5 9
Understanding course assignmenis. (B) | O B 2 3 8
Relevance of content. (9) o L] o 5 B
Utilized critical thinking. (12) o | 12 1 2 10




176

Course N et Questions SD| D | N |A | SA
Feedback given promptly (17) o 17 1 D 10
BS 99 (F22) | Clearly Stated SLOs (Student Learning 4 1 3 20 b
Dutcomas) (1) 3 4 1 21 &8
Understanding course assignments. (8) 0 3 3 17 75
Relevance of contant. {5) o 1 4 22 B8
126 Utilized critical thinking. (12) 4 | 2|5 (1w 70
(523) Feedback given promptly (17)
1 2 3 22 28
Clearly Stated SLOs (1) 2 1 10 | 24 &5
Understanding course assignments. (8) | 1 1 T 20 &89
Relevance of content. {3) 1 1 & 22 93
LHilized critical thinking. (12} 2 2 T | 20 21
Feedback given promgtly {17}
CJ 33 (F22) | Clearly Stated SLOs (1) 0 o 0 2 ]
Understanding course assignments, (8) | 0 0 1 1 9
Relevance of content. [9) 0 0 0 2 ]
Utilized critical thinking. {12} 0 o 1 7 9
0(523) | Feedback given promptly (17) o | o] ol 1] 10
Clearly Stated SL0s (1)
Understanding course assignments, [8)
Relevance of content. (9)
Utilized critical thinking. {12)
Feedback given promplly (17) ]
EG 36 (F22) | Clearly Stated SLOs (1) i 1] 1 8 27
Understanding course assignments. (8) | 2 o 0 10 | 24
Relevance of content. (9) 0 1 2 g 24
Utilized critical thinking. (12) 0 1 1 | 10| 24
22(523) | Feedback given promptly (17) o | 1 1 | 7| 25
Clearly Stated SLOs (1) 0 0 4 & 13
Understanding course assignments. {(8) 0 0 3 4 14
Relevance of content. () i] 0 4 4 13
Utilized critical thinking, (12) 0 a 4 4 13
Feedback given promplly (17) 0 0 4 4 13
EM 35(F22) | Clearly Stated SLOs (1) 0 1 4 4 26
Understanding course assignments. (8) | 0 0 5 5 25
25(S23) Relevance of content. (9) 1) (Y 5 7 23
Utilized critical thinking. (12) 0 ] 4 7| 24
Feedback given promptly (17} 0 0 2 g 24
Clearly Stated SLOs (1) 4 Q 1 4 16
Understanding course assignments. {8) | 4 0 1 B 14
Refevance of contant. (9) 4 0 1 4 16
Utilized critical thinking. (12) 4 0 0 5 16
Feedback given promptly (17) 4 0 o | 4 17
EM 109 (F22) | Clearly Stated SLOs (1) 7 4 5 |23 | 70
Understanding course assignments. (B) 3 3 B 23 67
Relevance of content. {8} 2 1 7 23 73




177

N Questions SD| D N

Utilized critical thinking. (12) 3 1 4 | 23| 74
53(S23) Feedback given promptly {17} 5 5 T 16 72
Clearly Stated SLOs (1) ¥ 0 o 11| 42
Understanding course assignments. (8) | 0 1 2 2 40
Relevance of content. (9) 0 1 2 B 42
Utilized critical thinking. {12) 0 0 1 9 38
Feedback given promptly (17) 0 1 1 & 45
HS 23 (F22) | Clearly Stated SLOs (1) o [i] 1 5 16
Understanding course assignments. (8) | 0 1 2 3 17
Relevance of content. () 1 1 2 3 15
Utilized critical thinking. {12) 0 1 1 B 14
22(S23) | Feedback given promptly (17) t | 1|1 ]|4] 15
Clearly Stated 3L0s (1) 0 0 2 a 16
Understanding course assignments. (2) 1 0 H 4 17
Relevance of content, {9} 1 1 2 2 15
Utiized critical thinking. {12) 0 1 2 3 15
Feedback given promptly (17) o 0 o | 5| 17
ML T2(F22) | Clearly Stated SLOs (1) 1 0 1 14 o6
Understanding course assignments. (8) | 0 0 2 14 | &5

Relevance of content. (9) o 0 1 20 | 51
Utilized critical l.hir'thing. (12) 0 Q 1 16 54
5(523) | Feedback given promptly (17) o | o | 3 |11]| 58
Clearly Stated SLOs (1) 0 0 1] 4 1
Understanding course assignments_ (8) | 0O 0 o 5 0
Felevance of content. (9) 0 0 1 4 0

Utilized critical thinking. [12) o 0 1] 1] 5

Feedback given prompily (17) ] 1 1 g | 2
MT 96 (F22) | Clearly Stated SLOs (1) 3 1 6 | 34 | 52
Understanding course assignments. (8) | 3 G g 25 50

Relevance of content. (9) 2 a2 B 27 51
Utilized critical thinking. (12) 2 2 4 | 27| 56
30 (523) | Feedback given promptly (17) 4 | 5| 8 |28 47
Clearly Stated SLOs (1) 1 2 3 ] 16
Understanding course assignmenis. (B) | 3 1 & & 13

Relevance of content. (9) 4 3 3 5 14

Utilized critical thinking. {12) 3 2 2 6 14
Feedback given promptly (17) 2 0 2 g 15

MU 5 (F22) | Clearly Stated S5LOs (1) 1 1 2 [1} 1
Understanding course assignments. (8) | 1 0 1 2 1

Relevance of content. [3) 1 1 1 1 1

Utilized critical thinking. (12} 1 1 1 (1} 1

3(S23) | Feedback given promptly (17) 2 | 1 1 o] 1
o 0 o 1 2

Clearly Stated SLOs (1) 0 0 g | 0 3




178

S DI N|A| SA
Understanding course assignments, (8) Q i Q 1 2
Retevance of content. (9) 0 0 0 0 3
Utilized critical thinking. {12) 1 ] 4] ] 3
Feedback given promptly (17)

NLU 294(F22) | Clearly Stated SLOs (1) 2 0 2 | 53| 235
Linderstanding course assignments. (&) | 3 0 1 &7 | 224
Relevance of content. {9) 3 0 1 65 | 220
Litilized critical thinking. {12} 0 0 1 56 | 234

142(523) | Feedback given promptly {17) 1 | o | 1 |58 228
¥ 2 0 22 | 1M
Clearly Stated SLOs (1) ] 3 o [19]| 111
Understanding course assignments. (8) | 0 2 i} 20 | 108
Relevance of content. [9) 0 2 0 21 | 107
Uilized critical thinking. (12) 0 3 i 15 | 114

Feedback given promptly (17}

PY 64 (F22) | Clearly Stated SLOs (1) 3 0 g8 | 18| 35

Understanding course assignments. (B) | 2 2 4 23 32
63(S23) Relevance of content, (3) 2 0 B 18 a7
Utilized critical thinking, {12) 2 2 3 21 34
Feedback given promplly (17) 4 2 [ 15 34
4 2 4 23 30
Clearly Stated SLO= (1) 1 3 T 18 32
Understanding course assignments. (3) 3 1 & 21 a0
Relevance of content. (9) 3 1 3 22 26
Uitilized critical thinking, (12) 2 2 T 21 30
Feedback given prompily (17)

RA 18(F22) Clearly Stated SLOs (1) o 0 1 L 13
Understanding course assignmenis. (8) 0 0 o [ 10
Relevance of content. (9) o 0 o 7 1
Utilized critical thinking. (12} o 0 ] & 12

B8(S23) | Feedback given promptly (17) o | o | 1| 4] 12
0 0 0 1 7
Clearly Stated SLOs (1) 0 0 i} 1 ]
Understanding course assignments. (B} | 0 1 1 1 &
Reldevance of content. (8) 0 0 0 1 7
Utilized critical thinking. (12) 0 0 1 1 8

Feadback given promptly (17)

RC 160 (F22) | Clearly Stated SLOs (1) 1 0 1 33 | 122
Understanding course assignments. (8) | 0 0 2 28 | 129
Relevance of content. [9) o 0 3 30 | 128
Litilized critical thinking. (12) Q i 1 23 | 135

123(S23) | Feedback given promptly {17) o | 3| 1 |28 125
Clearly Stated SLOs (1) 1 0 0 25 a7
Uinderstanding course assignments. (8) | 0 0 1 26 a5
Relavance of content. {9) 0 H 1 27 ]
Uitilized critical thinking. (12} Q 0 1 26 83
Feedback given promptly {17) 0 o 1 24 97

SG 48(F22) | Clearly Stated 5LOs (1) 1 o 0 12 35
Understanding course assignments, (&) | 0 o 2 14 32
Relevance of content. (9) 0 o 1 15 | 32




179

Course N Questions SD{ D | N|A]| SA
Utilized critical thinking. (12) 0 0 2 12 34

51(523) Feedback given promptly (17) i 0 5 10 33

Clearly Stated SLOs {1) 0 1] 1 18 32

Undersianding course assignments. (8) i} (1} 4 17 30

Relevance of content. (8) i 1] 1 18 3z

Utilized critical thinking. (12) 0 1] 1 18 | 3z

Feedback given promplly (17) 1] 0 1 19| 3

[-Te) 47 (F22) | Chearly Stated SLOs (1) 0 1 5 |17 | 24
Understanding course assignmenis. (8) 0 2 3 19 23

Relevance of content. (9) 0 1 4 17 25

Utilized critical thinking. (12) 1 0 B | 14| 24

117(S23) | Feedback given promptly (17) o | 2 | 6 |13]| 25

Chearly Stated SLOs (1) 0 0 5 | 46 | 66

Understanding course assignments_ {8) | 0 1 1 41 57

Relevance of contant. (9) 2 3 10 | 48 57

Utilized critical thinking. (12) 1 a 5 | 44 G4

Feedback given promptly (17) 1 1 5 | 32| 18

SP 32(F22) | Clearly Stated SLOs (1) 0 a 0 11 21
Understanding course assignments. (8) | 0 0 3 |10]| 18

Retevance of content. (9) 1) 0 4 1 17

Utilized critical thinking. (12) 0 1 4 8 19

18(523) | Feedback given pramptly (17) o | o | 3|82

Clearly Stated SLOs (1) 1] 0 1 5 12

Understanding course assignments. {8) | © 0 1 5 12

Relevance of content. (9) 0 0 1 11 13

LHilized critical thinking. (12} 0 i} 1 8 12

Feedback given promptly (17) 1) 0 1 ] 12

Some of the issues using this assessment tool include not having enough

students to respond, thus resulting in a poor sample size. To avoid this, if the number

of students was five or less, the results were not used. Also, Southern had to be
mindful of which courses were selected to represent General Education Outcomes

because some methods are not taught every semester. After putting the numbers in a
column side by side, many trends emerged. One of the most significant strategies that
could improve student success is the revision of Student Learning Outcomes. Students
surveyed expressed strong disagreements that the Student Leaming Outcomes were
written. The Assessment Academy Ad Hoc General Education Committee expressed

concern and voted to review all course Student Learning Outcomes and work with

faculty to update their course Student Learning Outcomes. Also, the Chief Academic
Officer and the Assessment Academy is looking to schedule more professional
development training on writing student learning outcomes, curriculum mapping, and
course evaluations. After the training and review by the Ad Hoc Committee, the




180

Assessment Academy will review data to determine if the scores on course Student
Learning Qutcomes improved.

Brightspace Data

Pivot Tables were compiled per semester utilizing Brightspace Data downloaded
to Excel. After updating the General Education Outcomes and Rubrics during the Spring
2023 term, Southern could analyze two semesters of data using the General Education
Rubrics. The following tables were developed to show the data from various courses:

Summer 2023 Term

Rubric Name Gen Ed - Critical
Thinking

Count of Level Column Labels

PARTIALLY Grand
Row Labels MET MET Tofal
Analyzing Information CT3 14 1 15
Formatting Conclusion CT4 15 15
Gathering Information CT2 15 15
Identifying Issue CT1 15 15
Grand Total 59 1 60

*No Unmet

This table shows that 14 students correctly analyzed that data, and one partially met the
goal. All formatted a conclusion, gathered information, and identified issues.

Summer 2023 Term

Gen Ed - Written

Rubric Name  Communication
Count of
Level Column Labels

- PARTIALLY Grand
Row Labels MET MET UNMET Total
Audience W5 14 1 15
Clarity W4 15 15
Development
W3 13 1 1 15
Organization
w2 15 15
Purpose W1 15 15
Grand Total 72 2 1 75



181

This table shows that 14 students correctly analyzed that data, and one partially met the
goal. All were able to clarify information, organize the information, and state a purpose.
Thirteen students were able to develop a paper; one partially could, and one could not.



Summer 2023 Term

Gen Ed - Quantitative
Rubric Name  Literacy

182

Count of
Level Column Labels
Grand
Row Labels MET Total
Application Q3 9 g
Calculation Q1 9 9
Interpretation
Q2 9 9
Grand Total 27 27
*No Partially Met or Unmet.
Nine students met all the rubric’'s components.
Summer 2023 Term

Gen Ed - Verbal
Rubric Name  Communication
Count of
Level Column Labels

PARTIALLY Grand

Row Labels MET MET UNMET Total
Audience V4 1 12 5 18
Delivery V5 7 10 1 18
Development
V3 11 7 18
Organization
V2 6 12 18
Purpose V1 16 2 18
Grand Total 41 43 6 90

This rubric had many issues. Students had trouble addressing their audience (12
partially met, and 5 were unmet} and delivering the content (10 partially met and 1

unmet). Students (N=18) were able to state the purpose.

When analyzing all the data, it was noted that quantitative literacy was expressed
different on the spreadsheet. When looking at the original Excel spreadsheet and
returning to the original assignment in Brightspace, some faculty made an error and did
not correctly assess an assignment using the Gen Ed rubric. Even if this was an error,
it was important to note that training was needed regarding attaching the Gen Ed rubrics
to assignments in Brightspace; therefore, during Faculty Convocation, a professional



183

development on attaching Gen Ed rubrics to assignments in Brightspace was presented
by another faculty member who was proficient in Brightspace. Because the
Assessment Academy decided to implement a pilot program utilizing the Gen Ed rubrics
in Brightspace, and because of the small sample size, the error was easily noticed.
Also, because the numbers in the Verbal Communication rubric were not in the “Met”
column, the instructor changed his directions to be more specific, and the rubric was
shared.

Course Student Learning Outcomes Assessment Data

Identified as one of the strengths of Southern’s Assessment Plan, the Course
Student Leaming Outcomes Assessment has continued to grow. Faculty complete one
assessment report per semester, submitted to the Director of Accreditation and
Assessment for review. Even though faculty's Course Student Leamning Outcomes
Form was changed, Southern still relies on the *Plan, Do, Study, Adjust” Cycle for
classroom changes and budget allocations. These reports, the Academic
Subcommittee Reports and the Post Assessment on HIPS (High Impact Practice),
provide data on how Southem is continuing to assess courses and make changes.
Because of the data, Southern purchased software for faculty and students, software for
the classroom, and equipment for the classroom. Southern also purchased Kahoot, a
game-based leaming platform that brings engagement and fun in the classroom.
Students enjoy the game and can make quizzes to help learn the material for an exam.
Also, Southern purchased Grammarly to help improve with writing styles and
communication; furthermore, Southern is invested in buying Game-Pro cameras for
faculty to help in the classroom. Lastly, after noticing student's preference for Zoom
classes especially during and after Covid. Southern, in the Fall 2023 term, implemented
a new classroom modality called Hyflex. This modality enables a flexible participation
policy for students, where they can choose to attend face-to-face synchronous class
sessions in-person (traditional), complete class by watching it on Zoom, or watch the
recording later. This gives the learner a choice, equivalency, reusability, and
accessibility to education. It will require that the course be developed in Brightspace for
both classroom and online instruction and the instructor be organized and have the
technology available. The above-mentioned actions were based on the Course Student
Leaming Outcomes Reports and student surveys.

The course level assessment for the Fall 2023 term was due in December 2023
and results were tabulated. Noted that in Spring 2022 faculty{N=39) did not know what
a student learning outcome was or where they were located. However, in Fall 2023,
faculty (N=30) many were able to state that their student learning outcomes were in the
syllabi. Also, in the Spring 2022 term, faculty stated that instructor delivery, resources,
and evaluation methods was what needed to improve. For Fall 2023 term, faculty
(N=30) faculty felt that it was only the instructor delivery and course content. Other
issues, such as resources, curriculum classroom environment, policies, and practices
were low. Lastly, the Paramedic Science Director also mentioned a need for increase
visual technology in his classroom for EKG interpretation. He plans to use the new
Anatomage table for Allied Health programs showing the cardiac systems conduction



184

system for various dysrhythmias. Also, he is trying to secure funding for the new Virtual
Reality learning experience and new high fidelity training mannequins. This program
will project a hologram of various patients with emergency issues. This learning
simulation will meet the standards for high fidelity. The table below provides a
comparative analysis of the past two semesters.

”.J:;Z T '._"J_iﬁ?#ﬂ?w’h;ffrr:_"l?i :'ﬁf 022 ai

= Fauzﬂza ==

Term Epnng 2[}22
Number of Faculty 39
Respondents
Does Faculty know No- did not read answer
location of SLOs? correctly.
Assessment Tool Exam 14 Exam
Quiz 9 Quiz
Homework 9 Homework
Presentation 5 Presentation
Essay 15 Essay
Other 15 Other
Did Students meet the Yes 23
goal? Mo 1
Partially 14
What could be changed? Instructor delivery, Instructor delivery,
(3 highest) Evaluation method Course content
Resources Other
What changes? Grading, change in PowerPoint, use audio
schedule lectures, visualization,
increase coverage.
Financial Resources? Yes- 1
No- 38

Program-Level Assessment Data

Program-Level Assessment was identified as an area of weakness because of
the lack of measurable Program Quicomes, lack of actions for improvement of teaching
and learning, lack of common and consistent content on the website regarding program
listings, and lack of implementation of the Assessment Plan at the program level.
Southern used each visitor's findings to begin making changes. The foundation of a
modified plan was already in place, and the Academic Assessment Subcommittee
(“Assessment Academy”) agreed that it was time for implementation. The process of
assessing Program Outcomes is documented in the Faculty Assessment Guide.

One of the first things completed was to revisit the Program Outcomes and adjust
some wording. With the assistance of the Director of Accreditation and Assessment,



185

the Chief Academic Officer, Academic Deans, and the Directors, the Program
Outcomes were updated and placed on the website. The previous visitors noted that the
certificate programs and degree programs had the same outcomes, and these also
were modified. The College brought in a consultant to help explain the differences
between Course Student Learning Outcomes and Program Outcomes. With this
knowledge, more updates were completed.

After completing the rewriting of Program Outcomes, the Program Directors reviewed
their program curriculum mapping. This mapping shows how the General Education
Qutcomes are integrated into each program and how their Program Outcomes are met
in each course. Curriculum mapping helped the Directors note any gaps or overlaps in
their curriculum so changes could be made to improve student learming. Because of
this mapping, two programs, Paramedic Science and Criminal Justice, requested
curriculum changes through the Curriculum and Instruction Committee. For example,
Criminal Justice requested the following changes:

Remove CS 102 Computer Literacy

Remove AH 122 First Aid and AH 124 CPR

Remove CJ 216 Corrections Management

Remove SO 200 Sociology as a pre-requisite

Add EN 102 as an alternative course

Add CJ to PY 2286 in the catalog.

Re-Sequence PS 202, EN 115, and BU 205

S SR O P

The justification for this request was that it would help streamline the Criminal Justice
program and eliminate confusion on what course to take for different pathways.
Students will achieve one baseline Criminal Justice degree while maintaining the
smooth transition to a four-year degree program.

Southern WV Community and Technical College Information Technology
Department has strived to make the website's content consistent and transparent
regarding the programs, ceriificates, and skill sets. All programs have at least one
mission, goal, Program Qutcomes, and curriculum and achievement data. Programs
with a handbook are posted for student access and public view, In the narrative of the
programs that prepare students to take a certification or licensure exam, the Program
Directors have disclosed information regarding the U.5. Department of Education
implemented regulations (Regulation 34 CFR 668.43 (a) (5) (v)), which requires
Southern WV Community and Technical College's Associate Degree Mursing Program
to provide a list of all states/jurisdictions where the institution's curriculum meets state
educational requirements for professional licensure or certification.

Another vital component of Program Assessment is the annual survey developed
in Microsoft Forms. This survey report was sent to various Program Directors and
addressed the findings of the first annual program survey conducted using Microsoft
Forms. Currently, Southern has 16 programs resulting in a degree; six are nationally
accredited, and Business Accounting and Business Administration is oblaining one. The
areas included the mission statement, congruency of the mission statement to the



186

College, advisory board, faculty support, Student Services, resources, Program
Qutcomes, and benchmarks. A copy of the survey with the results is available for
review. The response rate for the survey was B8% (N=16). The areas of mission
statement, attendance at the advisory meeting, faculty, and usage of Student Services
were evaluated as satisfactory. Retention rates varied from 50-78%, and completion
rates were from 48-100%. The areas needing improvement were related to the
Program Outcomes being discussed in advisory meetings (77%) and adequacy of
resources (86%. N=15/16). These numbers may be slightly decreased due to the
newness of focusing on Program Outcomes’ measurement and data and the realization
that these outcomes lead the program to success. Once a need is identified by a
program, Southern's Administration has always been willing to invest in these various
programs, which has led to the updating of labs and classrooms. Through various
expansion grants and Perkins funds, Southern has been able to maintain state-of-the-
art Allied Health Skill Labs and simulation centers.

Southern has continued to do Five-Year Program Reviews as required in Title
135, Procedural Rule, West Virginia Council for Community and Technical College
Education, Series 10, Policy Regarding Pregram Review. Southem has a rotating
Program Review schedule that is updated annually to reflect which program reviews are
to be done in the following years. For example, when Paramedic Science was due for
review in the 2022-2023 school term, the Program Director found that the graduation
rate had decreased significantly for the Paramedic Science degree but not for the
Emergency Medical Technician (EMT) degree. Because of the severe shortage of First
Responders in West Virginia, students who obtained their EMT degrees were quickly
hired and began working and supporting their families. Southern realized that the EMT
program was needed, but so was the Paramedic Science program; therefore, a change
in the program occurred. Classes were realigned in the Emergency Management
Services/Paramedic Science by allowing students to test for their National Registry
Advance Emergency Technician (AEMT) after the program’s first semester. This
allowed certified AEMTs (Advanced Emergency Medical Technicians) to bridge to
Paramedic Science starting in the second semester. This change resulted from data
analysis and recognizing the community’s needs (see aricle). For the Fall 2023 term,
The Paramedic Science program had 23 students enter the program due to curriculum
changes and rigorous marketing by the Program Director.

In the 2023-2024 term, four (N=4) programs were tasked to submit a program
review under the new lemplale. Deans and Program Directors were asked to include
the adequacy, necessity, viability, and consistency in the executive summary.
Assessment data, program outcomes, and curriculum mapping were reflected in the
repoarts. The Directors discussed how data was collected, the reason for curriculum
changes, on the correlations of how modifications in the program related to the Strategic
plan and college mission, Achievements, and progress.

During the review of the program data regarding fall enroliment, the Chief
Technology Officer noted discrepancies in what Argos and Banner sent versus what the
Program Directors reported. He questioned why their numbers were different than what



187

was reported regarding the headcount and completion rate. The Program Directors
stated they had to report what numbers they had at certain times in the semester. While
Argos and Banner go directly by major codes, and no time limit was specified. After
much collaboration, programs will report as their accreditation bodies require, but the
Program Directors provided definitions for headcount and completion rates as specified
by each accrediting body. The results of the Program Reviews correlated directly with
the college’'s graduation rate. The Completion rates for the four problems are in the
table. Many theorize that the completion rate is decreased due to students having to
work, financial reasons, obtaining a skill set, and not completing the degree or
certification. Program Directors and Student services are reviewing the numbers and
seeing what interventions can be implemented to assist the student in completing the

program.
Program Completion Rates from 2023-2024 Program Reviews
Program Definition Rate
Board of Governors Defined as per No completion rates were
(Degreea) Argos/Banner. First class | available. Graduates (N=95)

to graduation.

for 2018-2023. Headcount
{N=51) for 2018 to Fall 2023,

Medical Lab Assisting MLA is a certificate Year | Head | Completion
(MLA) program so the Program Count Rate
(Certificate) Director uses the Medical | | 2019 | 21 32%
Laboratory Technology 2020 15 57.9%
definition, which is the 2021 17 15.8%
number of students who | [ 20227 13 5.0%,
complete the first
semester to confer a
degree.
Cccupation Development Defined as per Year Head | Completion
(Degree)-does not have | Argos/Banner. First class Count Rate
students at this time. to graduation, 2018 2 0
2020 0 0
2021 1 0
2022 0 0
Surgical Technology Defined as the number of | | Year | Head | Completion
(Degree) students enrolled after Count Rate
withdrawal date to 2019 8 67.0%
conferring a degree, 2020 | 13 76.9%
2021 14 71.0%
2022 | 15 73.0%

Lastly, the various committees of reviewers also pointed out that Occupation
Development in Associate Applied Science has not admitted students for a number of
years. This is due to the lack of apprenticeships in the area. It is a statewide program
invalving various colleges within the Community and Technical College System, the
United States Depariment of Labor, and the Bureau of Apprenticeships. It has been




188

listed on Southern’s degree inventory since 1987. It is a required program for students
seeking apprenticeships along with a college education in West Virginia. Therefore, a
final recommendation was made to for continuation of the program with corrective
actions. Some of these corrective actions could be reviewing the possibility of various
avenues to incorporate various programs such as WVRocks (West Virginia Remote
Online Collaborative Knowledge System) which allows students to work on 8-week
courses at the home institution, thus helping to improve completion rates for colliege,
micro-credentialing, a way of teaching to lead to do cost-efficient course in skills and
certifications in a few weeks, utilizing workforce development, working with Board of
Governors degree representative to see if any students meet qualifications, researching

childhood specialists program with skill sets in Occupation Development, and
collaborating with the West Virginia Joint Apprenticeship Programs to implement a
program with on-the-job-training, and updating the coliege catalog to inciude the
Occupation Development Associate in Applied Science. Southern may also meet with
the representatives of the United States Department of Labor Bureau of
Apprenticeships and Trainings program to explore opportunities and assess for
programs in the area.

Co-Curricular Data

After creating a definition and an Assessment Plan for Co-Curricular, Southern
has implemented analyzing data. The College was collecting simple descriptive
statistics on attendance of various program admission levels and on how many students
used the resources available; however, the multiple programs did not have a Program
Qutcome. Each department developed one Program Outcome for one of their
programs and collected data.

The Department of Admissions decided that their overall goal for their
Assessment project would be that students connect with resources that improve their
odds of success. Their specific goal was to have at least two-thirds of students who
complete the New Student Orientation agree or strongly agree that New Student
Orientation helped them develop a feeling of connection to the College community. This
goal was under the Unit Goals that students will feel connected to the community, the
Institutional General Education Outcomes of Intercultural Knowledge and Competence,
and the CAS Standards of Domain 1) Knowledge Acquisition, Domain 2) Cognitive
Complexity, Domain 3) Intrapersonal Development, Domain 4) interpersonal
Competence, Domain 5) Humanitarianism and Domain 6) Practical Competence. The
New Student Orientation program was conducted on August 17, 2023, and over 200
students participated. Students (N=74) scored 1.49 as an organized score, and a 1.46
connected to the college on the New Student Orientation Evaluation Form. The
instrument's goals were to be between a positive one (+1) and a positive two (+2);
therefore, the result was within the acceptable range, and students felt connected to the
college by the end of the day. Graphs illustrating the data collected are available on the
College’s website under Co-curricular handbook. The final draft of this yer's handbook
will not be completed until end of semester. On July 1%, a new handbook for 2024-2025
will be started with the new plans from the Directors.



189

Administrative Assessment Data

In October 2023, Southern attempted to integrate administrative assessment into the
Assessment model, The staff members in these departments wanted to be included in
Assessment and felt they could contribute to the process. The departments under this
section include Human Resources, Finance, External Affairs, and Workforce. These
departments indirectly affect students and show support for the departments that have
direct interaction with students. Without administrative support, Southern could not
achieve their mission of student success in their education journey. However, the
Assessment Academy members felt that this did not relate to student learning and
Administrative Assessment should not be part of the Assessment Model.

4.B.3 Process and Methodology: The institutions processes and methodologies
to assess student learning reflect good practice, including the substantial
participation of faculty, instructional, and other relevant staff members.

Effective Assessment reflecting good practice and participation by all is a matter of
commitment to Southern, not simply an importance of compliance. Southern is
dedicated to establishing a culture of Assessment embedded in every aspect of the
educational process, from student service to academia to co-curricular to administration.
This active participation in the College’s strategies and methodologies to assess student
learning is apparent in the Assessment Model, the amount of professional development
offered, and a college-wide attitude that understands the importance and value of
Assessment.

Southern is creating a culture of Assessment and good practice by developing
procedures and expectations that involve faculty in every facet of the Assessment
process. Timelines are created, and announcements are made in monthly town hall
meetings. Faculty are informed when various Assessment items are needed, and
deadlines are specified. Reporting responsibilities include Course Student Learning
Outcome Reports, program-level annual surveys, attaching General Education Rubrics
to assignments and quizzes, program reviews, and review of syilabi.

Faculty and other employees are supported in Assessment by the Director of
Accreditation and Assessment, a faculty member, the Chief Academic Officer, the
President, the Chief Information Officer, the Director of Institutional Research, Finance,
and many more. Southern provides Assessment training and opportunities for
continued growth in the accreditation and Assessment processes. Assessment is part
of faculty’s contract and may be part of faculty’s evaluation and help with advancement.
Facuity are encouraged to participate in Assessment during meetings, governance
days, own hall meetings, and in the classroom.

Southern’s processes of Assessment described in 4.B.1 establish newly stated
measurable, realistic, and observable outcomes and ways to assess at the three levels:
General Education Outcomes, Program Outcomes, and Course Student Learning



190

Outcomes. The College has developed and followed a timeline that clearly explains
when various assignments are due:

Summary Timeline for Assessment

Aug. Sep. | Oct. | Nov. | Dec.|Jan. | Feb. | Mar. | Apr. | May | JunelJuly
school Collect General Education Asszessment Report
data,
Develop sfrategies.

Aug. Sep. Oct. | Nov. | Dec. | Jan. Feb. Mar. Apr. | May
Director of Director of Deans, Completed | Revised Revisad Revisad
Accreditation Accreditation | Program Reviews Reviews | Reviews Reviews
and and Directors, sent to sent to sent to sent to
Assessment Assessment | and faculty | Director of Academic | President’s | Board of
requests data meets with work on Accreditation | Student Cabinet Governors
from Director of | Deans and Reviews and Affairs and
Institutional Program Assessment | Committes Community
Research Directors and

Technical
College
System by
May 31

Aug. | Sep. | Oct. | MNov. [Dec.|Jan.| Feb. | Mar. | Apr. | May |




191

Aug. [Sep.| Oct | Nov. |Dec.|Jan.| Feb. [ Mar. [ Apr. [ May | JunelJuly |

Program Collect Data Collect Data | Collect | Program Program
Directors Data Directors and | Directors and
and Deans Deans Deans submit
submit Part | submit Part Il | Annual
of of Surveys to
Annual Annual Accraeditation
College College Offices, as
Survey to Survey to well as
Director of Director of Diractor of
Accreditation Accreditation | Accreditation
and and and
Aszesament Azsgssment | Assessment
and select
20% of
Program
Qutcomes to
ds5855
Aug. | Sep. | Oct | Nov. Dec. Jan. | Feb. | Mar. | Apr. May
Faculty Eauatly
submit
submit Course-
E;":;:mfn"fl Level
Faculty collect data for Course-Lavel e ot Faculty collect data for Assessment
Azsasament. Director of Course-Lavel Azssessment. Form to
a
Accreditation Dfractnr o
iy Fnﬂﬂﬂ'ﬂdltﬂ“ﬁl‘l
an
Assessment. Aasmasmant
Director of Director of
Accreditation Accreditation
and and
Assessment Assessment
provides provides
summary of summary of
Assessment Assessment
Report from Report from
spring spring
semester's semester's
dala, data.




192

Timeline Key:

Blue — Institution Learning Assessment- General Education Outcomes
Yellow- Program-Level Review: Five-Year
Orange- Program-Level Review: One-Year
nk- Course-Level Assessment
urricular Assessment

The Academic Assessment Subcommittee (AAS) (“Assessment Academy™)
provides assessments regarding the assurance of quality and consistent teaching and
learning through the student's education journey. The Academic Assessment
Subcommittee has made great strides in gquantifying the General Education Outcomes;
this was noted by the Mentor from the Higher Learning Commission's Assessment
Academy when she wrote:

“l know | was only supposed to address changes in the last six months, but
I'd like to commend Southern on their commitment to transparency and
develupment of the Assessment website with dedicated information and
resources on topics including: program and course level assessment, co-
curricular assessment, faculty assessment guide, syllabi (and assessment),
advisory (and assessment) as well as the above stated GEO work. Since |
have mentored this project from the beginning, it is satisfying to see how the
Academic Assessment Subcommittee has really taken charge of
communicating their assessment culture. Yes, static assessment reports are
there (these formed the bulk of the website from 3 years ago), but the AAS is
really making the effort to engage with stakeholders with this website
development that can now be viewed as a resource asset.”

The Academic Assessment Subcommittee is now in the second phase of its
Academy Project: gathering and analyzing data to note trends and make changes for
improvement. Southern has made positive strides in making data-driven decisions.
Some of these have been at the request of the Academic Assessment Subcommittee,
based on Course-Level Assessments, Argos reports on General Education Outcomes,
and Program-Level Assessments. This 100% faculty-driven commitiee meets monthly
and is open to the college community; the commitiee follows Robert's Rules of Order



193

and takes minutes. Based on the mentor's suggestion, this committee wil! divide into
two groups but meet monthly. Also, this committee collaboratively created the Faculty
Assessment Guide, which gives tips on Assessment, Bloom's Taxonomy, and the
writing of Student Learning Outcomes versus Program Outcomes and General
Education Outcomes.

Another crucial collaborative effort at Southern was the creation of the new
syllabi format. Faculty Senate and the Academic Assessment Subcommittee worked to
develop the format and what they felt was needed in a syllabus. After approval from the
Academic Student Affairs Committee, President’s Cabinet, and public for 30-day
comment, the format was sent to Information Technology, which hypothesized they
could do a Banner merge into the syllabi and keep information consistent and constant.
faculty were still able o add their parts, thereby ensuring academic freedom.

Showing support for accreditation, Southern's Board of Governors has placed the
Accreditation Liaison Cfficer (ALO), an ex-officio member of the Academic Assessment
Subcommittee, on each meeting's agenda. These informative presentations provide a
primary avenue for keeping the Board of Governors up-to-date on what is occurring with
Assessment and accreditation.

Southern is moving forward in using Assessment tools, such as Brightspace,
rubrics, surveys in Microsoft Forms, and Argos, in collecting data for the three levels of
academic Assessment. Southern also recognizes the importance of collecting co-
curricular data and using it to change their programs.

When asked to do a SWOT (Strength-Weakness-Opportunities-Threats)
analysis, the Academic Assessment Subcommittee was quick to supply answers. One
of the first ones was the strength, work ethic, and makeup of the “Assessment
Committee.” Without this group, assessment would still be in its infancy stages and
only at a point to begin gathering data. This group has worked hard and collaboratively
to change the perception of assessment at Southern from “doing taxes” to “student
learning.” Provided below is the SWOT Analysis the Committee made. The answers
reflect various opinions of each member and will be viewed as a tool to guide the
Academy in moving forward in further developing Assessment at Southern and thereby
improving student learning and success.



194

Strengths-Weakness-Opportunities-Threats Analysis
By Assessment Academy Subcommittee

Strengths
People who work in the
Assessment Academy and their
work ethic.
Ground work is Laid.
Procedures in Place.
Team-oriented
Website
Professional Development
sessions
Increased understanding of
assessment by faculty.

Weaknesses

¢ Need more education, more
professional development to
increase understanding

¢ Some older faculty view as
more paperwork

s Culture is slow to change

s Definite cycle of outcomes
or a certain timeline to
follow

¢ Closing the Loop

+ Loss of Institutional
Research Directors and his

¢ Ongoing mentality of assessment
+ Support of current administration vast experience
e« ALO
¢ HLC Liaison
» Transparency of assessment
o Revamping of forms
* Improvement of cuiture regarding

Assessment

Opportunities Threats

¢ Chance to make changes to

promote student learning .
+ Show what resources Southern * Facu!ty percept.lons .

has available. ¢ Possible administrations
« Increase student learning and ¢ Legislative changes

success ¢ Interfering/Mitigating Factors
» More resources ¢ Qutside pressure to confirm
« Chance for more “assessment” e Time

conferences .

Increase retention rate e Continuous change

Increase graduation rate
Increase completion rate
Enhance curriculum
Improve student learning
outcomes




Electronic Resources
Institutional Governance Handbook
SIP-2171, Minimal Qualifications of Facully
West Virginia Higher Education Palicy Commission (HEP Data
SCP-2875, Workioad Requirements for Full-time Faculty and Instructional Specialists
SIP-3160, Course Syllabus
SIP-3160.A Syllabus Formal

General Education Rubrics

General Education Ouicomes

SCP-3637, General Education Philosophy and Goals

Faculty Assessment Guide

Determining Qualified Faculty through HLC's Criteria for Accreditation and Assumed
Practices

SCP-2218, Evaluali Fialf-ti

SCP-2218.A. Faculty Evaluation Forms

SCF 3620 Policy Regarding Program Review

SAA Equal Opportunity, Harassment, and nondiscrimination Policy

Faculty Handbook

SIP-2220, Course Feedback

SIP-2220 A, Course Feedback Survey

SCP 2664---7

SIP-7000.A, E-mail Procedures and Guidelines Goveming Distribution Lists
Co-Curriculum CAS Standards Reports

Performance Appraisal Forms

SCP-2624 Em t
SCP-5085, Awarding of U Tuiti ee Waivers

SIP-2165. Educational Release for Classified Em
Current College Catalog (2023-2024)

all 022-2023
College C -2022
Co-Curricular Han k
2020-2021 College Catalog
Academic Program Review Schedule Matrix 2023-2028
Board of Governor's Meeting Minutes
Board of Governor's Meeti hedule and nda
Employee Direclory
Organizati |
Empl n k 2000
Faculty Credentials Report

Faculty Credential Review Examples (onsite)
Institutional Govermnance Homepage
Great Colleges to Work Survey Reports 2019
Strategic Enroliment Plan 2018-2023

195



196

Strategic Enroliment Plan 2023-2028




197

Classified Staff Council Report to the Board of Governors

December 12, 2023

The Classified Staff Council met on November 7, 2023.

The Classified Staff elected our Vice Chair Angela Dotson and our recorder Shelly Stewart.
Held our Apple Butter fundraiser on November 8 and we are still selling quarts and pints.
We are reviewing our Constitution.

Our staff has participated in every Governance Day this year, they have completed 197 professional
development courses, four staff members are working on their degrees, 16 staff members have helped
decorate for the holidays, 15 staff members attended Commencement, 12 have worked the food
pantry/food giveaways, many more worked the trunk treat.

Respectfully Submitted by
Kim Maynard, Vice Chair

Classified Staff Council



198

o)

Memo

To: Southern WV Community & Technical College Board of Governors
From: Velva Pennington, Interim Chiefl Finance Officer

CC: Dr. Pamela Alderman, President

RE: Finance Update

As we are close to ending the second quarter we are below average in spending, spending on
average around 41% in all areas. It currently costs the college $39, 129.87 a day to operate. We
have 292 days of operational cash on hand.

We have collected 51,936,482 in tuition and fees revenue this year, which is 39% of our 2024
tuition and fees budget. Our interest income is at 94% of the budget due to interest rates
remaining high.



199

Olperating Bud pet Cash Anatyils
Seozad Quarter 3034
FI2004  JF¥ 2034 ACTUAL] [ Campartion]  Fv 2023 T Py o007
F‘nmmﬁ; BLDGET ¥ip % BUDGET muur_rqlmam-.
Tistion and Feat HEELEN] 51668 TN G8.104000] SEOSERiD T
Capasl feet 0L 3540 T BT TIREET FIT:
‘Wioatgrce Beveniia A5G 00a L3177 40k, . . I
Auiukan, Eeagrprnes 35,000 15,358 7 FRETE] Ei)
QRer Detrating Revenpe Siood A1531 A aE0e00] 1059 [ar
SBLe Apprapeumices 5.E49 550 350295 A BToRc]  1aNgary 1§k
I 85 0P £ 11 e pLET S51.058 L L5, By [T 57
Caher Monsperinng revenugs s : [ - . [
TOTAL REVERILIES L1480, Mg L6000, Jaa A STILDEE DL EILALN Aty
- .'m
e et
Ralnnes and Dipei SREMG LT 55,516 445 L I N R T L34
Berehs 1AM 2T L5515 Aot 2GSEETE| Lol 64
Lhiifes, E5D LOG 181,715 8% Baooor 3T TS 47
Siiflied An8 Uihdr Seraes L0630 LB33ATR &% Toresd| 1 amEND A
ﬂl"‘-l OPERATING EXPESES §1 56000 55,086,860 8% S14.71 LO&G 56460740 A4k
Fled fhange in Caih 5751 295%) S LS 14 1] 15l 0.1 gy
Carih Beginning Balance 10400456 LA LLTSE2T  pasIAn
Ending Cath Balants ILADLGYE  1LAlbl15e 12753917 LLIIT.a%0
——— e —
~ Goerslional Cat on Fand Dags
Casn Balane 511,500,804 T
4,008,124 L
noes [55. 955 &40 53902087
Ensting Cain Balance S11L.45 550
$10,415.150
au3




200

>

SOUTHERN

President's Report
December 12, 2023

“A Very Southern Christmas Concert” was held on December 2™ at 7 pm and
December 3" at 3 p.m.

Fall Commencement was held December 8" at 10:00 a.m.

Woeork on Mortuary Science and Mine Management is moving forward.
Strategic Planning is underway and going well,

Southern’s Foundation sold homemade apple butter with proceeds going to
Southern Samaritans.

Selected as one of West Virginia's Wonder Women by WV Living Magazine.
Spoke at luncheon held at the Holiday Inn & Suites in Charleston November 2™
Lineman Program held graduation November 4%,

Attended Boone County CTE Fall Advisory Dinner

Participated in Meet the President on Logan Campus (Williamson Campus Met
the President to be rescheduled)

Attended Southern’s Veteran's Day program on the Logan Campus Movember
13‘"\

Attended monthly Chamber meeting.

Attended Advisory Council for CTC meeting.

Attended Air Mobility Initiatives Strategic Planning meeting at Mingo Co.
Redevelopment Authority on November 15%.

Partnered with Logan Regional Medical Center Reindeer Dash 5k at Chief Logan
Park held on November 18", Food was collected for Southern's food pantries.
Southern Coalition for the Arts presented "Rudolph the Red Nose Reindeer” in
the Savas Kostas Performing Arts Theater November 18" and 18" as well as
performances through the week,

Attended Coalfield Health Board meeting.

Scotland/ireland trip — interview on WOWK November 28"

Giving Tuesday November 28". Proceeds help those students participating in
the Scotland /lreland study abroad trip.

Allied Health and Nursing held Open House event on the Logan Campus
November 28",

November 30" Purse Bingo was held on the Williamson Campus in the Academy
for Mine Training and Energy Technologies (formerly known as the Armory
building) at 6 pm. Proceeds will go towards scholarships and expanding
Workforce Development programs. Very successful fundraising event.



201

Residential Wiring Students received a storage building for wiring training.
Hosted Southern Foundation Board Meeting and Annual Meeting December 51,
Attended Logan County Steering Committee meeting December 6t

Working with Mingo County Board of Education with CTE programs.

Spoke at Kanawha Valiey Mine Institute at the Holiday Inn & Suites in Charleston
December 7.

Hosted Logan County Chamber of Commerce Christmas Brunch earlier today.



e BB S

Ll et |
nofa N = O

Mine Management Advisory Committee Members

2023

Ritchie Belcher, JENNMAR Services

Scott Brown, Coronado Coal

Robert {(Bud) Baldwin, Energy Resources Engineering, PLLC
Eric Coleman, JENNMAR

Jeff Gillenwater, Alpha Metallurgical Resources

Brandy Goble, Blackhawk Mining

Weston Harvey, Blackhawk Mining

Brian Kirkendoll, American Hydraulics and Rebuild

Eric Lilly, Coronado Coal

. Chris Prater, Blackhawk Mining

. Aaron Preece, Arch Coal, Inc.

. Matt Schram Ramaco Resources

. Monica Tolliver, Coronado Coal

. Kevin Whipkey, Whipkey Engineering and Technical Services, LLC
. Cliff Workman, Coronado Coal

202



SOUTHERN

W COMMUNITY & TECHMICAL COLLECE

The Mine Management Program is designed to prepare and educate individuals for
front-line or mid-level positions in the mining industry, both surface and underground. A
degree in Mine Management will provide graduates with diverse opportunities, including
career progression and the ability to be employed in a global profession. This program
applies to all energy resource concepts, including coal, oil, gas, and salt. The associate
in applied science program encompasses a wide variation and correlation of people,
financial resources, equipment, community, environmental, and regulatory agencies,
providing the management team with marketable skills and an educated workforce in
today’s competitive landscape.

Mine Management Reimagined Curriculum - 60 Credit Hours
First Semester

DepiMo. Title Credit Hours
Support Courses

BU 115 Business Mathematical Applications 3

Cs 102 Compauter Literacy 3

EN 101 English Composition | 3

MM 109 Mine Law, Safety, and Health 3

MM 115 Introduction to Mine Management 3
Second Semester

Depi/MNo, Title Credit Hours
Suppoert Courses

BU 205 Communications in Business 3

MG 261 Human Resources Management 3

MM 112 A Comparative History of Mining 3

PY 201 General Psychology 3
*Elective 3

*AC, BU, EC, EG, FM, MG, ME, MM, TS, WL, or applicable industrial centification approved by the
Chief Academic Officer,

Third Semester

Dept/No. Title Credit Hours
Support Courses

EC 24] Principles of Economics | 3

MG 264 Supervision 3

MG 263 Labor Relations i

MG 269 Effective Leadership 3

MM 200 Cultural Aspects of Mining 3
Fourth Semester

e pt ™, Title Credit Hours
EC 242 Principles of Economics 1 3

MG 266 Project Management 3

MG 272 Industrial Leadership 3

MG 273 Organizational Behavior 3

MN 215 Environmental Asoects of Mining 3

Tha Ming Managomand Program i avadable in the fabioessg modalities: Fully onling, Hybrid, and Weekend FastTrack
Farmats will ba available in the falowing,

Expadiied track avalable - 1.5 paars

Traditional (15 hoursfd semesters for 2.0 years)

Parl-Time (2.8 years)



1
b\‘ 204

Southern West Virginia Community and Technical College
Board of Governors
Meeting of October 17, 2023
100 College Drive, Logan, WV
Logan Campus, Building C, Room 428
Via Zoom Meeting ID: 941 0594 9573

hitps://ro0m.us/(/94105943573 P pwd=hz 7N bids5SCA3IWInSkA0VDItcHIrdz00
Dial-in Only: 1-646-876-9923
6:00 p.m.
MINUTES

Board Members Present: Bud Baldwin, Chair, David Gresham, Shawn Cline-Riggins, Sam
Stewart, Josh Stowers, Jeremy Thompson, Virgil Underwood, Chris
Gray, and Chris Ward

Board Members Absent:  George Misbet

Also Attending: President, Dr. Pamela Alderman, Jennifer Dove, Recorder,
Velva Pennington, Interim Chief Finance Officer, Kimberly
Maynard, Classified Staff Vice Chair, David Lord, Director of Safety
and Campus Operations, Debbie Dingess, Chief Human Resources
DOfficer,

Guests: MNone

1. Call to Order

Board of Governors Chair, Mr. Robert Baldwin, declared a quorum present and convened
the meeting at .00 p.m.

2. Call for Public Comments

Chair Baldwin asked for public comments to the Board. No requests for public comment
were received.

a. Finance Report

Ms. Velva Pennington, Interim Chief Finance Officer, provided the fellowing financial
update:

= Finance has just ended the first quarter of the fiscal year.

« Finance statements were due and turmed in October 15™. A copy to review will be
provided.

First Pell refund to students on September 20" in the amount of $743,818.78.
College is on target with spending.

The college has approximately 302 days of operational cash on hand.

The audit has been completed and submitied.



4,

5.

6.

HLC Institutional Response Update

205

President Alderman provided the following update on Mr. Bill Alderman’s behaif:

A copy of the draft focus report provided.

President Alderman and Mr. Alderman will work in November to complete the
report.

The Assessment Academy has been working hard with other in the institution to
gather numbers and data for the report. Focus visit will be looking at assessment
and credentialling.

Assessment Academy team attended a Roundtable meeting in Chicago. President
Alderman gave a review of the visit.

Credentiailing is an issue among other colleges as well. Regina Bias, Director of
Accreditation and Assessment attended the meeting and was pleased to report
that we are on track. The college is doing well. Was happy to receive validation
that we are where we should be. Met our Scholar at the meeting and was able to
talk with her.

President Alderman is very happy with how everyone is working together as one
college.

Presidents Report

President Alderman’s full report is attached to the agenda packet. The President

presented the following highlights to the Board;

Semester is underway and past the midterm point.

Hosted many events: Southern’s Foundation Executive Board held a meeting on
campus and want to continue having meetings here. Hosted Roundtable event for
Federal Reserve President, Tom Barkin t discuss the needs of the commuinity.
Governance Day was on September 81 and the next is November 3%,

Hosted NASA. Representatives discussed different career pathways to NASA.
Very impressed with the questions that middle school students asked. Thanked
Mr. Stacy Dingess, Chief External Affairs Officer for setting this up.

Starting a new Customer Service Excellence program. The first presentation was
on September 28",

September 30th, we hosted our first trail ride event. Very fun and successful event.
Present Alderman spoke at a Lunch and Learn event for Logan Regional Medical
Center regarding breast cancer.

PBS was here teday filming a documentary featuring Southern. President
Alderman is very excited about the finished product.

President Alderman, Chair Baldwin, and Jennifer Dove attended the BOG Summit
in Charleston. Chair Baldwin shared his thoughts of the Summit. Very happy with
Southern's position among other institutions. President Alderman was part of a
panel discussing cyber resiliency.

Census date is October 15'". Enrollment is up 7.11% headcount from this day last
year. 10.44% FTE from last year. President is very excited about the increase in
a time with others are struggling. Thanked everyone for their hard work to get the
numbers up.

Classified Staff Annual Report

Kimberly Maynard, presented the following report:



10.

subcommittees:  Hallmark, Southern Samaritans, Legislative, Professiogal
Development, and Website.

Held elections to fill all positions. Will be holding an election to fill Classified Staff
Chair.

Will be working with the Foundation to make and sell apple butter fo raise funds
for Southern Samaritans.

Next meeting is in November.

Facuity Senate Report

Chris Ward provided the following Faculty Senate update:

Working on Constitutional amendments of our Senate makeup due organizational
structure makeup changes. Senate receptive to the changes.

Reviewing and revising policies regarding Faculty Promotion and Faculty Incentive
pay.

Organizational Chart

President Alderman presented the Organizational Chart to the Board on behalf of Debbie
Dingess.

Velva Pennington, Interim Chief Financial Officer.

Will review positions as they become available.

Chief Student Services Officer page, Cassandra Vance moved from Wyoming to
Logan.

Sheiby Porter new title as Operations Manager.

Stephanie Mounts, Director of Professional and Technical Studies.

One Nursing faculty vacancy.,

Removed Weekend from titles.

Emergency Preparedness Report

Ms. Lord's full report is attached to the agenda packet. Mr. Lord presented the following
highlights to the Board:

ASHER exercises are completed on each campus.

Active Shooter training on September's Governance Day.

Emergency Plan updated in July.

Department of Justice initiated quarterly homeland security meetings.

Microsoft Teams will now store all documents.

Southern's crime statistics were uploaded to the US Department of Education's
portal. Happy to report that Southern had no incidents.

The National Emergency Alert System conducted a test on October 4" at 2:20.
The system is tested annually.

Southern will be doing a similar test on October 30" at 1:00 p.m.

Board members will have a vital role if Southern experienced an emergency
situation to help with students, communities, etc.

Action ltems

10.1

Approval of August 15, 2023, Board Minutes



MOTION:

ACTION:

Sam Stewart moved to approve the August 15, 2023, meeting
minutes with corrections.

Josh Stowers seconded the motion. The motion was carried
unanimously, and Chair Baldwin declared the motion adopted.

10.2 Request for Approval to Release Institutional Policies For Additional 30-
Day Comment

10.2.1 SCP-2825, Salary Administration

MOTION:

ACTION:

Chris Gray moved the adoption of the following resolution:

RESOLVED, That the Southern West Virginia Com-munity and
Technical College Board of Governors grant approval for
distribution of SCP-2825, Salary Administration, to Southern’s
constituents and the Chancellor for Community and Technical
College Education for an additional 30-day public comment period.

Chris Ward seconded the motion. The motion carried unanimously,
and Chair Baldwin declared the motion adopted.

11. Possible Executive Session under Authority of WV Code § 6-9A-4 for the following:

12,

Chair Baldwin invited a motion for the Board to enter Executive Session. Josh Stowers
moved that the Board of Governors enter an Executive Session pursuant to West Virginia
Code §6-9A to Discuss the Presidents Annual Evaluation Results. Sam Stewart seconded
the motion that carried unanimously. Chair Baldwin declared the motion adopted and the
Board then met in an Executive Session at 7:10 p.m. Following deliberations, Shawn
Cline-Riggins moved that the Board rise from Executive Session and reconvene in open
session. Chris Ward seconded the motion which was carmied unanimously. The Board
took no votes nor made any decisions during the Executive Session.

11.1 Review Results of Annual Evaluation of the President.

MOTION:

ACTION:

MOTION:

ACTION:

informational Items

Chris Gray made a motion to accept the results of the President’s
Annual Evaluation.

Sydney Brown seconded the motion. The motion was carried
unanimously, and Chair Baidwin declared the motion adopted.

Chris Ward made a motion to include comment sections in the
President's Annual evaluation tool.

Shawn Cline Riggins seconded the motion. The motion was carried
unanimously, and Chair Baldwin declared the motion adopted.

12.1 Results Board of Governors Self Evaluation



8
Chair Baldwin went over the resuits of the evaluation. Question 10, 15 and 16 should be
a no. Chair and members are happy with the tool and resuits.

13.1  The Next Regular Board of Governors Meeting is Scheduled for 6 p.m. on
Tuesday, December 12, 2023.

12. Adjournment

There being no further business, Chair Baldwin declared the meeting adjourned.

Robert Baldwin, Chair

Jennifer Dove
Executive Assistant to the President
and Board of Governors



209

SOUTHERN WEST VIRGINIA COMMUNITY AND TECHNICAL COLLEGE
BOARD OF GOVERNORS
MEETING OF DECEMBER 12, 2023

ITEM: SCP-4710, Academic Integrity

RECOMMENDED RESOLUTION: RESOLVED, That the Southern West Virginia
Community and Technical College Board of
Govemors grant approval for distribution of SCP-
4710, Academic Integrity, to Southern's constituents
and the Chancellor for Community and Technical
College Education for the regquired 30-day public
comment period.

STAFF MEMBER: Debbie C. Dingess
BACKGROUND:

SCP-4710, Academic integrily, was reviewed by the Policies and Procedures Committee at its
meeting on November 3, 2023. The recommendation was to forward the policy to the President’s
Cabinet for advancement to the Board of Govemors of Southern West Virginia Community and
Technical College.

At its meeting on November 7, 2023, the President’'s Council granted approval for the
advancement of SCP-4710, Academic Integrity, fo the Southern West Virginia Community and
Technical College Board of Governors.

Therefore, the staff recommends that the Board of Govemors of Southern West Virginia
Community and Technical College grant approval to distribute SCP-4710, Academic Integrity, to
Southern’s constituents and the Chancellor for Community and Technical College Education for
the required 30-day public comment period.



210

SOUTHERN WEST VIRGINIA COMMUNITY AND TECHNICAL COLLEGE
BOARD OF GOVERNORS
SCP-4710

SUBJECT: Academic Integrity

REFERENCE: Nome

ORIGINATION: July 1, 1984

EFFECTIVE: May 18, 2017

REVIEWED: Eptoberii-20405eplomber 8, 2023

SECTION 1. PURPOSE

To establish a policy that outlines Southemn’s espestitiass-pesponsibilities and procedures for academic

integrity and academic dishonesty.

SECTION 2. SCOPE AND APPLICABILITY

2.1

This policy applies o all students at Southern.

SECTION 3. DEFINITIONS

3

3.2

3.3

34

Academic Integrity - Academic integrty at Southern is a standard of ethics students are expected to maintain,
Academic Dishonesty - Academic dishonesty is any practice which gives a student an unfair advantage over
another siudent in the same or similar course of study, 10 includes but is nod limited o plagiarism, cheating,
fraud, information technology misuse, or any misconduct with regard 1o academic integrity as defined.

Plagiarism - The attempt to represent the work of another, as it may relate to written or oral works, compater-
based work, mode of creative expression (i.e., music, media, or the visual arts), as the product of one’s own
thought, whether the other’s work is published or unpublished, or simply the work of a fellow student,

Cheating - The improper taking or tendering of any information or material whselh-that shall be used to
determine academic credit. Examples include but are not limited 10 the following:

341  Copying from ancther student’s test or homework paper.
342 Allowing another student to copy from a test or homework assignment.

3453 Using unavihorized malerials during a test, such as the course texibook, notebook, formula lisis,
noles, or erib sheets, meluding those stored in o calculator or other electronic device.

344  Collaborating during an in-class or take-homs test with any other person by giving or receiving
information without authority.

34.5 Having another individual write or plan a paper, including those bought from rescarch paper services.

SCP-4710, Academic lmegrity Page | of 4



346

3AT

J4R

211

Submitting the same paper or project in more than one class.

Obtaining any pant of an examination or assignment before il has been given 1o the class.

Use of any electronic device in class without the expressed permission of the instructor.

3.5 Fraud - Fabrication, Forgery, and Obstrsction

3.5

352

353

354

Fabrication is the use of invented, counterfeited, aliered, or forged information in assignments of any
type, including those activities done in conjunction with academic eourses that require students o
be involved in put-of-classroom experiences,

Forgery is the imitating or counterfeiting of images, documenis, signatures, and the like.

Ohstruction is any behavior that limits the academic opportunities of other stedents by improperly
impeding their waork or their access to education resources.

Frawd includes, but is not limited 1o, the following actions:

3154.1 Providing any signature other than one's own on any College document.

3.54.2 Forging or altering the record of any grade in an educational record.

3543 Knowingly presenting false information or intentionally misrepresenting one's record.

3544 Knowingly providing false staterments in any Collepe proceedings.

36 Misconduct - Misconduct is the imentional violation of college policies by tampering with grades or taking
part in obtaining or distributing any part of a est, quiz, or graded assigniment. Examples include:

3.6

.62

3.6.3

jod

365

3.6.6

367

Stealing, buying. downloading, or otherwise obtaining all or part of a test andfor lest answers.,
Selling or giving away all or pari of a test andfor lest answers,
Asking or bribing any other person 1o obtain a test or any information about a test.

Misrepresenting the truth, including handing in computer programs or using compuler programs
generated by another as one’s own work; lying to an instructor to increase a grade; and lying or
misrepresenting facts when confronted with an allegation of academic dishonesty.

Changing, altering, or being.an sccessory 10 changing andfor altering e grade in a grade book, on
8 computer, on a test, on a “change of grade™ form, or on other official academic records of the
College, which relate 1o grades.

Continuing to work on an examination or project afier the specified time has clapsed.

Information Technology Misuse = Misuse of infermation technology is disruptive, unethical, or
illegal use of the college's computer resources. Misuse of computers also includes disruptive,
unethical, or illegal use of the computers of another nstitution or agency in which siudents are
performing pant of their academic program.

SCPAT10, Acadewmic Itegrity Page 2ol 4



212

SECTION 4. POLICY

4.1

4.3

Because academic integrity is a comerstone of the college’s commitment to the principles of free inguiry,
stuchents are responsible for leaming and upholding professional standards of research, writing, assessment,
and ethics in their areas of study. In the academic community, the high value placed on truth implies a
corresponding intolerance of scholastic dishonesty, Written or other work shieh-that students submit
must be the product of their own efforts and must be consistent with appropriate standards of professional
ethics, Academic dishonesty, which includes cheating, plagiarism, and other forms of dishonest or unethical
behavior, is prohibated.

Upon discovering an act of academic dishonesty, the nature of the penalty shall be determined by the
instructor, Such penalties may include but are not limited to a lowered grade on the assignment, no credit
for the assignment, or exclusion from further participation and a grade of “F” in the course.

Repeated acts of scademic dishonesty will be handled by the Chief Academic Officer and will not be tolerated
by the institution.

SECTION 5. BACKGROUND OR EXCLUSIONS

Al

Hone.

SECTION 6. GENERAL PROVISIONS

6.1

Mo,

SECTION 7. RESPONSIBILITIES AND PROCEDURES

7.1

1.2

7.3

7.4

1.3

Within fourtcen days after an act of academic dishonesty is discovened, the instructor shall nodify the student
in writing and include a statement of the penalty imposed,

Within fourteen days H<b-after an act of academic dishonestly is discovered, the instructor shall notnfy the
appropriale Bévisien-Head-Dean in writing. The instructor shall include copies of any physical evidence
and a written report stating the facts of the case and the action taken.

Any student considering himselF unfairly treated may use the grievance procedure as stated in the Student
Handbook. The grievance procedure must be initiated within fourteen calendar days of the instrucior’s
notification 1o the student.

For subsequent or multiple offenses by the student, in addition to being given a grade of “F”" in the course
in which the academic dishonesty occurred, the student may be expelled from the College by the President
on the recommendation of the Chief Academic Officer following a judicial hearing. The sulucq.lcm
offense is not limited to the course in which the initial ofTense was reporied,

The Office of the Miee-President-for-eadenie-AdtabmsChicl Academic Officer shall maintain a permanent
record of academic dishonesty offenses. A notification shall be available within Basserthe student
database for evidence in any future judicial hearings regarding academic dishonesty. A hearing board wall
only receive current evidence on student misconduct unless prior evidence of misconduct is pertinent to
the hearing,

SCP-4T10, Acerclesic fraegriny Page 3 of 4



213

1.6 A student who has been given a grade of “F" by an instructor under the College policy on academic
dishonesty is not permitted to withdraw from the course with a grade of “W" afier academic dishonesty
procedures have been initiated by the instructor.

7.7 The deadlines set out in the studemt grievance procedure for grade appeals do not apply to grievances
regarding action taken regarding academic dishonesty. The grievance, therefore, may not be filed in
the subsequent term unless that term falls within fourteen calendar days of the instructor’s notification of
the student that academic dishonesty procedures have been initiated.

7.8 Penalties assigned for academic dishonesty may not be used as the basis for a subsequent grade appeal.

SECTIONB. CANCELLATION

8.1 Mone.

SECTIONY. REVIEW STATEMENT

a1 This policy shall be reviewed on a regular basis with a time frame for review to be determined by the
President or the President’'s designee. Upon such review, the President or President's designes may
recomméend 1o the Board that the policy be amended or repealed.

SECTION 10. SIGNATURES

Board of Governors Chair Date

President hate

Attachmenis: MNone,

Distribution: Board of Governors {12 members)
wiww_southemwvoedu

Revision Notes:  May 2006 = Revisions provide clarity and reflect changes in current practice. Definitions,
responsibilitics, and procedures were added 1o this policy.

Movember 2001 — Significant revisions (o include aspecis of imegrily and technology
advancements. Information referenced in policy from www.speollege. edwacademicdishonesty
and www.centralmichiganuniversity academicintegritypolicy.

October 2016 = Revisions reflect changes to position titles and provide clarity.

Seplemiper 8, 2023 — Revisions reflect srammatical and titke changes.

SCPATI0, Aeaehenic fnfegriny Page 4 al'4



214

SOUTHERN WEST VIRGINIA COMMUNITY AND TECHNICAL COLLEGE
BOARD OF GOVERNORS
MEETING OF DECEMBER 12, 2023

ITEM: SCP-2825, Salary Administration

RECOMMENDED RESOLUTION: RESOLVED, That the Southern West Virginia
Community and Technical College Board of
Govermnors grant final approval of SCP-2825, Salary
Adrministration.

STAFF MEVIBER: Debbie C. Dingess

BACKGROUND:

At its October 17, 2023 meeting, the Southern West Virginia Community and Technical College
Board of Governors approved the advancement of SCP-2825, Salary Administration, to
Southem's constituents and the Chancellor for Community and Technical College Education for
an additional 30-day public comment period. The comment period ended November 23, 2023.
No additional comments were received.

Therefore, the staff recommends that the Board of Governors of Southern West Virginia
Community and Technical College grant final approval of SCP-2825, Safary Administration.



215

SOUTHERN WEST VIRGINIA COMMUNITY AND TECHNICAL COLLEGE
BOARD OF GOVERNORS
SCP-2825

SUBJECT: Salary Administration
REFERENCE:  West Virginia Code §§18B-7-1, et seq., 18B-8-1, et seq., 18B-9A-1, et seq.; 135 CSR 55,

Human Resources Administration; 135 C.S.R. 9, Academic Freedom, Professional

Responsibility, Promotion, and Tenure; the West Virginia Higher Education Salary Schedule.
ORIGINATION: December 2004
EFFECTIVE; May 19,2016

REVIEWED: June 21, 2023

SECTION 1. PURPOSE

1.1 The purpose of this policy is to establish guidelines for salary administration that enable the College to
maintain a fair and equitable compensation program and to attract, retain, and reward highly qualified
employees,

SECTION 2. SCOPE AND APPLICABILITY

2.1 This policy applies to all employees of the College, including full-time faculty and classified and non-
classified staff. This policy does not apply to the President.

SECTION 3. DEFINITIONS

3.1 Non-classified Employee — An employee whe serves at the will and pleasure of the President and meets one
or more of the following criteria:

3.1.1 Employee holds a direct policy-making position at the department or organization level;
3.1.2 Employee reports directly to the President;

3.1.3 Employee is in a position considered by the President or designee to be critical to the organization
pursuant to policies or decisions adopted by the governing board;

3.1.4 Employee is in an information technology-related position;

3.1.5 Employees hired after July 1, 2017 in a position that meets the duties test for exempt status under
the provisions of the Fair Labor Standards Act when hired or anytime thereafter; or

3.1.6  Anemployee in a non—<lassified position as of January 1, 2017.
3.2 Full-time Faculty — An individual employed on a full-time year-to-year basis designated by the President or

the President’s designee as faculty who holds rank and is assigned a full-time workload per institutional
guidelines and those individuals with faculty rank who have research or administrative responsibilities.

SCP-2825, Salary Administration Page 1 of 4



33

34

216

Classified Employee — Any regular full-time or regular part-time employee who does not meet the duties test
for exempt status under the provisions of the Fair Labor Standards Act; and is not otherwise a non-
classified employee as defined in W. Va. Code §18B-9A-2 and Section 3.1 above; Provided, that any
employee who was a classified employee as of January 1, 2017, retains that status unless otherwise
deemed a non-classified employee pursvant to W. Va. Code §18B-9A-2 and Section 3.1 of this policy.

Critical to the Institution — Positions that are essential for the College, department, division, or work unit to
achieve the necessary work results and that are vital to fulfilling the mission of the College. Key position
characteristics may require specialized knowledge and skills, leadership competencies, a deep historical
perspective of the College, and broad decision-making authority, which could have a significant impact on
the College,

SECTION 4. POLICY

4.1

4.2

4.3

The President shall prepare an annual budget request for approval by the Board of Governors. As part of
the presentation of the budget request, the President shall include any plans to award salary increases for
any employee other than the President. The President’s recommendation for salary increases to the Board of
Governaors shall incorporate compensation methods deemed appropriate to accomplish the salary goals of
the College and may address issues such as market/peer competitiveness, performance, merit, and equity
adjustments, or other common compensation practices necessary to maintain a fair and equitabie
compensation program.

The Board of Governors shall determine and approve the President’s salary and other compensation in
accordance with the guidelines of the West Virginia Council for Community and Technical College
Education.

The Board of Governors may delegate authority to the President to approve pay increases as deemed
appropriate for employees for any reason. Any such delegation shall be in accordance with the provision
of W. Va. Code §18B-2A-4(t). All salary increases are contingent upon the availability of funding and are
not considered automatic based upon any salary schedule adopted or in effect.

SECTION 5. BACKGROUND OR EXCLUSIONS

5.1

None,

SECTION 6. GENERAL PROVISIONS

6.1

6.2

As funding is provided for salary adjustments, the College shall allocate those funds equitably consistent
with the purpose for which the funds are provided. The College may provide salary increases only when
funding is available and shall provide them in accordance with one or more of the following criteria. These
criteria are not sequential and may be applied concurrently for any employee category.

Non-Classified Employee

6.2.1 The President, in consultation with the appropriate administrator(s) and supervisory personnel,
shall determine proposed salary increases in accordance with any authority delegated by the
Board of Governors.

6.2.2 The College may provide other salary increases as approved by the President with authority
delegated by the Board of Governors.

SCP-2825, Salary Administration Page 2 of 4



6.3

64

6.2.3

217

The President may determine merit-based salary increases in consultation with the appropriate
supervisory personnel and based on results derived from the College’s approved performance
appraisal system and any other means approved by the President which provides a fair and
equitable basis for measuring performance levels based upon reasonable performance standards.
The College shall develop the performance appraisal system in collaboration with non-classified
staff.

Full-time Faculty

6.3.1

6.3.2

6.3.3

6.3.4

Promotion-in-Rank - The College shall award a 10% salary increase on the existing base salary,
not to include any stipend or supplemental contract pay, to a faculty member who is promoted-in-
rank based upon meeting the criterta for such promotion as outlined in SCP-2686, Promotion-in-
Rank and Tenure Policy.

Salaries are largely governed by a Faculty Compensation Program and a salary schedule approved
by the President. The goal for funding salaries for faculty employees is to ensure salary levels are
at the entry-level in rank on the salary schedule. The College shall apply revenue so appropriated
to funding the salary schedule proportionately for all faculty employees based on the individual
employee’s rank.

The College may provide other salary increases as approved by the President with authority
delegated by the Board of Governors.

The President may determine merit-based salary increases in consultation with the appropriate
division head or dean and based on results derived from the College’s approved faculty
evaluation process and any other means approved by the President which provides a fair and
equitable basis for measuring performance levels based upon reasonable performance standards.
The College shall develop the faculty evaluation process in ¢ollaboration with the faculty.

Classified Employee

6.4.1

6.4.2

6.4.3

Classified employees shall be paid in accordance with the West Virginia Higher Education Salary
Schedule. The goal for funding salaries for classified employees is to apply available funds toward
employee compensation to ensure employees are equitably paid with the compensation goal of
having all employees within five percent below or above midpoint on the salary schedule. The
College shall apply revenue so appropriated to funding the salary schedule appropriately for all
classified employees based on performance, equity, and impact to the College. For a classified
employee’s progression in the salary range, the President, in consultation with the appropriate
administrators and supervisory personnel, may consider factors including, but not limited to:
external market, institutional compensation goals, assignment of additional duties, recognition for
meeting certain goals, and individual skill and/or performance ratings. Employees may progress
through a pay range by leamning their job, increasing their skills, accepting additional
responsibilities, and performing very well.

The Coliege may provide other salary increases as approved by the President with authority
delegated by the Board of Governors.

The President may determine merit-based salary increases in consultation with the appropriate
supervisory personnel and based on results derived from the College’s approved performance
appraisal system and any other means approved by the President that provides a fair and equitable
basis for measuring performance levels based upon reasonable performance standards. The
Coilege shall develop the performance appraisal system in collaboration with the classified staff.

SCP-2825, Salary Adminisiration Page 3 of 4



218

SECTION 7. RESPONSIBILITIES

7.1 The President, the Chief Finance Officer, and the Chief Human Resources Officer, in consultation with
the appropriate supervisory personnel, are responsible for implementing the provisions of this policy.

SECTIONS. CANCELLATION

8.1 This policy supersedes any prior policy or reference to salary issues of Southem West Virginia
Community and Technical College.

SECTIONY9. REVIEW STATEMENT

0.1 The appropriate administrators shall review this policy on a regular basis with a time frame for review to
be determined by the President or the President’s designee. Upon such review, the President or
President’s designee may recommend to the Board that the policy be amended or repealed.

SECTION 10. SIGNATURES

Board of Governors Chair Date

President Date

Attachments: None

Distribution: Board of Governors (12 members)
www.southernwv.edu

Revision Notes:  October 2007 — Revisions incorporate the Board of Governors approved Faculty Compensation
Program and Salary Schedule as a means to provide salary increases for the faculty.

March 2015 — The policy was reformatted into the new policy format. Revisions are technical
in nature.

January 2016 — Policy revised to include a definition of positions that are critical to the
institution pursuant to WV Code 18B-9A-2¢,

February 2021-Revisions reflect updated sections of the WV Code, Legislative Series,
references fo institutional compact to Strategic Plan, and process for classified employee
salary increases pursuant to salary structure changes in 2017,

June 2023 — Revisions reflect clarification in the role of authority of the President by the
Board of Governors and those responsible for implementation of this policy. 1t also provides
better understanding of processes for providing salary increases for each category of
employees.

SCP-2825, Salary Administration Page 4 of 4



219

Southern West Virginia Community and Technical College

Current Mission Statement

Southern West Virginia Community and Technical College provides accessible,
affordable, quality education and training that promote success for those we
serve.

Proposed New Mission Statement

Southern improves lives through education, service, and training.



220

UPDATED
12/04/23

SOUTHERN

T L TR TV b T el i L B

OFFICE OF HUMAN RESOURCES




221

SOUTHERN WEST VIRGINIA COMMUNITY AND TECHNICAL COUEGE

ORGANIZATIONAL CHART
INDEX

President,

Pras[dent",v;‘(:abmet

e rNA] A IS . .t covtevmrrvrrcerrie e rrr s e vnnrsrrerrsre ne vee resrm tvrar b aar sre e eh aee eas b anrears

Communications
Community Relations
Development

FACIHHES oov e cer et e trrers serirs e rer vrs ten rrr s ee s snn rrs res sbaa e s e rs s ene res rerabn ane 1o seareraratns
HUMER ROSOUICES. .. ..v v vveivvas tenren sreesinmrrssesmms sre essis a0t 40etesvna vressr snsnns 1es ses et snsnsen

BUSINESS SBIVITEE ..viveviivirir i ere et trrrarate e rrs et sn reeeesmt ansesarr tes aersas pan rrarerees

Controller
Budgets and Purchasing

Office of Information Technology ...

Applatons Programmmg}[)evahpment

Distance Education
Web Development
Institutional Research
Natwork Servicaes
User Services

Student Services...
Admlssmns .
Financial Assmtanoe
Registrar...

Student Success....
Waorkforce Deve!apment .........................................................................

Academic Affairs/ALO...
Accreditation and Assessment...
Library Services... . -
Professional and Transfar Prograrns... .

Page 1

Page 2

Page 3
Page 4

Page 5

. Page 6

Page 7-3
Page 7
Page 7
Page 7
Page 7
Page 8

e PagE 911
v Page 9
... Page9
.... Page 10
Allied Health and NUrsing ............ceco i i i s s i s v s s

Page 11




222

Legent : Direct Reporting Line
BOARD OF GOVERNORS Coondnatingting » « « - - «
I
Student Govemment Assodiations Dr. Pamela L. Alderman Faculty Senate
EXECUTIVE ASSISTANT TO THE
PRESIDENT AND BOARD OF Rl toyras e
GOVERNORS
Logan Cargus
Sennifes Dove Kels! Bel
CHEF CMEF STUDENT
CHEF EXTERNAL A raCTIES o CHEF FINANCE INFORMATION SERVICES CHEF ACADENIC
AFFAIRS OFFICER pirncr iy OFFICER OFFICER OFRCER OFFCER OFFACER/ALO
3 - Logan Cempus
R. Stacy Dingess o8 Linvile Dem . Velva Pennington Tharras Cook Dared Taylor B Aldemman

CIICEIS

J U

C

Pagel




223

PRESIDENT

Dr. Pamela L. Alderman

CHIEF EXTERNAL AFFAIRS OFFICER

Legend : Direct Reporting Live_______
Coordinating Lin - - = - - -

Logan Campus
@ R. Stacy Dingess
EXECUTIVE ASSISTANT TO THE
CHIEF EXTERNMAL AFFAIRS OFFICER
Looan Campus
Tammy Toppings
EXECUTWE DIRECTOR OF CAMPLS EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR OF CAMPUS
DEVELOPMENT COORDINATOR AND COMMUNTY RELATIONS AND COMMUNTY RELATIONS DIRECTOR OF COMMUNICATIONS
¥ Rits Roberson Brittany Justice
ENROLLMENT MARKETING AND :
COMMLUNICATIONS SPECIALIST FORCAMPUS SITE
OPERATIONS COORDINATOR
Metira Tendor A oM \incoi St
Angeta Bell
GRANT WRITER Anna Evans
Lopan Campus
Vacant {Naw} OFFACE
L ASSISTANT
{Pact-time)
PRODUCTION ASSISTANT Lincotn Sit
MeKayla New
Wilkamsen Campus
Christopher Lawson
Darrel Mitchem

Page2




224

L : Chrecl Ll
PRESIDENT e e o L

Dr. Pamela L. Alderman

CHIEF FACILITIES MANAGEMENT OFFICER SNACK BAR CORTRACTORS

Logan
Logan Campus Witamson
Joe Linville

|

I |

CIRECTOR OF SAFETY AND
DIRECTOR OF FACILITIES CAMPUS OPERATIONS
Logan Campus
R. Ede Brumield David Lord
TRADES Pl FORCAMPUS |
SPECIALST LEAD | PHYSICAL PLANT OPERATIONS
MATTERS ONLY :
Sootl Prichard E
c Keniny Bowens Patty Brocks |
TRADES MAINTENANCE
SPECIALIST | WORKER 1
Wilianson Campus
P Lowe Mark Bowens
MAINTENANCE
CAMPLE SERVICE WORKER |
WORKER
James Parker
Brady Dove
Thomas Gartin
Garmetl Spancar
SECURITY GUARD
{Part-time)
Ryan DeBoard
Pamela Bowen Roy Messor
Shalay Woolum Palrick Mounis
Pagel




225

PRESIDENT

Dr. Pamela L. Alderman

o/

|

CHIEF HUMAN RESOURCES
OFFICER

Logan Campus
Debbie C. Dingess

!

Legend : Direct Reporting Line
CoorfinglingLing - - + - - «

MANAGER HUMAN RE SOURCES

MANAGER PAYROLL, SR.

Susen Ross

Camle Jobe

HUMAN RESOURCES
REPRESENTATIVE

Dusiin Crisp

HUMAN RESOURCES ASSISTANT
(Parttime)

Legan Campus
Hennetta McClelan

Peged




226

PRESIDENT

Dr. Pamela L. Alderman

1

CHIEF FINANCE OFFICER

Velva Pennington

CONTROLLER

Logan Cammgus
Evan Riggins

ACCOUNTANT

41 Colins

BURSAR
Wiliamson Campus
J. Christopher Gray
ACCOUNTING FOR
ASSISTANT) CASHERING
— i _ | MATTERS ONLY
Logan Campus
Sonda MaVZlen
Anna Evans
ACCOUNTING
ASSISTANT] ||
FOR REVENUE
Wiliawmson Campus ~-4 MATTERS ONLY
Crysta) Browning
Library
Department

Legend : Direct Reporing kina______

Coondinating Line

RIRECTOR OF BUDGETS AND
PURCHASING

Vacen

GRANTS
COCRCINATOR

Logan Campug
JudithRunyon

ACCOUNTANT

Lagan Cempus
Chend Elliolt-Hicks|

ACCOUNTANT

Judy Slazo

ASSISTANT
ACCOUNTANT

Wilkamson

Lams
Ruby Ruryon

Pages




227

PRESIDENT

Dr. Pamela L. Alderman

CHIEF INFORMATION OFFICER

Legend : Direct Reporting Line
CoontingtingLing - - - - - -

EXECUTIVE ASSISTANT TO THE
CHIEF INFORMATION OFFICER

Logan Campus
Thomas Gook Angela McDonzkd
DIRECTOR OF INSTITUTIONAL DIRECTOR OF DISTANGE
DIRECTOR OF NETWORK SERVICES RESEARCH EDUCATION DIRECTOR OF USER SERVICES
) ogan Campus
Logan Campus Curtis Campbell
Joseph Justice Vacan! Tim Owens
APPUCATIONS PROGRAMMER! WEB DEVELOPER W o
SYSTEMS
SYSTEMS ADMINISTRATOR DEVELOPER LEAD TECHNICIAN
Logan Campuia Logan Campus Chrisiopher Thomgson
Brian Chanay Les Stroud
J. Brandon Vence
Vickl Workman
APPUCATIONS PROGRAMMER
| Michael Funter
Matk Justion
Matihew Hatfield

Fages




228

PRESIDENT

Dir. Pamela L. Alderman

Legend - Dt Roporing
Catethiiling Ling

CHIEF STUDENT SERVICES OFFICER

Lipan Gy
Damel Tayor
EXECUTIVE AXHSTANT TO THE CHMEF
i STUDINT 5L RVIGES QFFICIR
STUDENT GOVERRMENT ASSOCIATIONS | !
i Logan Camges
e e ——— i Btuty Parhes
DIRECTOM OF § TUDEMT : ] ' :n:mnu:llrnmu.
CIRBCTOR OF ADMISSIONS AT GETRAR b
Logan Cagsms Loge, Cammgs ey
Dianna Toler Tim Doten Teri Vasihy w
BTLDENT SUCEESS FOR S TUDERT | | FORACMESSIONS . ETUGENT
ALNEOR mnﬁrm' . | |AsmoR STENT | | RECORDS ABGOCUTE
! oL ~1 saTrenson | | ABSISTAMT mmlmu
e Loxn. e T | Malibatsn oo LeoanCarmes
....... Agen B Anosis el Pincda Maryridid B By Taprd
e | APECIALIET ADOSRIHE THAMERN RN
Casaanda Warcn || CODRDINATDR T || WATTORS ORLY - | HEE—— .:Hm”nllﬂu
Lisgan Camgan | Lese Cirmoan
T S | Lugan Camgu Mir Coling w Argeta Dot
Flraseth L arn My i — sl L ode
[ TANE Girant) STUDENT e —_
Hoger CAREER COMMURICATIONS Eredd Nlaracn Carms
‘Wi T
SIRVCTS SPECIALIET | ....::r ........... = PROGRAM | el Jnohy
COLMEELDR EITANT |
- Vlkanson Campen -
nm;-u A FRHANGIAL AID
[Periens Gt ) PRCJES Ve T KESETANT
m:-m:m Pty Beesics | (Part-tima)
-l E=rta s
Hshniny L ermenos

FPopeT




229

PRESIDENT

Dr, Pamela L. Alderman

@ CHIEF STUDENT SERVICES OFFICER
Logan Compus

Darrell Taylor

OPERATIONS MANAGER

Shelby Forter

Coortdinating Une

Legend : Direct Reporting Line

DEAN OF WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT

Llogan Campus
Dr. David Lemmon

ADMINISTRATIVE ASSOCIATE

Kelly Green

DIRECTOR OF WORNFORCE DEVELOPMENT

Logsn Campus
Jacke Lester
LINEMAN INSTRUCTCR
MINING (lgﬁ;‘rrni}mma plomd
Charles |saacs
Vecant Christopher Muncy (CEmbing)

COL INSTRUCTOR
{Gmnt)

Jeff Teout
Brizn Elkins
Veecant

{Part-tima)

Pagad




230

Dr. Pamela L. Alderman

PFRESIDENT

CHIEF ACADEMIC OFFICERS
ACCREDITATION LIAISON OFFICER

Lepand - Deed Rporing Line
Cangathsing

Ling = s nmnn

Logan Camous
Bl Adderman
EXECUITVE ASSISTANT TO Tt ATIERHIVE
CHIEF ACADEMIC OFFICER w
Logan Camgass Loga Campc
Bandm Prdurans e
DIRECTOR OF DEAN OF PROFESSICNAL AND DERAN OF ALLIED HEALTH
CERECTOR OF LINFRANE ¥ ACCREDTATICH AND TRANSTER PROGRANS ARD NURSING
Logan Conp e aancnd L Co Legan Casmpuss
s it Begna fas Dr. Nichasl Jies v Lisa Handoon Heston
| umRaRY LERARY
TECHHICAL TECHHICAL
AESETANT i ABESTANTI
Leooss Casmus Ligan Carrgs
| Ak Mesner Tara Drake
| LmRasY cLERK
[Pt ey
Legenry iTress s
Waraw

Fage




s e

PRESIDENT
Dr. Pamela L. Alderman

: ]

CHIEF ACADEMIC OFFICER

Legan Cammis
Bl Adarman

DUECTOR OF [ DUCATIONAL

DEAN OF PROFESSIONAL AND
TRAMSFER PROGRAMS

231

Lagend | [ired Reporting Lirp
Caanaing

Lies o o 0 00w

I Logan Campus
| Cer. Michas Jiles

s T

ADMENSTRATIVE AS50CIATE

OO TR OF MATHAND SCRNCES

LLogen Carrges
L LT T
m
EDUCATION FACULTY PACILYY
Looan Carins | eooe Comen
fiwasn arrgarnd Ly ¥ hingeda
[ ——
| Pl Gard} Logen Cenpas
{ Your Ches Wil Aberesan
il Freeman
Tiehares hlan
Lils Tooiers
T ——
Willkanarn Camrar
FOCIAL STENTES Adae Behs
FRCURTY i w1078
o ard
Lsgin {ampn
Warsany Clngerus —
O Charss lesnay
| 4, Burkin Basdas

Lingor St
Chrriophes 'tiara
MATHEMATICS SCENCES FACULTY
FACULTY
v Ratsporca Pram
oyt W2
Logan Carmpre Gy L Bt
ungn Baidvin il g
Liza Jackaie oy Liwad
Kachen Sephana Woodeam
s et
Fniesriy Hensdey
HERAEKITIES
FRCLILTY
Lot Sampus
Rloetsaman W —

Locen Cameu
Tiephsnes Modm
BLEMESS FADULTY INFORMA THOR
TECHROL OO
Lo Camenny PARELLTY
Taraglan M
Logan Camyss
Liapes Compm Erc F sy
Fapprgne Ll ey Rl Thirmgaan
Ml orraos Cassingy Beane Cangus
it Fisiey earttaer Firgsn
—
TECHMOL KFY ENGNEERING
FACLULTY FROULTY
Xllemaon Campan Eillarean Carmgees
Vst Tumodtey Masedey
WILDING F ADULTY m;ﬂ.m
FAELILTY
Mlaren Camus
Gamarce Waskim Legan Camous
‘acand




232

Dr. Pamela L. Alderman

PRESIDENT

| CHIEF ACADEMIC OFFICER

Lggan Camous
| Bill Alderman
TN AT
DEAN OF ALLIED HEALTH AND ADMMISTRATIVE ASSOCIATE
HURSING I
@ Logan Cames:s o T
D Lims Hasged oo -Harion
1 ] | ] | ]
DIRECTCR OF IHRTC TOH OF DFECTOR OF HRECTOR OF CARTCTOR OF
DIRECTOR OF NURSING EMERGERCY DIRECTOR OF l MEDICEL FADICH T RESFIRATORY SURGICAL
HAMLGEWERT | | COSMETOLOGY LABRATORY TECH KLY CERE TECHHER 04
- SERVCES AND BALOH TECHMOL O TECHHOL
Slwkit Bl MARAGEMERT Limas Catin s Camins
= w w £k Hamalsh ddi ]ﬁ.ﬁ WoRakicimn
SRILATION AND
ACSENETRATIVE ACADEMIC LAD Sherry Ramey Siepharis Diarisl
SECRETARY, SR COORDINATOR | | | | |
Logan Campey Liongen Carensy [ ;
Sarmms Diokid Shatty Brixtioet ALEDHEALTH FACULTY FACULTY FACULTY FacILTY FRCULTY
Ll Logan Campes
| : Lingsn Corpes, \Locan Camees Lo Cargau
o : fr i i m.l:'-ﬂ- Kialnnary
ACADERIC LAD i Brown vonin R
| MURSING F ACULTY WARMLGERY | oy | ooven
ACRANISTRATIVE | ;
SECRETARY SR, |
LHE
Fleather [imics -
Shicy Hathald
Mk Hid
Jervilr Lisaieivrdi STUGENT SLCCESS
i i By ADVEOR
Il:'ﬂr'ﬁlwﬂﬂ'l Logan Campm
G Sy 170 acnl
Jerwely Yoyrmtier
2 incant Poadions y
1 ‘Wacan] Posion
{ASCE MO Crmnt)

Fege il




233

Southern West Virginia Community and Technical College

= = Bt | | e e | e [ e e el
T8 Taod ol Crorsenal hvaic [T TR T TF Liie Gkt

Tharian of Dhectl T iiarhogy T o T T 5 o

Alisa kg Jaid ki 123 HCT N7 PO B 7 0 Theerizs Chozesa s TR

st of Mt g ASL ET Grars r«- [T T =

{horocror =i lanmeonal Research RAGIOEE [T Isll:_mm Thad Hoan

LT —— T ST T I:-Jue-ll:l:l Fhigeh Mk

ivecior of Murueg - Winchord RS r TR Is v fria) ) Tarnass Barramsag

T T—— el il el S prym— A PR
Fonana el Al Asrstone f Part - oo i b ] Gl T et s I'l 18, 40 D0 LA ﬁl [ T ieiien) Tk Riokwirta, Canes % 1 e (1
T Worm Brm

[howcton wef Burdgrin sod Purchasieg b330 TN § 75 im0 | 1] I Viehs Fosmngcan

[Crstmry Comb Pt -termh NEmE [eETeie 0,800 T4 e T

CEIL Iecitracion | Pari-timc e I ST i e

Irivaan of Fagh-h [ T 1T 'icky Evanu

b_-uu o Warmg - 12 worh prwtim [T TROOE]  fiaioer o jasay rl ¥ T Pay

Paga | of 1






